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To: Commissioners and Interested Persons

From: Kevin Kahn, Central Coast District Manager
Ryan Moroney, Central Coast Supervisor
Devon Jackson, Coastal Planner

Subject: Additional hearing materials for Thl4a

Local Coastal Program Amendment Number
LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)

This package includes additional materials related to the above-referenced hearing item
as follows:

Additional correspondence received in the time since the staff report was distributed.



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Good afternoon,

Claire ) Momberger <cmomberger@co.slo.ca.us>

Wednesday, May 29, 2024 4:32 PM

Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Moroney, Ryan@Coastal; Jackson, Devon@Coastal
chanh@co.slo.ca.us; Kylie Fonzi

Los Osos Water Purveyor Joint Letter of Support

Joint Purveyor Letter-Proposed GMO Amendments Fully Executed.pdf

| have attached to this email a joint letter from the three Los Osos water purveyors addressed to Cory
supporting an agreed upon implementation strategy of the 1% annual cap of the growth rate proposed in
the suggested modifications to the LCP Amendment. As the letter explains, the implementation strategy
is agreed upon by the County and the water purveyors and includes continuation of the Title 19 (2:1
offset) program, an approach to identifying the annual growth rate which depends on the annual
monitoring reporting data, and annual collaboration between the Los Osos Basin Management
Committee and the County’s Groundwater Sustainability Director over the latest reporting data.

Can you confirm, will this letter be included as pre-hearing “correspondence”?

Thank you,

Claire Momberger, M.S.

Planner, Long-Range Planning
Department of Planning and Building

County of San Luis Obispo

Phone: (805) 781-1392

Email: cmomberger@co.slo.ca.us
Website: www.slocounty.ca.gov
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May 9, 2024

Cory Hahn

Division Manager, Long-Range Planning
Department of Planning and Building
County of San Luis Obispo

Subject: Proposed Growth Management Ordinance Amendments for Los Osos
Dear Mr. Hahn,

The Golden State Water Company (“GSWC”), S&T Mutual Water Company (S&T) and Los Osos
Community Services District (‘LOCSD”) (jointly, “Purveyors”) would like to thank the Long-Range
Planning Division for their coordinated effort in developing a viable strategy to allow for
safeguarded new development in Los Osos. It is our understanding that the California Coastal
Commission (Commission) staff is recommending that the Commission adopt an annual 1%
growth rate for the community at their June meeting. After careful evaluation, the Purveyors are
in agreement with the County’s draft strategy for implementing the 1% growth rate which includes
the following elements:

1. Title 19 Retrofit-to-Build Program shall remain codified and continue to be enforced unless
the program is determined to no longer be a necessary or appropriate component of the
management strategy for a sustainable Los Osos Groundwater Basin.

2. Using a five-year rolling average, the following safeguards and controls will be utilized to
ensure the sustainability of the Los Osos Groundwater Basin.

Basin Yield Metric Growth Rate

80% 1.0%
81% 0.8%
82% 0.6%
83% 0.4%
84% 0.2%
85% 0.0%

3. Annually, Los Osos Basin Management Committee (BMC) will provide input to the
Groundwater Sustainability Director (currently Blaine Reely), who would then provide a
technical memorandum as part of the recommendation to the Board of Supervisors on any
changes to the growth rate.

The Purveyors would like to emphasize that the success of this proposal is tied to the agreed
upon verification and monitoring processes in the amended Title 19 and the input from the
BMC based on the data and results in the Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report.

Again, the Purveyors appreciate the collaborative effort between the Purveyors and the
County to develop a Growth Management Ordinance implementation strategy that will ensure
the sustainability of the Los Osos Groundwater Basin.
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Sincerely,

DocuSigned by:
Mart: Aimmer

Golden State Water Company

»——DocuSigned by:

-

CECSDACAAS:

S&T Mutual Water Company

»——DocuSigned by:

1679

Cos Os0s Community Services District
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890 Monterey St
Suite H

San Luis Obispo
California 93401
ph: 805-593-0926
fax:805-593-0946

babaknaficy@naficylaw.com

Law Offices of Babak Naficy

Via Email
June 7, 2024

California Coastal Commission
Dan Carl, Director

Ryan Morney,

Central and North Central Coast
725 Front Street, #300

Santa Cruz, CA 95060
Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov
Ryan.Moroney@coastal.ca.gov
CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov

Re: Thil4a-Application
San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program Amendment
Number LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)

Honorable Commissioners and Director Carl,

My office represents the Los Osos Sustainability Group (“LOSG”) in
connection with ongoing water supply issues in Los Osos. On behalf of the
LOSG, I strongly urge you not to take any substantive action at the June
2024 meeting and to continue this item for at least a few months to afford
the public a chance to review and evaluate the proposed changes and seek
expert evaluation of the critical technical issues raised by this item.

A continuance is critically needed because, whereas the Coastal
Commission Staff has had years to review the proposed Los Osos
Community Plan (“LOCP” or “Project”), seek expert advice and collaborate
with County Staff, the community which will be directly affected by the
proposed action will have had only a few weeks to review and digest this
revised proposal. The public, including the LOSG, has not had any
adequate chance to consult with technical experts or to discuss this
important issue with County officials who are the proponents.

A continuance is vitally needed also because the Staff Report does not fully
address the wide range of issues raised by the County’s original approval of
the LOCP. Members of the public submitted hundreds of public comments
to the County in connection with the County’s certification of a Final
Environmental Impact Report (“FEIR”) for the LOCP. These comments
raised a myriad of issues and concerns that the current Staff Report simply
does not address. Given the passage of time, the Staff’s recognition of the
many flaws in the LOCP, and significant changes to the LOCP and
environmental circumstance, the County-certified FEIR is clearly



inadequate under CEQA. In this regard, the Staff Report notes that the
LOCP “was initially drafted multiple years ago, and this it references and
includes maps of older versions of the draft HCP prior to its 2024 adoption,
.... and it generally does not reflect the best available information
regarding basin health today.” Staff Report at p. 21. The Staff Report
concludes that the LOCP is “actually quite unclear, and a bit out of date,
all of which suggests that it would lead to implementation difficulty.” Ibid.

Accordingly, to comply with CEQA’s informational and procedural
requirements, the Commission must ask Staff to prepare a comprehensive
and detailed analysis of the changes to the LOCP and baseline
environmental conditions for the Project and delay any final consideration
of the Project until after the public has sufficient time to evaluate the
changes and provide comments. See, Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 15162
(subsequent EIR must be prepared if subsequent to the preparation of an
FEIR, “(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances
under which the project is undertaken which will require major revisions of
the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new
significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of
previously identified significant effects”)

Where, as here, the Commission is poised to approve a substantially
changed Project under substantially changed circumstances, the Coastal
Commission must fully comply with CEQA’s substantive and procedural
mandates, including consideration of project alternatives, mitigation
measures, and response to public comments. Friends, Artists & Neighbors
of Elkhorn Slough v. California Coastal Com. (2021) 72 Cal.App.5th 666,
703.

Accordingly, for all of these reasons I urge you to defer any final action on
this item until and unless the Commission has fully complied with the
substantive and procedural requirements of CEQA.

The Staff Report fails to adequately analyze
the current status of Los Osos Groundwater Basin

The central issue here is the status of the Los Osos groundwater basin. The
Staff Report acknowledges that the basin “has historically suffered from
critical overdraft past its safe yield, ...” Staff Report at p. 13. The Staff
Report also acknowledges that this critical overdraft condition presents a
wide range of vexing challenges and could result in “rendering wells
unusable, threats to agriculture and adverse effects to the surrounding
environment.” Ibid. What the Staff Report does not mention, however, is
that the encroaching seawater intrusion front may eventually contaminate
the entire basin, rendering it unusable for human consumption. According
to the County FEIR, a 2014 monitoring report showed that seawater



intrusion at the time was occurring at the rate of 200 to 250 feet per year, a
rate that could have rendered the groundwater supply “unusable in five
years.” FEIR 4.4.-4. This shows that contrary to the Staff Report’s
implication that the threat of seawater intrusion is limited to “rendering
wells unusable”, seawater intrusion could render the entire basin unusable
for human consumption.

The Staff Report explains that to address the threat of groundwater
contamination and seawater intrusion, the Basin Plan has identified
certain metrics including sustainable yield/safe yield, nitrate levels,
chloride levels, seawater intrusion and groundwater levels. The Staff
Report goes on to claim that the 2023 Annual Monitoring Report shows the
Basin to no longer be in overdraft because the amount of water used is less
than the amount of water needed to ensure no adverse effects. Staff Report,
at p. 14. As set forth more fully below, Staff’s focus on the concept of “safe
yield” to the exclusion of other metrics is misplaced and results in a
distorted analysis of the potential impacts of allowing new water-
dependent development in Los Osos.

The Staff Report includes a discussion of current groundwater conditions
at page 22. It begins by discussing the role of the Basin Management
Committee (“BMC”) and reports that one of the metrics used by the BMC to
determine the health of the basin is a “what is called the Basin Yield
Metric, which is a percentage of the amount of water used/extracted for a
given year compared with the sustainable/safe yield.” Ibid. Safe yield is
theoretically the quantity of water that can be extracted that “does not
result in any advance of seawater intrusion relative to 2021 levels.” Staff
Report at p. 23. The Staff Report also describes other metrics which include
chloride and nitrate targets.

Staff’s conclusion that new development can be authorized in Los Osos 1s
solely based on the following contentions:

On this point, the BMC acknowledges that it will take
decades to [bring pollutant levels back to their historic
state], and that these metrics are not a target threshold to
measure Basin sustainability and health in real time
overall, but rather point-in-time measurements at discrete
locations to ascertain the trajectory of nitrate and chloride
concentration 1mprovements over time. This 1is
distinguished from the Basin Yield Metric that relates to
overall Basin health in terms of inputs, outputs, and
overall sustainable/safe yield numbers that can be used to
ensure that any such nitrate and chloride issues are not
exacerbated.

Staff Report at p. 23.



Staff’s analysis is incomplete and results in unreliable conclusions. For
example, Staff asserts that while the Sustainable Yield Metric provides a
comprehensive “meta narrative,” the chloride and other metrics are merely
aspirational and limited to a snapshot of discrete measurements at a
particular point in time and location. This contention ignores the fact that
sustainable yield, which has a direct impact on the Basin Yield Metric, is a
theoretic concept that is transient in nature and is directly affected by such
factors as precipitation, which is ephemeral and unreliable by nature.
Precipitation affects not just supply, i.e., the volume of water in the basin,
but also demand by, for example, reducing the need for irrigation in above-
average rainfall years as we have experienced in the past two years.

Moreover, the current basin model is outdated and has never been
recalibrated by using the years of data collected by the BMC. In fact, the
BMC is in the process of replacing the current “Steady State” model with a
more sophisticated and reliable “Transient Model” that is expected to be
much more accurate. From a planning perspective, it makes little sense to
throw caution to the wind by basing long-term planning decisions on the
predictions of an outdated model when the BMC is close to replacing it
with a more reliable model that takes into account years of accumulated
data and the latest long-term precipitation predictions.

Moreover, Staff’s contention that the chloride and other metrics do not
relate to the overall health of the basin is incorrect. According to The Los
Osos Basin Management Plan, reversing, or at least halting chloride levels
1s one of the primary goals of the BMC. Under current conditions, which
the Staff Report claims are “trending towards sustainability,” the chloride
levels in two of the four chloride-monitoring wells are substantially above
the 100mg/1 target (at 211 mg/l and 346 mg/l respectively). These results
are particularly noteworthy because these chloride levels show an increase
compared to the previous reports, indicating that at least by this metric,
which 1s an indicator of seawater intrusion, the basin cannot be considered
sustainable or even “trending” towards sustainability.

In August of 2021, the three Los Osos water purveyors wrote a joint letter
to the County in opposition to the County’s then-proposed Accessory
Dwelling Unit (“ADU”) ordinance, which would have allowed the
construction of ADUs in Los Osos. In this letter, a copy of which is
enclosed, the water purveyors stated

... , despite the BMC’s best efforts, only one of the four
Basin Metrics (the Basin Yield Metric) is currently within
the targeted range.6 Further, two of the three other Basin
Metrics (the Water Level Metric and the Chloride Metric)
saw a deterioration over the prior year. As a result, the
Purveyors are concerned the adoption of the County’s



proposed ADU Ordinance could further hinder the BMC’s
efforts to sustainably manage the Basin and achieve the
goals of the Basin Plan. The following comments are
provided with this in mind.

Monitoring Data and Metrics Deserve More Emphasis

As reported in the 2020 Annual Report, both the
monitoring data and the Basin Metrics indicate that Basin
conditions as a whole are static or worsening, which is
being closely monitored and evaluated by purveyors.
Unfortunately, sustainable management of groundwater
resources is not often achieved quickly, and instead takes
years of continued effort to begin seeing results. Based on
the trends and monitoring results published in previous
Annual Reports, it may take several more years before it is
possible to determine whether implementation of the Basin
Plan has been successful in reversing seawater intrusion
and improving other unfavorable water quality trends.
Prior to being asked to serve additional demand, therefore,
the Basin Metrics must indicate not only an end to
deteriorating conditions but measurable and sustainable
improvements across the Basin. It may also be necessary
to consider creative water supply options, such as
supplemental or imported water, in order to solve the long-
term water issues within the Basin.

August 25, 2021, Water Purveyor Letter to the San Luis Obispo County
Department of Planning and Building, at page 3.

This letter clearly indicates the fallacy of the Staff’s current proposal to
open Los Osos to more development solely on the basis of two years of
above-average rainfall while ignoring inconvenient chloride data which
does not support a conclusion that the basin is now sustainable. As the
purveyors explained in their letter, before deciding the basin can sustain
more water demand, the data must show “measurable and sustainable
improvements across the Basin, including the chloride metric which is a
reliable indicator of seawater intrusion.” To date, there is no conclusive
evidence that shows the implementation of the Basin Plan will be effective
in ensuring the long-term ability of the Basin to meet the current
residential and commercial demand by addressing sea water intrusion and
nitrate contamination.

Despite the importance of the chloride metric in determining the long term
health and sustainability of the Basin, Staff claims the Commission can
conclude the Groundwater Basin can sustain substantially more demand



because, according to Staff, “it isn’t readily apparent that meeting such
targets (i.e. chloride target of 100mg/l) is required to be able to determine
adequacy of water supplies here, including because there isn’t any evidence
now of any sensitive aquatic impairments from current extraction levels
nor any exceedances of applicable water quality standards.” Staff Report at
p. 25. This line of argument is curious because Staff is aware that chloride
levels is one of the primary metrics the Basin Plan uses to access the long-
term sustainability of the basin because sea water intrusion is an
existential threat to the Basin. Moreover, the high chloride levels in the
drinking water wells do in fact exceed the state’s potable standard for
chloride. Finally, Staff’s reference to absence of impacts on an alleged
absence of any sensitive aquatic impairments ignores the fact that the
main concern about water supplies here is the impact on the long-term
reliability of the Basin for human consumption.

Finally, it appears that Staff proposes, as mitigation for the inherent
uncertainty affecting the Commission’s water supply analysis, a 1%
residential unit per year cap. According to Staff, this would equate to 53
new residential units per year. The Staff Report states, however, that “new
water-using development that is not subject to the residential unit cap
could be allowed if the groundwater basin is at or below its sustainable
yield.” Staff Report at fn. 33. The Staff Report makes no effort to describe
what type of development may be possible under this exception, or more
importantly, how much water these types of developments would demand.
For example, Staff does not explain whether low-income housing or
homeless shelters would qualify under this exception. Similarly, the Staff
Report does not estimate how much water would be required for the
proposed 1% cap. Accordingly, the Staff Report does not estimate the total
quantity of water expected to be added to the current demand as a result of
the Commission’s approval of the LOCP. Without any such estimate, the
Commission cannot reasonably make a finding that its approval of the
LOCP would result in a less than significant impact on water supplies.

In conclusion, I respectfully ask the Commission not to approve the LOCP
at this time.

Sincerely,

Babak Naficy



August 25, 2021

San Luis Obispo County

Department of Planning and Building
976 Osos Street, Room 200

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

Subject: Los Osos Groundwater Basin Purveyor Recommendations re County of San
Luis Obispo’s Proposed ADU Ordinance

To Whom It May Concern:

Introduction

The Golden State Water Company (“GSWC”), Los Osos Community Services District
(“LOCSD”) and S&T Mutual Water Company (“S&T”) (jointly, “Purveyors”) provide water to
the Los Osos community, which overlies the Los Osos Groundwater Basin (“Basin”).!
Together with the County, the Purveyors are tasked with sustainable management of the
Basins through their positions on the Basin Management Committee (“BMC”).2 The
Purveyors are writing this letter in response to the County’s request for Purveyor input on
the “adequacy of water . .. services” to support the construction of accessory dwelling units
(“ADUs”) within the Los Osos community. (Gov. Code § 65852.2(a)(1)(A).)

Although the Purveyors acknowledge that the County retains land use authority
throughout the Los Osos community, they also understand that a clear and accurate
description of the community's groundwater resources is fundamental to successful land
use planning, which must account for resource availability in the decision-making process.
The following letter summarizes (1) the BMC’s efforts to date to create a sustainable water
supply for the Los Osos Community, as well as (2) the Purveyor’s concerns regarding
potential impacts of the County’s proposed ordinance to allow accessory dwelling units
(“ADU Ordinance”) on Basin sustainability.

Background on the BMC and Basin Plan
In January 2015, the Purveyors and the County released the Updated Basin Plan for the Los
Osos Groundwater Basin (“Basin Plan”) which details a series of strategies, plans and

1 The County of San Luis Obispo (“County”) also operates several groundwater wells overlying the Basin and
provides recycled water to the Los Osos community from the Los Osos Water Recycling Facility (“LOWP”).

2 Pursuant to the court-approved stipulated judgment (“Stipulated Judgment”) in Los Osos Community Services
District v. Golden State Water Company et al. (Case No. GIN 040126), the Purveyors and the County formed the
BMCin 2015.

22738239.14



projects to manage and protect groundwater resources in the Basin.? The Basin Plan
proposes a strategy and establishes goals, timeframes, milestones, and metrics to address
basin management. The primary goals of the Basin Plan include halting seawater intrusion
into the Basin and providing sustainable water supplies for existing and future needs.

The Basin Plan’s implementation strategy is centered around construction of a series of
proposed projects, that comprise the Basin Infrastructure Program (“Program”), to address
the Basin Plan’s stated goals. The Program is divided into four parts, designated Program A,
Program B, Program C, and Program D. Programs A and B are designed to shift
groundwater production from the lower aquifer to the upper aquifer, and Programs C and
D are designed to shift production within the lower aquifer from the western area to the
central and eastern areas, respectively. To date, Purveyor efforts have focused on
implementation of Program A and Program C improvements to achieve a sustainable water
supply under what the Basin Plan refers to as the “Existing Population Scenario”.

The Basin Plan establishes a comprehensive Groundwater Monitoring Program to collect,
organize, and report data regarding the health of the Basin. That data is used to calculate
the metrics discussed in the following paragraphs and to provide information needed to
manage the Basin for long-term sustainability.

To report on the Basin’s progress, the BMC is required to submit an annual report to the
County of San Luis Obispo Superior Court (“Court”) detailing the monitoring results and
Basin Plan implementation progress for the previous year (“Annual Report”). Each annual
report includes, among other information, groundwater production data, an update on the
implementation of Basin Plan Programs, and the recent monitoring results of Basin Plan
metrics.# This last element provides the best indicator of the status and health of the Basin.

The BMC adopted and submitted the 2020 Annual Report to both the Court and the
Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) on June 16, 2021.> As part of this report, and as
required by the Stipulated Judgment, the BMC updated the monitoring results for each of
the four metrics set forth in the Basin Plan. The following table summarizes the Annual
Report’s findings:

3 Both the Basin Plan and the cooperative authority described in the Basin Plan were approved by the
Superior Court in October 2015.

4 The Basin Plan established several metrics to evaluate nitrate impacts to the Upper Aquifer (“Nitrate
Metric”), seawater intrusion into the Lower Aquifer (“Chloride Metric”), and the effect of management efforts
of the BMC (“Basin Yield Metric” and “Water Level Metric”). These metrics, along with others, are jointly
referred to as the “Basin Metrics”. These Basin Metrics allow the BMC, regulatory agencies, and the public to
evaluate the status of nitrate levels and seawater intrusion, and the impact of implementation of the Basin
Plan Programs in the Basin through objective, numerical criteria that can be tracked over time. The Basin
Plan requires the continual monitoring and reporting of each of the Basin Metrics.

5 A copy of the 2020 Annual Report can be found at https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Public-
Works/Committees-Programs/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC).aspx

Page |2
22738239.14



Summary of Basin Plan Metrics (as reported in 2020 Annual Report)
Value Reported in
Metric Basin Plan Goal 2020 Annual Notes
Report
Deterioration from 2019;
Basin Yield Metric 80 or less 73 but has met Basin Plan
goal since 2016
. 8 feet above mean 1.8 feet above mean No change since 201.9;
Water Level Metric . has not reached Basin
sea level or higher sea level
Plan goal
Deterioration from 2019;
Chloride Metric 100 mg/L or lower 205 mg/L has not reached Basin
Plan goal
Improvement from 2019;
Nitrate Metric 10 mg/L or lower 20 mg/L (NOs3-N) has not reached Basin
Plan goal

Purveyor Concern Regarding Sustainability of Basin

As illustrated in the above table, despite the BMC’s best efforts, only one of the four Basin
Metrics (the Basin Yield Metric) is currently within the targeted range.® Further, two of the
three other Basin Metrics (the Water Level Metric and the Chloride Metric) saw a
deterioration over the prior year. As a result, the Purveyors are concerned the adoption of
the County’s proposed ADU Ordinance could further hinder the BMC'’s efforts to sustainably
manage the Basin and achieve the goals of the Basin Plan. The following comments are
provided with this in mind.

Monitoring Data and Metrics Deserve More Emphasis
Asreported in the 2020 Annual Report, both the monitoring data and the Basin Metrics

indicate that Basin conditions as a whole are static or worsening, which is being closely
monitored and evaluated by purveyors. Unfortunately, sustainable management of
groundwater resources is not often achieved quickly, and instead takes years of continued
effort to begin seeing results. Based on the trends and monitoring results published in
previous Annual Reports, it may take several more years before it is possible to determine
whether implementation of the Basin Plan has been successful in reversing seawater
intrusion and improving other unfavorable water quality trends. Prior to being asked to
serve additional demand, therefore, the Basin Metrics must indicate not only an end to
deteriorating conditions but measurable and sustainable improvements across the Basin. It
may also be necessary to consider creative water supply options, such as supplemental or
imported water, in order to solve the long-term water issues within the Basin.

Need for Water Conservation Study

6 Although the 2020 Annual Report was adopted by the BMC at its June 16, 2021 meeting, it did not receive
unanimous approval because of concerns regarding the current value of the sustainable yield (as set forth in
the Annual Report), which has a direct impact on the Basin Yield Metric.
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The ADU Ordinance proposes to include a water offset requirement where an applicant for
an ADU would be required to “offset” the ADU’s water demand by reducing water use
through conservation measures. This requirement is intended to result in no new net
demand in response to the County’s approval of an ADU.

The Purveyors can agree to support this, however, we request that the County investigate
or revisit the assumptions and arithmetic used for defining the magnitude and availability
of these conservation offsets, which the water purveyors feel are in error. Given that Los
Osos has relatively low water use per capita, the Purveyors are concerned that the well-
intentioned offset requirements will not result in the ADU Ordinance having no new net
water use. The Purveyors request that the County initiate a study (“Water Conservation
Study”) to identify the opportunities for retrofits, such as high efficiency toilets,
showerheads, faucet aerators and washing machines, relative to the demand for ADUs.
Based on this Water Conservation Study, the County, Purveyors and community can
understand the anticipated amount of water available for new ADUs from water
conservation offsets and the expectations for amount of ADU development that will occur
within the Basin boundaries.

Request for Amendments to Chapter 19.07
As part of the County’s amendments to the ADU Ordinance, the Purveyors also request that

the County amend Chapter 19.07 (Plumbing Code) of the County Code to harmonize and
improve the County’s water conservation requirements. Based in part on the Water
Conservation Study, the County should update Chapter 19.06 to require new development,
including ADUs, to provide verifiable water offsets using Purveyor water data. These
amendments also should permit the County and Purveyors to track the long-term
effectiveness of retrofits by requiring monitoring and reporting and, if retrofits are
ineffective, mandating that the development implement additional water conservation
measures to achieve no net water use.

Further, the County should exercise its land use authority to require that water
conservation offset credits be harvested from within the purveyor service area boundary in
which the proposed development would occur. The County’s water offset program must
take into account local water resource constraints and improve local water supply
conditions. For example, retrofits to support new ADU development within Los Osos must
occur within the Basin to result in water supply improvements. By localizing water
conservation requirements and providing of long-term monitoring, the County will create a
more effective offset requirements and help promote sustainable management of the Basin.

Funding Mechanism to Support New Development
State law limits the ability of local agencies, including the Purveyors, from assessing impact

fees on ADUs to support new water supplies. (See Gov. Code § 65852.2(f).) These
restrictions on impact fees make it difficult for the Purveyors to recuperate the water
system and water supply costs associated with serving ADUs, while ensuring water
remains affordable to existing customers. Due to the significant supply constraints and
uncertainty of the long-term conditions within the Basin, the Purveyors need to explore
alternative funding strategies with the County in order for new development to pay its fair
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share of infrastructure and water supply costs. Otherwise, existing customers will
disproportionally bear the costs of new development.

Conclusion

In summary, the Purveyors emphasize the importance of incorporating monitoring data, as
well as Basin Metric trends, into the County’s land use planning and decisions about
allowing additional development. As set forth above, recent monitoring data and the Basin
Metrics both indicate that Basin conditions as a whole are static or worsening. The
Purveyors also are concerned that the ADU Ordinance’s proposed offset requirements may
impair the BMC’s ability to ensure a sustainable water supply for existing customers, or
even result in a deterioration of the Basin Metrics. Accordingly, the Purveyors request the
County to initiate a Water Conservation Study to evaluate whether the proposed offset
requirements would allow for new development under the ADU Ordinance in a manner
that is protective of Basin health. Finally, the Purveyors also request that the County
collaborate with the Purveyors to develop new funding strategies to support the
development of ADUs within the Basin and the anticipated growth associated with County’s
Los Osos Community Plan Update. Coordination among the County and Purveyors to secure
a sustainable and equitable funding scheme remains critical to achieving the Basin Plan
Goals, and providing a safe, clean, and affordable water supply to the Los Osos community.

The Purveyors appreciate this opportunity to provide comments on the County’s proposed
ADU Ordinance. Please let us know if you have any questions, or if you need more
information.

Sincerely,

Golden State Water Company

Digitally signed by Ron

Ron Munds '\DA:tr::jszozmos.zs

07:26:47 -07'00'

Los Osos Community Services District

H Digitally signed by Julie
J u l e McAdon

Date: 2021.08.27
McAdon 16:03:28 -07'00'

S&T Mutual Water Company

Cc: Dan Heimel, BMC Executive Director
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June 6, 2024

Subject: San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program Amendment
Number LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan). Item
Th 14a

Dear Commissioners,

| am Patrick McGibney, a 50-year resident of Los Osos and the Chair of the Los
Osos Sustainability Group. We are all long-term residents of Los Osos and
depend upon the Los Osos groundwater basin as our only source of community
water. We have for the last decade worked with Commission and County staff to
advocate for the protection of our basin and the sustainable management of
same. Your staff, in particular, have been generous with their limited time and we
have appreciated their patience and help. The staff report for this item makes
clear that the Los Osos Groundwater Basin has been badly mismanaged in the
past. We want assurance that it is not going to be mismanaged in the future. If it
fails, it will be the community of Los Osos that will suffer the consequences.

Certification of the Los Osos Community Plan (LOCP) is premature and should be
postponed until the public has had an adequate chance to analyze the evidence
and reasoning presented by the Staff in support of its approval. It is critical that the
sustainability of the water basin is shown with conclusive evidence, as this
Commission has required in the past.

After years of protecting our water basin, Commission Staff now claims that

recent monitoring evidence shows a trend toward sustainability because there
has been one year of above-average rainfall, which temporarily reduced outdoor
water use in the basin. “Trending toward sustainability” is a nebulous concept
and has never been identified by the Commission as an appropriate metric to
support new development in Los Osos. As confirmed in a technical
memorandum (TM) by Cleath Harris Group, by the Basin Management
Committee (BMC) annual reports, and by the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA), it could take years to achieve and confirm the
sustainability goals of this water basin. We could easily fall back into a

sustained drought beginning this winter.

The staff report indicates that the best available science has been used to

determine the state of our basin. We believe this is mistaken. The Steady State
model that has been utilized by the BMC thus far is not the best science nor the




most reliable tool for predicting the long-term sustainability of the basin (this is
only achieved by high-quality monitoring data and measurable physical
objectives to provide physical proof of actual Basin conditions). This is
evidenced by the fact that the BMC itself is transitioning to a Transient Model,
which is a more reliable system for long term planning (but all modeling can
only offer predictions, not conclusive evidence). The Steady State model relied
on historical data that does not factor in climate change, and in fact has never
led to stopping, let alone reversing, seawater intrusion, a prime indicator of an
overdrafted basin. The original model was never recalibrated by relying on
groundwater monitoring data, a fact that the BMC has acknowledged severely
undermines the model’s reliability, especially for long term planning. Therefore,
as a practical matter, the basin must be considered to remain in overdraft as it
has been for over 40 years.

In determining sustainability of a water basin, a basin plan must first characterize
the relationship among the different sustainable management criteria — the
sustainability goal, undesirable results, minimum thresholds, and measurable
objectives — and describe best management practices (BMP) for developing these
criteria as part of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan.

The Los Osos Basin Management Plan identifies as its first sustainability goal:
“Halt, or to the extent possible, reverse seawater intrusion.” As documented in the
staff report, “minimum thresholds in two of the four chloride- monitoring wells are
above the 100mg/l target (at 211 mg/l and 346 mg/l respectively)”, which is an
increase in chloride levels from the previous report. Rising chloride levels are an
undesirable result and a prime indicator of seawater intrusion.

The staff report also states that “four of the five nitrate- monitoring wells were

above the minimum thresholds of 10 mg/l (for an average of about 14 mg/l)”,
which is also considered an undesirable result for a sustainable basin. These
alone would indicate the Basin is not yet at a sustainable level to support
increased development.

It should be noted that a “Sustainable Yield” is a hypothetical calculation, and is
only as reliable as the metrics used to create it. The sustainable yield estimate
that the Staff used to conclude that the basin is trending towards sustainability is
unreliable because it was based on outdated meteorological estimates. The
existing Steady State model was based on the assumption that Los Osos
historically received an average rainfall of 17.5” per year, when in fact, during the
decade of 2011 to 2021, it only averaged 12.7”. Using the 17.5” assumption, and
with the projected completion of Program A & C wells (see Los Osos Basin Plan,
pages 231 & 239), the Sustainable Yield was increased to 2,760 AFY - well above
the 2,400 AFY mandated by the Stipulated Judgement for the first 5 years.

Moreover, the Program A & C wells had not yet been completed, and Los Osos
only received 12.7” of rainfall - or 72% of the predicted amount. The Cleath Harris



Group published a TM in 2017 and, taking climate change into account, estimated
a Sustainable Yield of 2,220 AFY with 80% of the predicted rainfall. 72% (12.7”) of
the predicted rainfall (17.5”) would lower that Sustainable Yield estimate to 1,987
AFY, creating a Basin Yield Metric of 101 - well above the stated BYM 73. In other
words, the Basin was being overdrafted by 7.5 million gallons per year - for 7
years - all because of estimation errors. And during those years, the chloride
levels continued to increase.

The Los Osos Basin Plan cites two ways to “balance” the Basin Yield Metric.
One way is to increase the Sustainable Yield, as was done in 2016, and the
other way is to decrease production, which happened recently due to abundant
rainfall. Both methods only produce predictions of temporary stabilization of the
Basin, but in no way show long-term sustainability.

According to the Staff report, the County is now using an estimated Sustainable

Yield of 2,380 AFY, a production rate of 1650 AFY, and a BYM of 69 to show the
Basin, in its judgment, is not in overdraft. The County and the BMC are limited
in their scope by the Stipulated Judgement and the Basin Plan, but this
Commission is not. As a State Agency, the Best Management Practices (BMP)
outlined in DWR’s SGMA program should serve as a guide in determining the
sustainability of the Los Osos Water Basin. It states, “SGMA does not
incorporate sustainable yield estimates directly into sustainable
management criteria. Basin wide pumping within the sustainable yield
estimate is neither a measure of, nor proof of, sustainability . . .
sustainable yield is only achieved when there are no undesirable results,
and...”Demonstration of the absence of undesirable results supports a
determination that basin is operating within its sustainable yield and, thus, that
the sustainability goal has been achieved.” Undesirable results would include
seawater intrusion and increasing chloride levels.

SGMA cautions that “A minimum threshold is the quantitative value that
represents the groundwater conditions at a representative monitoring site that,
when exceeded individually or in combination with minimum thresholds at other
monitoring sites, may cause an undesirable result(s) in the basin.” As cited
above, the staff report states that the “BMC’s 2023 report shows that the
chloride and nitrate metrics are above target values.” Those alone would
indicate that the Basin is not sustainable.

Allowing increased development under the presumption of anticipated water
neutrality, such as using the County’s Title 19 Offset-To-Build program, is just that
- presumptive. The text of Title 19 is riddled throughout with words like “assumed”,

“‘estimated”, “approximately”, words that don’t establish facts, but leave open
undetermined outcomes, gambling with the sustainability of our only water supply.

This is a risk we cannot afford to take.



As stated in the Staff report, “the Commission has not yet affiirmatively found
there to be an adequate water supply to serve new growth.” It is now forecast
that this coming year will usher in another La Nifa, with possible drought years
to follow. Therefore, it is premature to be certifying the Los Osos Community
Plan allowing a 1% growth rate.

The Los Osos Sustainability Group requests that the Commission postpone

certifying the Los Osos Community Plan and the proposed Estero Area

Plan (EAP) update until conclusive evidence affirms:

1) a sustainable water supply for the current population, and

2) any further intensification of water use would not cause adverse impacts
to ground and surface waters, including wetlands and all related habitats.

The evidence presented in the staff report does not support the conclusion that
the Los Osos Groundwater Basin can safely meet current water demand, let
alone support new development. A continuance would allow time (which has
not been allotted) for the staff’'s analysis to be carefully analyzed by an expert,
and for the Community to have needed time to review any updates or changes
in the LOCP, the GMO and the EAP.

Respectfully,

Patrick McGibney
Los Osos Sustainability Group, Chair



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:03 AM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal; Moroney, Ryan@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Please do NOT approve the upcoming LOCP at your meeting next week.

From: Alexandra Fairfield <alex.fairfield85@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 8:24 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Please do NOT approve the upcoming LOCP at your meeting next week.

Dear CCC--

As residents of Los Osos we are incredulous about the recent changes to the LOCP that are coming to
you for review. There is no data, no evidence, that our aquifer can support more development in Los
Osos. The BOS approval of the Anastazi development was clearly wrong, and now we are considering
this huge increase of 6400 homes?

We need time to assess what is the true status of our aquifer using hard numbers and reliable

models. As Los Osos residents, we have been conserving our OWN water use so that we will have Water
to Use in the future, not so that more houses can be built and will jeopardize water availability for the
whole community.

We support the LOGG request for a continuance. And, frankly, we would like clarification as to how such
plans for development can even get this far in the approval process. The Basin Management Committee
has also lost our trust.

Thank you,
Alexandra Fairfield
David Cheney

Los Osos, CA



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:03 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: meeting regarding Los Osos growth plan

From: Annie Kelley <aanyka@yahoo.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 11:35 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: meeting regarding Los Osos growth plan

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. | am asking that you postpone the vote on the Los Osos
Community Plan until the citizenry has been fully informed at an in-person Town Hall. which must include
Q&A and a clear explanation of the new, vague Growth Management Ordinance.

Annie Kelley

559-679-1111

aanyka@yahoo.com



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:40 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: Sylvie Asselin <asselin@mac.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:21 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Dear Commissioners,

As aresident of Los Osos, [ am requesting for a Continuance on the LOCP so that Los Osos and its citizens have
time to study up on the potential impacts of opening up development, and allowing engagement with our
community and County leadership as well as the Coastal Commission staff subject matter experts.

My understanding is that there is no recent 2024 data collection on the sustainability of our aquifer regarding
water levels, and salt water intrusion. Without scientific data, no one can make a blank statement that there is
sufficient water due to our recent rainfalls.

Your decisions impact everyone living in Los Osos: farmers, businesses, residents on sewer or not-its all one
water basin. We are already paying a lot in taxes and in water sewage taxes, an increase in development will
require additional infrastructure which will need to be payed out by current residents who have already had
to pocket out additional tax money. Current residents are asked to be water-wise and to reduce our
consumption. The 1% development increase plan will take away from our consumption. Plus quotas for the
new development sees no limit in water usage (toilets, hotels, restaurants).

Before we do anything, it should be established for how many more years the aquifer will sustain current
resident before new development is added. As aresident and county taxpayer, it is only normal that | want
my primary needs (water) be met by the existing aquifer. There are no guarantees on our current weather
system and we could easily fall into years of drought again.

Please consider a Continuance on the LOPC so that a decision is made by measurable scientific data versus
hearsay.

Sylvie Asselin
1162 2nd Street
Los Osos, CA 93402



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:41 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1 part G los osos community plan

Get Outlook for iOS

From: adrian2u <adrian2u@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:15:39 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1 part G los osos community plan

To whom it may concern,

In light of our water table and the many other issues of concern that development causes, such as
increased traffic, negative impact on wild life etc. and to preserve the character of our coastal
community, we oppose the development of multiple units of high density housing. The community plan
requires much additional consideration and thought before action is taken. Please consider delaying this
matter until concerns have been adequately addressed and rectified. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Mrs. Ayers

This e-mail, and any files transmitted with it, are intended only for the person or entity to which itis
addressed and may contain confidential, protected, and/or privileged material. Any review, re-
transmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon this information by
persons or entities other than the intended recipient, is prohibited. If you received this in error, please
contact the sender and delete the material from any computer.



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:03 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Postpone meeting

From: Robert Conlen <conlenbob@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:47 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Postpone meeting

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you for holding a meeting in Morro Bay. Please postpone the vote on the Los Osos Community Plan until the
citizens have been fully informed at an in-person Town Hall, including a Q&A and clear explanation of the new
Growth Management Ordinance. Hopefully we can learn how new growth can occur after decades of landscape
watering restrictions and bans on new construction, after a mere two years of adequate rainfall.

Thank you,

Bob Conlen

Los Osos

Sent from my iPad



6/7/24, 1:51 PM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda ltem Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-.

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Brandwine Glenn <brandwineg@gmail.com>
Thu 6/6/2024 8:25 PM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

I would really very much appreciate much more research to be done on the impact of the this
proposal to be done. Water, trash, solution, schooling and general service's need to taken into
consideration. We can barely take care of what we have and adding more housing will deplet our
community more then we can handle. And these people who will help with these service (fire, police,
trash, groceries, pharmaceutical, medical etc...) won't be able to afford the cost to live here. We can
not take care of the people we already have in our community. Let alone fix our roads including the
unincorporated. The sewer roads are falling apart. And we are going to allow more traffic on our
roads? The speeding is out of control. Because we don't have the police force to man it. So you want
more people and more problems? Fix what is in front of us first. More police, more fire fighters, more
room in our schools. Incentive for Dr's to want to open an office here. Better super market ( not dollars
tree, you think people who shop dollar tree will be able to afford housing here at $1,000.00 plus per
bedroom?) before you ask us to accept more people? Fix our roads, charge people to visit Montana de
or and then maybe we will think this is not a bad idea. Instead you want overload a town that San | u is
county barely helps so they can make more money. That is really all that Metter anymore. So sad. | will
probably be dead in 20 years or less so why should | care? Because | have put a lot of my heart in this
community that is very special

Brandi Glenn

35+ year resident

JUN 07 202+

CALrvrivIA
COASTAL COMMISSION
CENTRAL COAST AREA

about:blank 11



6/7/24, 9:23 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda ltem Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-..

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Lenny Castellaneta <lennycastellaneta@yahoo.com>
Thu 6/6/2024 7:30 PM
To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

To Whom It May Concern,

I'm writing this letter to request a continuance of the Coastal Commission’s consideration of the Los
Osos Community Plan currently set for June 13th, 2024. More time is needed for expert consideration
of the complex water supply issues. (Long story short, there's simply not enough of water here.)

Sincerely, RECE'VED

Lenny Castellaneta J
2627 Rodman Drive UNO
Los Osos, CA 93402 7 2024

CALIFURNIA
COASTAL COMMI
CENTRAL con«sriséﬁ

about:blank 1M



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:46 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Allowing 1 % new construction a year

From: Elita chaffin <elitajazz@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:44 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Allowing 1 % new construction a year

Hello

My ruminations regarding approval of opening up building in Los osos.

Does the proposed 98 home development that was approved by the county board of supervisors last
October fall subject to that 1 % growth rate ?

That would fill a quota of almost two years of time . At least we would have more accumulated H20 data
In two years.

Consider that we have only had 2 years of good rain, less time than the 3+. years we were way under
average. Furthermore We have not built more rain storage opportunities for our area which should have
been a priority.

If you pass this 1% prematurely and we find ourselves looking at needing state water to sustain our
community , who pays for bringing state water to Los Osos ? We already struggle with the huge increase
of our sewer tax without getting that cost added to our bills.

Note: | am not against growth but let's be extremely cautious moving forward. Why can't it be .5 % growth
? Slow and cautious and continually reassessing our sustainability for healthy growth. .

Is our road infrastructure substantial enough to sustain 60 new families (120+ added cars) ayear? Who
pays for more signals or widening if and when necessary?

I hope you will consider all the potential hurdles as you consider this proposal for our little town.

We are depending on your commission to make a wise decision as we all move forward.

Thank you.

Elita Chaffin

31 yearresident of Los Osos.

Elitajazz@gmail.com



6/7/24, 9:39 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-..

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Candice Childers <candicechilders1@gmail.com>
Thu 6/6/2024 10:13 PM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Hello,

| would like to express my concerns in regards to a sudden influx in allowing development without
addressing current and relevant issues to the los Osos community development plan. Please consider
postponing the vote on this matter so details can be addressed throughly.

Thanks, RECEIVED
JUN 07 2024

CALIrunnIA
COASTAL COMMISSION
ENTRAL COAST AREA

about:blank 11



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Jeff Cole <Jeff.Cole@DimensionHospitality.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:35 PM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program Amendment Number / LCP-3-

SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)

Please consider this as my written request to postpone the vote, scheduled for June 13, 2024. The community
was not provided enough information or time to get the full story on lifting the building moratorium in Los Osos.

Thank you.

JEFF COLE
2148 Inyo Street
Los Osos, CA 93402

M 619.895.1038
0: 805.439.0127

Notice of Confidentiality: The information contained in this communication is intended exclusively for the individual(s) to whom it was addressed. The communication
and any attachments may contain proprietary, privileged, confidential information, and may be legally privileged or otherwise exempt from disclosure. If it has been
sent to you in error, or not the named addressee, you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy, or disseminate this message or any part of it. If you have received
this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by email and delete all copies of the message.



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

From: Connie Grant <conniekris@hotmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:29 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Dear California Coastal Commission,
| appreciate and value the regulation put forth by the Commission.

am writing this to urge you to postpone the vote on the Los Osos Community Plan until there is
assurance/ data that substantiates that water resources for this development is sustainable.

Please take the time to ensure a sustainable water supply for existing residences as well as future
building in Los Osos.

Thank You for your consideration!
Connie Grant
conniekris@hotmail.com




Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 10:02 AM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: Dale Norrington <dalenorrington@me.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:56 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Please postpone this decision to allow more time for public scrutiny and discussion. | for one need more time to
understand water supply situation. | would also like to hear from more objective, disinterested hydrology experts if
possible.

Thank you,
Dale Norrington

RDNorrington Lic. # 839088
805-458-5034
dalenorrington@me.com
rdnorrington.com

2323 alexander

los osos, ca 93402



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:03 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Request for Continuance of Decision — San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal

Program Amendment Number LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community
Plan) InboxSearch for all messages with label Inbox

From: Denise Taylor <dtaylorphotos@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 11:53 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Request for Continuance of Decision — San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program Amendment Number LCP-
3-SL0O-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan) InboxSearch for all messages with label Inbox

Dear California Coastal Commission,

We are contacting you to respectfully request a continuance of the Coastal Commission's consideration
of the Los Osos Community Plan (LOCP) currently set for June 13, 2024.

We believe there is a need for more public input. Many of our neighbors were not aware of this meeting
and need more time to to understand the implications of the plan, and contribute their input.

More time is needed for expert investigation of the current water supply issues. Most residents have
been practicing extreme water conservation over these many years (drought tolerant landscaping, use of
rain barrel systems, etc. ) We have had two good years of rainfall, but many, many years of drought
before this (2007-2009, 2011-2017 and 2020-2022). Itis very likely we will again experience drought years
in the future. residents need to know if this has been taken into consideration in planning for
development, both in regards to the groundwater supply as well as potentially more seawater intrusion
should the groundwater be depleted.

The infrastructure supporting new construction will need to be created, and the community needs to
know what plans are in place to address the increased auto traffic due to increased development. There
are only two, two lane roads leading into and out of Los Osos: South Bay Blvd and Los Osos Valley Road,
and only five traffic lights in town. Can these two roads suffice if there is a need for residents to evacuate
quickly, such as a natural disaster like wildfire or earthquake, or an accident at Diablo Nuclear Plant or
the potential future battery storage facility in Morro Bay? Especially if there is an increase in population
and autos due to large development? Also, an increase in population would entail a greater police and
fire department, as well as schools. Have these been considered? And how will the increased
infrastructure be paid for? Will there be new financial demands made on current residents for this
increase in infrastructure?

Residents need to be made aware how the potential developments will affect the town's lifestyle and
ambiance. Currently, the town enjoys a semi-rural atmosphere, few sidewalks and street lights, lots of
wildlife and outdoor activities, and a night sky with little light pollution. How will the current residents'

1



lifestyle be affected by increased development? Will this development turn the town into just another
suburban, cookie cutter bedroom community?

Your upcoming decision is a very important one and will affect the lives and welfare of the residents of
Los Osos for years to come. By agreeing to a continuance and engaging in more public outreach and
public participation, residents can be partners in the growth and management of Los Osos.

Sincerely,

Denise and Leonard Taylor



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:33 PM

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

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:23 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Dear Coastal Commission,

In the event a continuance is not granted for this hearing, here are our public comments regarding the
Los Osos Community Plan:

We believe more time is needed for expert investigation of the current water supply issues. Most
residents have been practicing extreme water conservation over these many years (drought tolerant
landscaping, use of rain barrel systems, etc. ) We have had two good years of rainfall, but many, many
years of drought before this (2007-2009, 2011-2017 and 2020-2022). It is very likely we will again
experience drought years in the future. residents need to know if this has been taken into consideration
in planning for development, both in regards to the groundwater supply as well as potentially more
seawater intrusion should the groundwater be depleted. In your May 24 recommendation letter, you
recommend 1% per year allowable development. Does this pertain to both single family homes or
multiple family buildings and mobile home parks? And will this recommendation be rescinded in the
future if development and drought adversely affect the groundwater reserves?

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
quickly, such as a natural disaster like wildfire or earthquake, or an accident at Diablo Nuclear Plant or at
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
wildlife, outdoor and artistic activities, and a night sky with little light pollution. How will the current



residents' lifestyle be affected by increased development? Will this development turn the town into just
another suburban, cookie cutter bedroom community?

We very much appreciate the Coast Commission's efforts to sustainable long range coastal planning,
but as lifelong California residents, we are apprehensive of a decision to begin building and increasing
the population now, after two years of abundant rainfall, knowing another long term drought is most
likely in our near future.

Thank you for considering our comments.

Sincerely,

Denise and Leonard Taylor



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Tim and Maureen Dudley <dudley1099@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:43 PM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Los Osos Moratorium

Please seriously consider the true lack of water available for building more homes in Los Osos. If we look
carefully at the data we can't rely upon seasonal rainfall or the promise of state water projects. | know
developers are anxious to build but is it sustainable?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android




Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:05 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Los Osos Community Plan Vote

From: Emily Kaskela <emkaskela72 @gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:04 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos Community Plan Vote

Dear Commissioners, Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay! | ask that you postpone the vote of the
Los Osos Community Plan until the community has been fully informed and brought up to date on SLO
County's vague Growth Management Ordinance. Los Osos needs an adequate water supply first, with ALL
Basin Management Plan water metric goals met.

Sincerely,
Emily Kaskela
Los Osos, CA

Sent from my iPad



6/7/24, 9:40 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-...

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Mike Haley <mhaley500@gmail.com>

Fri 6/7/2024 6:26 AM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

| just now heard about this committee agenda item and feel this should be postponed as it is such an
important and complex issue and needs more public input and discussion.

Yes we have had two good years of rain but that should not blind us to the very real issue of our water
tables being in a precarious condition - adding households and businesses will further tip us over into
far reaching problems. At minimum decisions like this need more input and discussion - so please
postpone this agenda item.

Thank you from a concerned resident

Mike Haley RECEIVED

1600 4th Street
Los Osos 93402 JUN 07 2024

CALICURNIA
COASTAL COMMISSION
CENTRAL COAST AREA

about:blank



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 4:33 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: POSTPONE the VOTE!!I!!  You obviously have biased information, and are

pandering to developers The Los Osos area is a fragile area with LIMITED reso A full
enviornmental impact study has NOT been completed...Facts are not altered by liesur...

From: Linda Harrison <joshsnina@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 4:20 PM
To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Osos area is a fragile area with LIMITED reso A full enviornmental impact study has NOT been completed...Facts are not
altered by liesurces....



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:39 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: R. Larry Hatchett <larry.hatchett@icloud.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:08 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

My wife and | have been in Los Osos for over thirty years, owning a single-family home. We hope itis not too late to
comment on this agenda item.

The aquifer for our community has been depleted after the decades-long drought that we just experienced.
We ask The Commission to delay their decision to allow us as residents to present more information.
Thank you!

April and Robert Hatchett

1953 Donna Avenue

Los Osos CA 93402
805 441-0001



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:39 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fwd: Postpone the meeting

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Pamela Hostetter <p_hostetter@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:28:49 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Postpone the meeting

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. | am asking that you postpone the vote on the Los Osos
Community Plan until the citizenry has been fully informed at an in-person Town Hall. which must include Q&A
and a clear explanation of the new, vague Growth Management Ordinance.

Pamela S Hostetter

Sent from my iPhone



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Jennifer Cole <jennifer.cole.4553@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:05 AM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Postpone the Vote on Los Osos Water Use

Good Morning- It recently came to my attention that the CC plans on voting on a measure that could
affect the future of Los Osos and its residents for decades to come. The homeowners who live here and
will be impacted by this decision deserve to be presented the data that would reverse a decades-long
moratorium on building. The scant information I’ve seen is in no way convincing that conditions have
changed substantially enough to lift the moratorium. Please postpone any decision until Los Osans get a
chance to weigh in.

Jennifer Cole
2148 Inyo Street

Sentfrom my iPhone



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:41 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fwd: Los Osos Water Basin

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Michele King <ososking2 @yahoo.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:14:26 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos Water Basin

Dear commissioners,
Please postpone the vote of the Los Osos community building plan until the community has time to be
completely informed of all the ramifications. | am a 40 year resident and as far as I’m concerned, we do

not have adequate water to go forward with all the building that’s being suggested.

Michele King

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone




June 7, 2024
To: Coastal Commission

RE: San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment—LOCP
Los Osos Community Plan
ltem Th14a—Thursday June 13, 2024 Meeting

Dear Commissioners and Coastal Staff:

| am a long time property owner in Los Osos and | have a significant concern
about a staff suggested modification to the proposed update.

First though, | would like to commend you for recognizing that the community
does have a sustainable water supply for the limited development that is
proposed, and please do not be swayed by the small but vocal minority that
have been making the false assertions regarding basin overdraft. The facts do
not support their position.

The concern | have is the proposed language regarding development within
the PCA (Priority Conservation Areas). Parcels within the PCA under the
approved HCP, and original draft LCP update, have limited development
potential, in exchange for significant dedication of conservation area within
the parcel and payment of significant fees at $1.20/disturbed SF, along with
other required mitigation.

As an example, a parcel | own of 4.8 acres would have a maximum
disturbance envelope of 30,000SF and require payment of $36,000 to the HCP
fund and dedicate the remainder of the site as conservation area. This
represents an extreme mitigation cost, but it does allow a minimum of
development on the parcel.

Now, however, CCC staff is recommending a complete taking of the parcel
with the following language in Exhibit 3, page 36 of 137:



Development located within the LOHCP Priority Conservation Areas as
shown on Figure 7-39 shall be limited to uses dependent on the habitat
therein (e.g., habitat restoration, scientific research, low-intensity public
interpretive access, etc.), that shall be sited and designed to protect against
significant disruption of habitat values. All other development shall be
prohibited in the LOHCP Priority Conservation Areas, except for land divisions
that are more protective of the habitats therein than the current lot
configurations.

This position/amendment represents a clear and irrefutable “Taking” and will
certainly lead to significant litigation from the numerous property owners
within the PCA. Given the language and requirements under the approved
HCP, there is absolutely no justification for CCC taking this position regarding
the PCA parcels. | urge you to correct this language prior to the Commission’s
approval of the LCP update for Los Osos. Perhaps this language is simply an
error by staff, as page 27 of the staff report does point out “some type of
development must be provided in order to stave off regulatory takings claims”.
The language is certainly in conflict with the proposed modification.

Please do the right thing and correct this taking, prior to approval of the LOCP.

Respectfully submitted,

Rick Kirk
rick.kirk52@gmail.com
805-459-4101



mailto:rick.kirk52@gmail.com

Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:39 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment to Agenda 6/13/24 meeting - Los Osos Community Plan
Attachments: 21_0602 California Coastal Commision_LO Community Plan comments.pdf

From: jakeofarnold <jakeofarnold@aol.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:17 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Fwd: Public Comment to Agenda 6/13/24 meeting - Los Osos Community Plan

Believe | may have directed this email sent earlier today to the wrong address. Itis a bit unclear what the
proper email is to send advance comments. Doubtful | can attend the meeting in person.

Thank you

Robert Kreps

Sentfrom my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jeff <jakeofarnold@aol.com>

Date: June 7, 2024 at 9:41:39 AM PDT

To: executivestaff@coastal.ca.gov

Subject: Public Comment to Agenda 6/13/24 meeting - Los Osos Community Plan

| reside in Los Osos and provided input to the intitial development of the LOs Osos
Community Plan.

Water was and continues to be a major concern. | take exception that it is well
understood that suffient recharge is occuring to rebuild our acquifer. Notably the water
purveyers have recently voiced concern plus at least one has undertook a feasibility
study to connect into existing pipeline supplies from others during wet years to help with
the problem. Non of this has been determined feasible. Allowing new building to occur
before the Basin Committee, along with the water purveyors agree that the agreed upon
metrics have been met is not in the communities best interest.

Further, | submitted comments to you and your staff in 2021 raising my concern
regarding the inadequate nature of addressing current drainage issues that affect the
estuary and roads. Our roads are primarily with any sidewalks or separation for
pedestrians. Safety evaluations taking this into account were not done. Adding more
traffic and people will just exasborate the problem. As recently as this month, County
Public Works noted they were not aware of any Capital Improvement projects regarding
drainage issues. Protection of the bay and safety of our community members and
visitors should be of paramount concern.



California Coastal Commission June 5, 2021
District Supervisor

Central Coast Office

725 Front Street

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 RE: Los Osos Community Plan Review

Attn: Mr. Kevin Kahn:

The Los Osos land use is presently managed under the 2009 Estero Area Plan. The Los Osos Community
Plan(LOCP) has received extensive input by various stakeholders prior to the County Board of Supervisor’s
approval in December 2020. | have been generally supportive with the County’s growth plans until |
learned no review was done regarding impacts on existing neighborhoods with “Local” streets; nor to the
impact to bicyclists and pedestrians.

Further, as | am sure you are aware, the neighborhoods adjacent to the bay were required to install a
sewer system in place of the septic systems that had been initially used due to concerns with pollutants to
the Estuary. This was completed around mid-2015. The health of the Estuary is a primary goal of the
LOCP. While there is recognition and discussion of the issue surrounding surface drainage, there is no
defined metrics regarding surface drainage to the Estuary leaving it to the County to determine impacts
needing required mitigation and subject to funding.

The LOCP affirms that health and quality of life is an important SLO County land use policy - Goal 1,
Objective 1 “Maintain and protect a living environment that is safe, healthful, and pleasant for all
residents”. In addition, the California Complete Streets Act and SB 743 both encourage increased use of
Active Transportation modes to help achieve climate commitments, preserve our environment, improve
our health, safety and livability. The San Luis Obispo Countywide Compact underpins this commitment
with the goal; “Strengthen community quality of life” including having a “resilient infrastructure, services
and resources”. However, with regard to both multiuser street use and surface drainage to the Estuary,
both issues are left without specific commitments to ensure the quality of life is not diminished with the
proposed new development.

The El Morro and Cuesta lower-level residential areas are older systems of streets that are depended
upon for all modes of travel, vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians. There are generally no sidewalks nor
separate bike paths. The “Local” network street system was not examined in any detail during the review
process although the Community raised neighborhood traffic safety as a major concern in public
meetings. Secondly, many of these same streets receive storm runoff throughout the winter months,
making the streets unsafe/unusable for the alternate transportation users for periods of time until the
County dispatches maintenance to clean up the areas. This generally takes several days after a storm
passes based upon priorities they have. All this urban runoff travels down into the Estuary untreated and
unabated.

| also take exception to the statement of the last paragraph of Section 8.3.1 of the LOCP. While this debris
may be considered “cosmetic” for vehicle travel, it significantly alters public pedestrian and bicyclist
safety....to the point the areas are avoided or result in increased vehicle use. Both County Planning and



Public Works stated their Circulation element was focused on impact to vehicle flow without any regard

to use by bicycles or pedestrians. Neither the Bicycle Advocacy Committee nor the County Parks and Rec

Trails group examine impacts to the community on streets today or with future proposed growth of the
plan. County is currently performing another Circulation study but is still only focused on understanding
the new growth will have to existing vehicle travel. There was an addition in the LOCP (Program CIR 2.3)
to develop, incorporate and implement a Pedestrian Plan and Active Pedestrian Plan without any time
specific commitment to accomplish them. The County Board of Supervisors were requested to include
language that these were completed prior to new development without success.

One of the CCC’s primary three strategic goals is “Maximize Public Access and Recreation”. Chapter 6 of
the LOCP is devoted to coastal access. However, most of these are accessed by the general public by
vehicles traveling on “Local” streets. As stated above, no review was conducted regarding anticipated
increase of traffic volume due to public use nor ensuring appropriate parking is available at each site. The
residential streets have minimal on-street parking and road edges are inconsistent, even for walking. Los
Osos is targeted to have a segment of the California Coastal Trail designated passing through it. Again,
there was no review of potential impact to these alternate transportation users on the residential streets
being designated part of the CCT system.

The LOCP states “these may include drainage improvements at various locations in the community”
without any specific metrics as to what triggers these improvements and apportioning cost mechanism to
existing vs. new development. If new development were not approved, would the improvement be
warranted? The document cites various funding sources along with their funding approval provisions.
Existing residential and commercial property owners should not be saddled with extra improvement costs
to satisfy the County’s need to plan for future population growth.

Policy EN-2; Programs EN-2.1 LO runoff control; EN-2.2 LO urban watershed management; EN-2.3
Community Drainage Improvements all identify the problem of surface water runoff. Basically, these are

|”

known drainage problem areas since 1998 that have had little resolution. Adding new “infill” building as
well as the larger Morro Shores Mixed Use area prospective development, including a planned new road
segment, will contribute to the surface runoff problem. While the Land Use designations are being

proposed, there is no oversight if several small projects or a larger project gets proposed.

| hope this information is useful in the CCC review of the LOCP and can help ensure these concerns can be
satisfactorily mitigated to allow smart growth.

Thank you for your consideration of these important points. | would also like to be on the list to know
when this topic comes before the CCC board for review and approval. (jakeofarnold@aol.com)

Robert Kreps



| have attached my 2021 input for ease of review. Unfortunately, the public has had no
opportunity for the last 4-5 years to provide any further comment while the County
worked with Fish & Wildlife making various changes to satisfy those parties and
apparently these drainage and public road safety issues seem to have been lost.

| request that the CCC defer final ruling allowing the County time to provide clear
understanding to the public and to the Coastal Commision on these topics.

Robert Kreps



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:32 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a

From: Laurie Peterson <forevergilda@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:16 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a

| am a resident of Los Osos, CA.

| would like any vote on proposed Los Osos buildout to be postponed until a town hall
meeting, with full presentation of the proposed buildout and a Q&A period that is not
only live but Zoomed, aired or on Google Meet, be scheduled with ample notice for Los
Osos residents to watch or attend.

Laurie Peterson
535 Rosina Drive
Los Osos, CA 93402



June 7, 2024

Dear California Coastal Commission,

The potential approval of development in Los Osos comes as more than a bit
of surprise, in fact it comes as a shock. We have made every effort to
conserve water assiduously for two primary reasons, (1) to make every effort
on our part to reverse the overdraft on our essential aquifer which supports
our existence on this precious landscape, and (2) to do our very best to live
with our droughts, which will continue to worsen as climate change
conditions continue to worsen living conditions for all of us. Considering this
to hear that the California Coastal Commission is about to allow more
development on an environmentally sensitive landscape is incongruous.

If the aquiferisn’t an issue, and there is no sea-water intrusion, then why are
the residents, including our household, making efforts and in some cases
being required to conserve water? Development at all costs is really setting up
the small community of Los Osos for utter disaster down the road. A 1%
growth rate of 60 houses per year would absolutely balloon the development
beyond any sensitive aquifer can support, least of all the one that Los Osos
depends on for its daily household use. If you have come up with this desired
rate of growth, do you also have data to show that water is increasing at that
rate? Furthermore, at that new extraction rate will the aquifer continue to be
replenished above its currently depleted levels?

Los Osos does not have the road infrastructure to support such anincrease in
growth without destruction of habitat and some serious eminent domain
issues. Developing Los Osos as a business area is contrary to why many of us
moved to Los Osos. Most of us are willing to drive to San Luis Obispo to
conduct business and continue to maintain the rural atmosphere of Los Osos.

After decades of the California Coastal Commission acknowledging the
depletion of both the quantity and quality of the Los Osos groundwater, your
staff's sudden reversal has tremendous ramifications. Please delay your
decision to give an opportunity for the public to be informed of this major
policy shift. We are requesting you postpone any decision to give the public



the necessary time to review this significant, controversial policy shift and the
voluminous documents associated with it. Your own staff cited the difficulty of
reviewing over 700 pages of reports, the public are volunteers who need to do
that same review and we need more time. We urge you to continue this
hearing to allow us that courtesy.

Sincerely,

Meenakshi Nagendran, PhD, DVM

James Bland, PhD

James Bland, PhD



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:58 AM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: Lori Campanile <lcampyl@comcast.net>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:39 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Please postpone your decision to allow more time for public input. This is a huge document and the citizens of Los
Osos are desperate to protect the water they rely upon. The science does not support more usage. Again, please
postpone your decision to allow everyone more time to understand all the ramifications of this decision.

Thank you for your consideration,

Lori Campanile

Resident of Los Osos

Sent from my iPad



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 10:34 AM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: Los Osos - upcoming discussion

Get Outlook for iOS

From: M WhitneyHafft <coastoilartist@aol.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 10:30:19 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos - upcoming discussion

I WOULD LIKE TO HAVE THIS DISCUSSION POSTPONED LONG ENOUGH FOR THE
COUNTY
TO ORGANIZE A SERIOUS DISCUSSION WITHIN THE COMMUNITY OF LOS OSOS.

THIS HAS NOT HAPPENED FOR A FEW YEARS NOW.

WHY DO THEY WANT TO SKIP OVER HAVING A PUBLIC DISCUSSION WITH THE
PEOPLE WHO LIVE HERE???

THANK YOU.

MARJORIE WHITNEY
LOS OSOS RESIDENT AND TAX PAYER



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

From: funwithcook@gmail.com <funwithcook@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 11:38 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

To the Coastal commission and who it may concern

I’m writing in to ask for a postponement of your vote!

Please we as a local residents have not had time to review all of the document.

Please postpone your vote 1% could have huge issues on WATER, TRAFFIC, Local RESOURCES, please 1% really?
That’s huge for this small community without having water and proper roads and proper resources.

Postpone your VOTE

Thank you

Martine Lynch

Los Osos

Sent from my iPhone



6/7/24, 9:24 AM Requesting Continuance of Los Osos Community Plan - CentralCoast@Coastal - Outlook

Requesting Continuance of Los Osos Community Plan RECE'VED

Mary Sturm <mary@sturmlaw.net> JUN 07 2024

Thu 6/6/2024 7:42 PM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> COAS‘T’Engﬂﬂf‘
Coastal Commission, CENTRAL COAST?‘\SF;EE

| understand the Coastal Commission will meet 6/13 regarding the proposal for the LOCP.
| am requesting a continuance of the Coastal Commission’s consideration of the LOCP.

My understanding is that the current water supply in our community is unsustainable and further
housing development is being considered as part of the LOCP.

Please provide opportunities for the public to weigh in on this!
Respectfully,

Mary Sturm
2550 Quail Ln, Los Osos

Sent from my iPad

about:blank

1mn



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:15 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Los Osos

From: Julie McGuigan <julesmctwig@hotmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:14 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. As a resident of Los Osos, it is still unclear on how the changes in
the Community Action Plan willimpact our neighborhoods and population. There has been little outreach locally
to share the details of the Plan or garner feedback. | am asking that you postpone the vote on the Los Osos
Community Plan until the citizenry has been fully informed at an in-person Town Hall. which must include Q&A
and a clear explanation of the new, vague Growth Management

Full Name: Julie McGuigan
Email: julesmctwig@hotmail.com

On Behalf Of: my community

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. As a resident of Los Osos, itis still unclear on how the changes in
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

Public comments submitted to the Coastal Commission are public records that may be disclosed to members of
the public or posted on the Coastal Commission’s website. Do not include information, including personal
contact information, in comments submitted to the Coastal Commission that you do not wish to be made public.
Any written materials, including email, that are sent to commissioners regarding matters pending before the
Commission must also be sent to Commission staff at the same time.

Sent from my iPhone



6/7/24, 9:39 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda ltem Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-.

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Cynthia Mein <calmcmein@gmail.com>
Fri 6/7/2024 6:20 AM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Hello,

Please postpone your decision on the Los Osos Community Plan until further study and input from the
community is heard.

Thank you,

Cynthia Mein RECEIVED

2181 Fresno Street
Los Osos, 93402 JUN 07 2024

CALIFOHNIA
COASTAL COMMISS|
ENTRAL COAST An%r:

about:blank

mn



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:40 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: Lifting building moratorium in Los Osos

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Melanie Mollgaard <mhmollgaard@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:26:04 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Lifting building moratorium in Los Osos

I am very concerned about the sudden change of direction on the Los Osos building moratorium. | would
like to see more information about this decision.

Thank you,
Melanie Mollgaard



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Theresa Mortilla <tmortilla@icloud.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 7:32 AM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Postpone vote on lifting moratorium to build in Los Osos

Good morning,

As a 30 year home owner in Los Osos | am requesting that increased research and investigation on our
water capacity be conducted. | can assure you that Los Osos does not have the resources to add more
homes, hotels to an already reduced water table.

Thank you,
Theresa A. Mortilla, MA, LMFT



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:32 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Los Osos Community Plan

From: Lyn Matasci <lynmatasci@yahoo.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:20 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos Community Plan

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. As a resident of Los Osos, | still find it unclear how the
changes in the Community Action Plan will impact our neighborhoods and population. There has been little
local outreach to share the details of the plan or garner feedback. | am asking that you postpone the vote on
the Los Osos Community Plan until the citizenry has been fully informed at an in-person Town Hall which must
include Q&A and a clear explanation of the new, vague Growth Management Ordinance.

Thank you,

Nancy Lyn Matasci
1653 6th St.

Los Osos, CA



6/7/24, 9:40 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda tem Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-S§L0-21-0028-1-.

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Ellen Nelson <ellen@barncatservices.com>
Fri 6/7/2024 7:38 AM
To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Coastal Commission,

| am a resident of Los Osos and am writing to request that you please delay consideration of the Los
Osos Community Plan until more public information sessions are held to ensure that the residents of Los
Osos are truly informed of the provisions of the plan and the consequences for our aquifer.

| understand that the state of the Los Osos aquifer is in question and can be difficult to determine with
certainty, however the risks of exceeding carrying capacity in this situation are significant. It is my
understanding that seawater intrusion is a significant threat to the aquifer, as is nitrate pollution of
existing wells from the continued existence of septic systems throughout the Basin, specifically Cabrillo
Estates. Optimistic modelling is NO guarantee of sustainable water supplies. Continued monitoring of
seawater intrusion and nitrate levels is required to provide hard data to determine when the Basin is truly

sustainable.

Please support Science and Public Awareness. We need more time for public education and more time
for data collection and analysis. A more detailed understanding of whether the Los Osos Water Basin is
truly sustainable is required before approving the Community Plan.

Thank you for your hard work and concern for our precious resources,
-ellen

Ellen Nelson

2249 Inyo St

Los Osos CA 93402
820 346-8559

“We are here to help each other get through this thing, whatever it is.”
— gut,

about:blank

mn



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:40 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Lifting of the Los Osos building moratorium

From: Carolyn Niblick <carolyn.niblick@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:20 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Lifting of the Los Osos building moratorium

The members of the Coastal Commision

First of all, thanks for selecting a local venue for this important meeting. It will give folks a chance
to make their voices heard and will add to the transparency of the decision-making process.

| appeal to you to postpone your decision until more local people can become aware of and
informed about the proposal and can ask relevant questions. Many friends who are usually well-
informed about such matters were completely unaware that the decision on lifting (or amending) the
moratorium was imminent. The local newspaper ( The Tribune) has reduced publication to just two
days a week and the online edition is too expensive for many members of our community. | heard
about the Commision meeting on our local NPR station just last week.

| believe that the decision to lift - or amend - the moratorium should be delayed. We have had
two good rain years but we have lived here long enough
(25 years) to know that the good years can often be followed by another multi year dry spell. And our
aquifer is still dealing with salt water intrusion.

People who have been diligent in their water conservation efforts may not be so willing to
conserve in the future if it means our town will be built up and out to such a degree that the intimate,
friendly nature of Los Osos is lost. 60 new homes/ year is a lot! And the two bedroom/ 1 bath units
should have their water usage monitored and charged for just like the rest of us. And, who's to say
that the new homes will be occupied by community and county residents? At the prices homes now
command in the area, | fear that most will be bought by wealthier folks moving up from the LA area or
down from the Bay Area. Local residents and workers still won't have affordable housing that fits their
budget

| urge you to take these concerns and those of my fellow community members into consideration
before making any final determination on the future of our town.

Thank you for your consideration of these and other important concerns of those of us who call the
Central Coast our home.

Carolyn Niblick and David Cox
1288 15th St.

Los Osos, Ca 93402
503-816-1976



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:40 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo

County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Linde Owen <lindeaowen@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:20:12 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

California Coastal Commission Hearing
June 13, 2024

Item 14: SLO County Local Coastal Program Amendment Number LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos
Community Plan)

Dear Commissioners,

As you consider approval of the Los Osos Community Plan, | ask you all to consider moving this item to
your September meeting scheduled for Morro Bay again.

The community has had little to no public presentation of this current Plan after the 20 some years of its
development.

| have 26 years watching (and participating) in Advisory Council and County processes for Los Osos and
urge you to recall that the Sewer came about because our water basin was experiencing Sea Water
Intrusion and increasing nitrates. But it was also losing supply from the lower Basin, as we increased
development (1240 homes were permitted between 1983 and 1989) and focused on the ‘Sewer War'.

The fact that little was done from the 1970's forward to protect our water resources until the formation of
the BMC should make all of you wary that the damage has not repaired itself and while we may be
‘trending towards Sustainability’, we still have the SWI and barely reducing Nitrate pollution at almost the
same levels that required sewering the central part of town.



While the County may feel that 1.3% growth by using Title 19 offset credits is reasonable, they've done
little to guarantee that new growth will not impact our Basin recovery. The BMC meetings have
concentrated on moving well extraction eastward, yet the Basin is finite. In 2017, a severe drought year, it
is notable that we lost any ‘sustainability’ that was anticipated. Two good years of rainfall reduced Basin
withdrawal but that was a reduction in outside watering more than a decrease of community indoor use.

Having attended BMC meetings for 8 yrs, Los Osos has many reasons for caution and new development
will not improve our sustainable supply.

| believe the Community should be included in the discussion before you bless this Community Plan. The
County didn’t do their due diligence to present the proposed growth management aspect to our
residents. No public town hall meeting, no presentation, no notification... so unless you were one of the
few who have been a community watchdog, you are clueless. The impact on our current water supply for
existing residents is serious, and approving 60+ new homes annually will not fix the current problems.

Please ask the County to present this complex issue to our community before you approve the
Community Plan. | hope that you will agree that extending the decision for 3 months, will give us the
opportunity to have the vital discussions that we haven't been given. After 20 yrs of delay to get here, it
seems reasonable that an informed community will be a better one.

Thankyou for your time and consideration,

Linde Owen (34 yr resident and homeowner)



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:43 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Upcoming Meeting

From: calrep <calrep@charter.net>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:35 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Upcoming Meeting

Dear Commissioners,

As aresident of Los Osos, it is still unclear on how the changes in the Community Action Plan will impact our
neighborhoods and population. There has been little outreach locally to share the details of the Plan or garner
feedback. | am asking that you postpone the vote on the Los Osos Community Plan until the citizenry has been
fully informed at an in-person Town Hall. which must include Q&A and a clear explanation of the new, vague
Growth Management Ordinance. Thanks for your consideration.

John F. Pack

2813 Rodman Drive
Los Osos, CA 93402
calrep@charter.net
949-400-4729 (cell)
805-439-1422 (fax)



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Linda Parks <voteforparks@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 10:33 AM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Please continue Agenda Item 14a, Los Osos Community Plan

Dear Staff, please allow the public to have more time to find out about the conclusion you’ve reached
that the Los Osos groundwater basin is sustainable. Only a handful of people know about this. There
have been no articles in the newspaper, no Town Halls, and the public deserves an opportunity to learn
and have input. This is particularly true since:

1) it’s a major policy shift.

2) it has major ramifications.

3) it’s a complex subject with concerning data

4) there has been a lack of outreach

5) a delay, until after the dry months of summer and fall, will allow substantiation on whether trends
towards sustainability are accurate.

6) the issue is decades in the making, and a few months to confirm the basis for the policy shift will
engender trust and allow for more thorough public participation.

Thank you for your consideration,
——Linda Parks

(805) 341-1332
Voteforparks@gmail.com



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:31 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: Ted Peterson’ <ted.peterson@tcsn.net>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:10 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

| am aresident of Los Osos, CA and have worked with water issues for some time.

I would like any vote on proposed Los Osos buildout to be postponed until a town hall meeting, with full
presentation of of the proposed buildout and a Q&A period that is not only live but Zoomed, aired or on Google
Meet, be scheduled with ample notice for Los Osos residents to watch or attend. The following questions should
be addressed:

1. Are we still under water restrictions?

2. If water use restrictions are still in effect, how can buildout be justified?

3. What is the incidence of Sea Water intrusion into the Los Osos basin?

4. What metrics are used to determine extent of Sea Water intrusion if any exists?

5. Even if unseasonable rains have raised the basin level, has the minimum level that determines overdraft been
reached?

6. If buildout is approved, and water use increases, how does this affect future drought conditions and future
water restrictions?

Thank you,

Ted Peterson

535 Rosina Drive
Los Osos, CA 93402
(805) 471-2237



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:40 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fwd: Community action plan

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Tom Pimienta <t.pimienta@yahoo.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:16:00 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Community action plan

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

Tom Pimienta



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 10:35 AM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fwd: Los Osos Community Plan

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Sarah Lester <referencewench@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 10:12:19 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos Community Plan

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. As a resident of Los Osos, it is still unclear on how the
changes in the Community Action Plan willimpact our neighborhoods and population. There has been
little outreach locally to share the details of the Plan or garner feedback. | am asking that you postpone
the vote on the Los Osos Community Plan until the citizenry has been fully informed at an in-person
Town Hall. which mustinclude Q&A and a clear explanation of the new, vague Growth Management
Ordinance.

Thank you for your consideration,
Sarah Lester
Los Osos, CA



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: FW: Morro Dunes petition mtg
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting
Start: Fri 4/5/2024 2:00 PM

End: Fri 4/5/2024 3:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Not yet responded
Organizer: Selmon, Michelle@Wildlife

From: Los Osos Equestrian Community <losososequestriancommunity@gmail.com> on behalf of Selmon,
Michelle@Wildlife <Michelle.Selmon@Wildlife.ca.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:51 PM

To: Los Osos Equestrian Community <losososequestriancommunity@gmail.com>; Gardner, Scott@Wildlife
<Scott.Gardner@wildlife.ca.gov>; Hacker, David@Wildlife <David.Hacker@wildlife.ca.gov>; Stafford, Bob@Wildlife
<Bob.Stafford@wildlife.ca.gov>; Vance, Julie@Wildlife <Julie.Vance@wildlife.ca.gov>; Cornman, Ari@FGC
<Ari.Cornman@FGC.ca.gov>

Cc: Cripe, Kristi@Wildlife <Kristi.Cripe@wildlife.ca.gov>; Monica White <monicajwhite76@gmail.com>; Nancy Owen
<bodhismom5@gmail.com>; Ashley Goldlist <ashley.goldlist@gmail.com>

Subject: Fwd: FW: Morro Dunes petition mtg

When: Friday, April 5, 2024 2:00 PM-3:00 PM.

Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting

To Whom It May Concern,

B FGC1 Rev 0619 (Fish & Game Los Osos Equestrian Petition).docx (1) (1).pdf

| am reaching out to provide feedback on the Los Osos Community Plan, particularly concerning
affordable housing, government administration, and the preferred conservation area (PCA). Currently,
the Fish & Game commission is reviewing an amendment that challenges the historical use of the PCA
and its allowable recreational purposes. For over a century, the property in question has been utilized for
agricultural purposes, hosting activities such as cattle grazing, horse riding, and farming. Despite this
longstanding historical use, the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve (MDER) was established without
consultation with neighboring residents who had been using the land for horseback riding since the
1950s, including for essential activities like commuting to school and work. The creation of the MDER,
facilitated without community input, has disrupted longstanding recreational traditions and denied
access to equestrians, including members of the Chumash tribes and other marginalized communities.
Moreover, the original and current property owner's failure to erect fencing and the subsequent free
access to the land only fueled recreational activities, contributing to the area's degradation. We
advocate for science-based conservation and decision-making. It's important to clarify and update the
information regarding the Morro Bay kangaroo rat (MBKR), Dipodomys heermanni morroensis. The MBKR
1



has not been sighted since 1986, and the last captive MBKR died in 1993. Despite extensive surveys,
researchers have been unable to detect the animal. Rediscovering the MBKR, if it still exists, poses
significant challenges due to its small size, nocturnal habits, secretive behavior, and patchy distribution.
Additionally, parts of its historical range are situated on private property, complicating survey efforts.
The issue of environmentally sensitive habitat areas (ESHA) cannot be overlooked. In 2022, Fish & Game
reclassified the Morro Shoulderband Snail from Endangered to Threatened status. These snails are now
commonly found in residential areas. (Reference:
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/02/03/2022-02008/endangered-and-threatened-
wildlife-and-plants-reclassification-of-morro-shoulderband-snail).

It's crucial to consider these updated scientific findings when making conservation decisions and
managing habitat areas.

Fish & Game's inconsistent stance, illustrated by a senior land property agent's documented
recreational use of the land via horseback despite official denials, raises questions about the agency's
transparency and accountability. This situation has enabled the exploitation of the PCA for both
development and conservation purposes, while disregarding the needs and rights of longstanding users.
The County of SLO also has an inconsistent record on climate change and building housing in general
and is unable to keep planing staff long enough to process applications orimplement a program. | know
this because | was a county planner.

The broader issue of affordability exacerbates the situation, with housing prices soaring beyond the
reach of many residents. Gentrification is rampant, pushing marginalized communities out of the area.
As someone actively searching for housing, | have encountered exorbitant prices and unaffordable
options, even while earning a higher income. This housing crisis highlights the urgency of fulfilling the
Coastal Act's mandate to promote housing opportunities for low and moderate-income individuals and
safeguard existing affordable housing.

It's imperative that any permitted development plans prioritize affordable housing or address the
proliferation of short-term rentals, which further exacerbate the affordability gap. The Coastal Act's
emphasis on infill development and protection of rural scenic lands should guide these efforts, ensuring
compatibility with agricultural activities and minimizing environmental impacts.

In conclusion, | urge careful consideration of these issues and proactive measures to address the
pressing challenges facing our community.

Sincerely,

Los Osos Equestrian Community










Irene Anderson
January 9, 2001
Page Two

Your assistance in completing the review of this proposed acquisition no by January 19, 2001, in order
to close escrow by February 6, 2001, as provided in the new Property Acquisition Agreement, will be
greatly appreciated. Please feel free to call me at (916) 445-1113, if you have any questions.

ORICINAL SIGMED §Y
copY DE28IE TOWNSEND

Debra K. Townsend
Senior Land Agent

Enclosures:

1. Summary of Transaction

2. Certificate of Acceptance for Grant Deed Conveying 78.481% (2 signed original)
3. Property Acquisition Agreement (3 signed originals)

4. Preliminary Title Report No. 52984, dated December 19, 2000

5

6

7

. Letter from First American Title Company acceptmg Grant Deeds as prepared
. Explanation of Title Exceptions
. Escrow Instructions (3 signed originals)




Bayview Ecological Reserve
(Morro Palisades), San Luis Obispo County

SUMMARY OF TRANSACTION

By its actionon August 10, 2000, the Wildlife Conservation Board approved the proposed acquisition
0f 205 acres of coastal dune habitat for the protection of several federal and state listed threatened
. and endangered plant and animal species. The subject property, locally known as the Morro Palisades
property, is strategically located in the Los Osos coastal dunes complex immediately south of, and
overlooking Morro Bay, in San Luis Obispo County. The property, which is located immediately
west of the Montana de Oro State Park, is the key parcel in multi-agency efforts to preserve the dune
complex and to establish a greenbelt linking this park with the Morro Bay State Parks.

- The parcel is currently zoned for residential development, but has remained undeveloped because of
a state-imposed building moratorium. The moratorium was instituted over 15 years ago due to high
bacteria levels resulting from the lack of a sewer and associated water treatment facilities in Los Osos.

The moratorium will be lifted upon completion of sewage treatment facilities, which are scheduled
'to be constructed over the next year.

An escrow account has been established with Stewart Title Company of Sacramento (Escrow No.
17000370). First American Title Company, in San luis Obispo, has issues a Preliminary Title Report
~ (No. SLO-52984, dated November 10, 2000) for the property. Taxes and assessments against the
property will be deleted upon the close of escrow. The remainder of the exceptions are relative to
the filing of a parcel map (1911) and a parcel map (1972). As the property is currently vacant, and
the state does not intent to develop the property, these exceptions will not be of risk to the state.

In addition to the $5,700,000.00 which was allocated by the Wildlife Conservation Board for this
project, the California Transportation Commission hasalso approved an Environmental Enhancement
Grant in the amount of $500,000.00, which will be deposited directly into the escrow opened for the
acquisition. :

This escrow must close by December 15, 2000.

Please call Debbie Townsend at (916) 445-1113, if you have any questions relative to this acquisition.




Bayview Ecological Reserve
(Morro Palisades), San Luis Obispo County

SUMMARY OF TRANSACTION

By its action on August 10, 2000, the Wildlife Conservation Board approved the proposed acquisition
of 205+ acres of coastal dune habitat for the protection of several federal and state listed threatened
and endangered plant and animal species. The subject property, locally known as the Morro Palisades
property, is strategically located in the Los Osos coastal dunes complex south of, and overlooking
 Morro Bay, in San Luis Obispo County. The property, which is located immediately west of the
Montana de Oro State Park, is the key parcel in multi-agency efforts to preserve the dune complex
and to establish a greenbelt linking this park with the Morro Bay State Parks.

An escrow account has been established with Stewart Title Company of Sacramento (Escrow No,.
17000370). First American Title Company, in San Luis Obispo, has issued Preliminary Title Report
No. SLO-52984, dated December 19, 2000, for the property. The State is exempt from paying
property taxes and there are no supplemental taxes levied against this property. The assessments are
levied with the property taxes. It is standard practice to ask that these be deleted as an exception
from title. Upon recordation, the State advises the County Auditor/Assessor of the purchase and
requests cancellation of taxes. The assessments are typically deleted with the property tax. In the
event they are not, the charges will be assessed against the Department of Fish and Game who will
then work directly with the provider of the service. The assessments are usually cancelled.
Explanation and recommended disposition of the remaining title exceptions is included with this
settlement package. ‘

The approved appraised fair market value of the subject property is $7,900,000.00. The owner has
agreed to sell the property to the State for $6,200,000.00. This bargain sale results in a donation of
$1,700,000.00 and satisfies the match requirements of the General Fund Challenge Grant Program
which provided $1,700,000.00 for this project. In addition, the General Fund provided
$4,000,000.00 as specifically budgeted in the 1999/00 budget for this project, and the Department
of Transportation provided $500,000.00 from an Environmental Enhancement and Mitigation
Program grant which will be paid directly into escrow for the acquisition.

The partnership which holds title to the subject property has been restructured to accommodate the
donation, i.e., Morro Palisades Co., is conveying by separate deed an undivided 21.5190% interest
as tenant in common. First American Title Company has reviewed the proposed deeds conveying the
subject property and has agreed to insure title using the deeds as prepared. A copy of a letter from
the title company is enclosed with this package.

Please call Debbie Townsend at (916) 445-1113, if you have any questions relative to this acquisition.

A\Bayview-SOT(37)




DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD

Project: Bayview Ecological Reserve
(Morro Palisades)

Parcel: APN 074-229-022 & 023

PROPERTY ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

DEEDS DATED: SEE #1 BELOW. EscrRow HOLDER: STEWART  TITLE COMPANY  OF
SACRAMENTO
ADDRESS: 1495 RIVER PARK DRIVE, SUITE 300
Counry: SaN Luis OBISPO SACRAMENTO, CA 95815

Escrow No.: 17000370
TiTLE CoMPANY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE (SAN Luils

OBISPO)
PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT No.: SLO-52984

Q
THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR(S), HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS
GRANTOR, AND THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME,
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS STATE. THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

GRANTOR AGREES TO GRANT TO STATE CERTAIN PROPERTY, LOCATED IN THE ABOVE COUNTY, AND
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE DEEDS DESCRIBED BELOW, WHICH ARE HEREWITH HANDED TO
STATE’S LAND AGENT, SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS HEREOF:

A. DEED 1: BY DEED DATED NOVEMBER 8, 2000, MORRO PALISADES CO., A CALIFORNIA GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP, AS TO AN UNDIVIDED 34.7958% INTEREST AS TENANT IN COMMON, JOHN L. CURCI, AS
TRUSTEE OF THE JOHN L. CURCI TRUST, ESTABLISHED 12/22/93, AS TO AN UNDIVIDED 33.4461%
INTEREST AS TENANT IN COMMON, AND THE CALIFORNIA INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, A CALIFORNIA
NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION, AS TO AN UNDIVIDED 10.2391% INTEREST AS TENANT IN COMMON
(COLLECTIVELY, “GRANTOR”), AGREES TO GRANT TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

B. DEED 2: By DEED DATED NOVEMBER 8, 2000, MORRO PALISADES CO., A CALIFORNIA GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP AGREES TO DONATE AN UNDIVIDED 21.5190% INTEREST AS TENANT IN COMMON
(GRANTOR), TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,




PAGE TWO

THE STATE AGREES TO PAY $6,200,000.00 INTO THE ABOVE ESCROW AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS FOR THE
ACCOUNT OF GRANTOR FOR THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN DEED 1 ABOVE, AND RECOGNIZE AND ACCEPT
THE DONATION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN DEED 2 ABOVE, CONDITIONED ON ALL PROPERTY
DESCRIBED HEREIN, VESTING IN STATE, FREE AND CLEAR OF ALL LIENS, LEASES, ENCUMBRANCES,
ASSESSMENTS, EASEMENTS, OF RECORD OR OTHERWISE, AND TAXES, EXCEPT:

A. EASEMENT OR RIGHTS OF WAY OF RECORD FOR PUBLIC ROADS OR PUBLIC UTILITIES, IF ANY.

B. THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS AS SET FORTH IN THE PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT NO. SLO-52984
OF THE ABOVE-REFERENCED TITLE COMPANY DATED DECEMBER 19, 2000:

EXCEPTIONS 5, 6, 7, 8 AND 9.

SAID ESCROW HOLDER MAY EXPEND ANY OR ALL MONIES PAYABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT TO
DISCHARGE ANY OBLIGATIONS WHICH ARE LIENS UPON THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO THOSE ARISING FROM JUDGEMENTS, ASSESSMENTS, TAXES OR DEBTS SECURED BY DEEDS OF TRUST
OR MORTGAGES, TO DEFRAY ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL COSTS OTHER THAN THOSE SPECIFIED IN
PARAGRAPH 4 HEREOF TO BE BORNE BY THE STATE. ESCROW HOLDER MAY ALSO PAY, FROM MONIES
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR IN WHICH THIS ESCROW CLOSES, IF
UNPAID BY GRANTOR TO AND INCLUDING THE DATE OF CLOSE OF ESCROW. THE PAYMENT OF ANY
SUCH PROPERTY TAXES SHALL BE BASED ON THE MOST RECENT INFORMATION APPLICABLE TO THE
FISCAL YEAR AND OBTAINABLE THROUGH THE TAXING AGENCIES. STATE SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR SECURING THE RETURN FROM ANY TAXING AGENCY OF ANY TAXES PREPAID BY GRANTOR
APPLICABLE TO ANY PERIOD OF TIME AFTER CLOSE OF ESCROW HEREIN.

THE STATE SHALL PAY ALL ESCROW FEES, RECORDING FEES, TITLE INSURANCE CHARGES, PREPAYMENT
PENALTIES NOT TO EXCEED 1% OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OR UNPAID BALANCE, WHICHEVER IS LESS,
RECONVEYANCE FEES, TRUSTEES' OR FORWARDING FEES FOR ANY RECONVEYANCE OF DEED OF TRUST
OR RELEASE OF MORTGAGE INCURRED IN THIS TRANSACTION.

TITLE TO SAID PROPERTY SHALL PASS IMMEDIATELY UPON CLOSE OF ESCROW. EXCEPT AS MAY
OTHERWISE BE PROVIDED HEREIN, THE STATE SHALL HAVE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION

AND DELIVERY OF ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS AGREEMENT.

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF THE STATE DIRECTOR OF GENERAL SERVICES.







Bayview Ecological Reserve
San Luis Obispo County

September 12, 2000

CERTIFICATE OF VISUAL INSPECTION

An inspection has been made of certain real property in the County of San Luis

. Obispo, described as San Luis Obispo County Assessor Parcel Numbers 074-229-022 and
074-229-023, by an employee of the Department of Fish and Game, who is competent to
recognize proberty easements and encumbrances. Such inspection reveals no visible
‘evidence of the existence of easements or rights of way thereon or claims of right to or
interest in said real property or any part thereof pufsuant to unrecorded leases, licenses or

* contracts or by virtue of adverse possession, other than those matters disclosed by the

preliminary title report or as noted herein.

Department of Fish and Game
| Wildlife Conservation Board

By@@\iw&

Debra Townsend
Senior Land Agent

1
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Bayview Ecological Reserve
(Morro Palisades)
San Luis Obispo County

IMPLIED DEDICATION STUDY

The undersigned has inspected the above noted property which is presently owned by Morro
Palisades Co., a General Partnership. It is likely that the general public may have from time to
time trespassed upon the property; however, there is no evidence of any systematic, regular or
organized tréspassers. Therefore, it is doubtful that a case for public prescriptive rights on the
property could be perfected using the "open and notorious” definition which is generally a
requirement in prescriptive rights cases. It should also be noted that most of the comparable sale

properties in the appraisal report have similar capabilities of trespassing.

o Toned

Debra Townsend
Senior Land Agent

Date )7/’/ ﬂ, M/a
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Wildlife Conservation Board

Conserving Land
m}’;f",:;ile | June 8, 1999

Todd O. Murphy

Schenberger, Taylor, McCormick and Jecker
1411 Marsh Street, Suite 107

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

Dear Todd,

This letter serves as written confirmation of your conversation with Margaret
Eadington on May 17, 1999 regarding the Appraisal Services Agreement for the Morro
' ;_Palrsades property in Los Osos, California. It was agreed in that conversation that your
firm, in appraising the Morro Palisades property, could assume that there are no longer
~any endangered Morro Bay kangaroo rats on the property. However you should not
- -assume that there are not any other endangered species found on the property

Please contact Margaret Eadington or me if you have any addrtlon_al questions.

Sincerely,

[umet, Jguok

Pamela Iguchi -
Project Associate

Margaret Eadington
Jim Sarro, CA Department of Fish and Game

The Trust for Public Land
Western Region

116 New Montgomery
Third Floor

San Francisco, CA 94105

(415) 495-5660
Fax (415) 495-0541
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NOTICE OF CONSENT TO USE CF LAND i R
Civil Code 8813 IR | (Y B

NOTICE IS REREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Section 813 of the Civil Code, as follows:

(a) The undersigned, MORRO PALISADES C0., a California Corporation, is the
holder of record title to the land hereinafter described;

(b) The undersigned hereby consents to the use of said land by the general
public for the purpose of passing across the . same;

(¢) The consent herein granted is permissive only, and may be revoked by the
undersigned, or its successors, at any time, in accordance with law; and

{d) The land herein referred to is located in the unincorporated area, County
of San Luis Obispo, described as follows:

Parcel 1:

That portion of Lots B and C in Rancho Lot 79 of the Rancho Canada de Los Osos, in
the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California, as subdivided by H. C, Ward,
June 1880, according to the map thereof recorded June 9, 1880 in Book B, page 72
of Maps, in the office of the County Recorder of said County, described as follows:

Beginning at a post J. R. 3 at the Southwest corner of Lot "D" of the Slack Tract,

a part of said Lot 79, according to the map of said Slack Tract, made by George Story
in 1887 on file in the office of said County Recorder; thence North 32° Si' East along
the Northwesterly line of said Tract, 3,42 chains to post 5.2 at the South corner of

the tract of land first described in a deed from R. M, Smith to Charles E. Ferrell and
T. P, Bush, dated February 5, 1912 and recorded in Book 92, page 108 of Deeds; thence
North 24° 45' West 78,66 chains to an iron pipe on the line of high water mark of Morro
Bay, from which a Blue Gum 25 inches in diameter bears North 44° East 59 links distant;
thence Southwesterly and Westerly along said line of highwater mark of Morro Bay, to the
Northwest corner of said Lot 79; thence South along the west line of said Lot, to its
intersection with the line between Lots 77 and 79; thence South 74 deg. 30' East along
said line 71,70 chains to stake S, &4 at the Southwesterly corner of the tract of land
secondly described in the deed from R. M. Smith to Charles E. Ferrell and T, I» Bush
&bove mentioned; thence North 24° 45' West along the Westerly line of said Tract, so
conveyved 56,20 chains to the Southwesterly line of said Lot D of the Slack Tract: thence
North 57° 58! West along said line 5.20 chains to the point of beginning.

ZXCEPTING therefrom any portion of said land lying seaward of the high tide line of
Morro Bay,

ALSG EXCEPTING therefrom Lot 1 in Block 8 and Lot 4 in Block 16 of Sunshine Beach ag
shown on map filed in Book A of Maps, Map No. 93.

ALSC EXCEFTING that portion of Lot B of Rancho Lot 79 of the Rancho Canada de Los Osos
in Book B/72, Maps, described as follows: Beginning at the intersection of the west
line of said lot and the south line of Ramona Ave, 60' wide, thence southerly along
the said west line 878!, thence east 948,48'; thence through a curve concave easterly
with radius of 654' and central angle of 20° 10! S4"; thence North 66° 56' 42" West
128,53"; thence through a curve concave northeasterly with radius of 366' and central
angle of 53° 56! 18"; thence Morth 13° 00' 24"; West 369.34' to the south line of
Ramona Avenue, thence along said line to the beginning,

AL30 EACEPTING any portions within county streets,

Fape 1 of 2
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PARCEL 2

Block 36 of Cuesta-By-The-Sea, in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of Calif-
ornia, according to the map thereof recorded October 4, 1924 in Book 3, page 48
of Maps, in the office of the County Recorder of said County,

EXCEPT therefrom any portion thereof lying Northerly of and below the line of ordi-
nary high tide of Morro Bay,

Dated: Sept. 8, 1972

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
County of QRANGE

On this _ 19th qay or September 1972 perore me, the undersigned, a Notary
Public in and for said County, and State, personally appeared JOHN L, CURCI,
known to me to be the President of the Corporation that executed the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that such Corporation executed the same,

O RSP RPN Az ok

#Eiein Sual

BERNICE MARTIN
Notory Public CaMornle |

Drange Sount

My Gommission Expires Juns 23, 1976 County and State
v, .

Page 2 of 2
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RECORDING REQUESTED BY, AND
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: SAN LUIS 081SPO CO., CAL

MORRO PALISADES CO. JAN 1 91983

c¢/o John L. Curci FRANCIS M. COQNEY
P.0. Box 1457 County Clerk-Recorder
Newport Beach, California 92663 ?iﬂE-l 2:3 5 PM

NOTICE OF PERMISSION TO USE REAL PROPERTY
[Civil Code §813}

The right of the public or any person to make
any use whatsoever of the land described in Exhibits "A-1"
through "A-4", inclusive, attached hereto and incorporated
herein by this reference, or any portion thereof (other
than any use expressly allowed by a writtem or recorded
map, agreement, deed or dedication) is by permission, and
subject to control of the owner, MORRO PALISADES CO., a

general partnership. (California Civil Code, §813).

/'/; /’.. , 1983
7 /

MORRO PALISADES CO.,
a General Partnership

BY: /T.ﬁ CIMJ

JOHN MCI, General Partner

vo. 2408t 777




STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

)
COUNTY OF ORANGE )

\g‘. 1983, before me, the
undersigned Noé personally appeared JOHN L.
CURCI, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
to be the person who executed the within instrument on
behalf of MORRO PALISADES CO., a general partnership,
and acknowledged to me that the partnership executed it.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Y ACLAL ‘SIJA'. 7

AN GO

- vania s S

R : P48 VAV
DRAFGE SOLATY Notary Public /’

e e

My wommissicn Explies Newsmber 3 1985 //
¢




EXHIBIT

(Légal Description)

Parcels 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Parcel Map No. CO-76-227,
County of San Luis Obispo, State of California, as
recorded in Book 21, Page 82 of Parcel Maps, in the
Office of the County Recorder of said County.




EXHIBIT "A-2"

(Legal Description)

Block 36 of Cuesta-By-the-Sea, in the County of
San Luis Obispo, State of California, as per Map
recorded October 4, 1924, in Book 3, Page 48 of
Maps, in the Oftice of the County Recorder of

said County.




'EXHIBIT "A-3"

{Legal Description)

That portion of Lot 3 of Lands of Morro Bay Company

in lots B and C of Wards Subdivision of the Call

Tract in Lot 79 of Rancho Los 0sos and La Laguna,
as recorded in Map Book 2 at Page S of Records of
Surveys, Records of San Luis Obispo County,

California, lying north of Ramona Avenue, a 69.00

foot road.




EXHIBIT "A-4"

(Legal Descriptionm)

Parcel 1 of Parcel Map C0-73-406, in the County of
San Luls Obispo, State of California, according to
Map recorded in Book 17, Page 126 of Parcel Maps.
In the office of the County Recorder of said County.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM, that portion of Parcel 1 of
Parcel Map CO-73-406 deeded to the County of San
Luis Obispo by deed recorded on August 20, 1980 in
Book 2262, Page 732, in the Official Records of
said County.













Bayview Ecological Reserve
| (Morro Palisades), San Luis Obispo County

Stewart Title Company of Sacramento: Escrow No. AL17000370
First American Title Company: Preliminary Title Report SLO-52984, dated November 10, 2000

EXPLANATION OF TITLE EXCEPTIONS

Exception Explanation

1 ’ General and Special Taxes. The State is exempt from paying
* taxes and they will be cancelled upon close of escrow. Delete.

Lien of Supplemental Taxes. There are no known
supplemental taxes levied against the subject property.

- Delete.

Assessments by County for Drainage and Fire Protection.
Assessments, if any, are collected with the General Taxes and
will be cancelled upon close of escrow. Delete.

Effect of Map Recorded 11/13/11. Any discrepancies in the
map recorded in 1911, will be of minimal risk to the state and
its intended use of the property. Accept.

Utility and Road Easement. This 1962 easement in favor of
Morro Palisades Company, et al., will not impact the state’s
intended use of the property. Accept.

Notice of Consent. Morro Palisades, in recording the Notice
in 1972, granted consent to the general public to cross over a
portion of the subject property. This notice granted
permission to the general public to pass over a portion of the
land. There is little risk that public access, if any, will impact
the State’s intended use of the property. _Accept.

Terms and Provisions of Parcel Map No. C0-76-227,
recorded 12/27/76. The Parcel Map provided for residential
subdivision, but has remained undeveloped because of a state-
imposed building moratorium. The State does not plan to
develop this vacant property and the conditions of the Parcel
Map will not impact the State’s proposed use of the property.
Accept.

Morro Palisades, a California General Partnership to provide
title company with partnershlp information prior to close of
escrow. Delete.
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Tracking Number: _ 2023-17_)

To request a change to regulations under the authority of the California Fish and Game Commission
(Commission), you are required to submit this completed form to: California Fish and Game
Commission, (physical address) 1416 Ninth Street, Suite 1320, Sacramento, CA 95814, (mailing
address) P.O. Box 944209, Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 or via email to FGC@fgc.ca.gov. Note:
This form is not intended for listing petitions for threatened or endangered species (see Section 670.1
of Title 14).

Incomplete forms will not be accepted. A petition is incomplete if it is not submitted on this form or
fails to contain necessary information in each of the required categories listed on this form (Section I).
A petition will be rejected if it does not pertain to issues under the Commission’s authority. A petition
may be denied if any petition requesting a functionally equivalent regulation change was considered
within the previous 12 months and no information or data is being submitted beyond what was
previously submitted. If you need help with this form, please contact Commission staff at (916) 653-
4899 or FGC@fgc.ca.gov.

SECTION I: Required Information.
Please be succinct. Responses for Section | should not exceed five pages

1. Person or organization requesting the change (Required)
Name of primary contact person: Los Osos Equestrian Community
Address: 2450 Pecho Valley Rd Los Osos CA 93402
Telephone number: 805 748 9595
Email address: losososequestriancommunity@gmail.com

2. Rulemaking Authority (Required) - Reference to the statutory or constitutional authority of
the Commission to take the action requested: Fish and Game Code Section 1580 [“The
commission may adopt regulations for the occupation, utilization, operation, protection,
enhancement, maintenance, and administration of ecological reserves.”] Title 14 Section §630,
Ecological Reserves

3. Overview (Required) - Summarize the proposed changes to regulations: Add the use of
horses on designated trails in the Bayview Unit of the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserves.
Remove: All use of horses on the Bayview Unit will remain prohibited. Amend 14 CCR §
Section 630, Additional Visitor Use Regulations on Department Lands Designated as
Ecological Reserves: (g)(11): The proposed changes allow the use of horses on designated
trails on the Pecho Unit and the Bayview Unit of the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve.

4. Rationale (Required) - Describe the problem and the reason for the proposed change: The
establishment of the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve in August 2000 raises concerns about
the Fish and Game Commission's commitment to countering historic exclusions and ensuring
transparency and community participation. There have been inconsistencies in regulation, and
sworn accounts by a Senior Agent of the Fish & Game Organization, Debra Townsend,
regarding recreational activities in the Bayview Unit, leading to the appropriation of
government funding for the reserve's purchase.


mailto:losososequestriancommunity@gmail.com
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Despite the creation of the Ecological Reserve in 2000, there was no funding allocated for
enforcement or property remediation. Recreational activities persisted, and adjacent equestrian
stables and properties were not notified of the reserve status. Equestrian use continued as it had for
decades, as nobody was informed otherwise.

Historically, the property was used for cattle ranching since the 1930s, and it has always been
surrounded by agricultural supporting industries, equestrian facilities, and residential developments.
However, farming practices and disking led to erosion features and the dominance of invasive weeds
in certain areas. Cattle and horses roamed the property during this period as well.

The existence of established horse trails within the nearby Pecho Unit is documented by prescriptive
right. It is acknowledged that the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve is an environmentally sensitive
habitat area (ESHA) that must be protected. Limited equestrian use is not the sole or leading cause of
species and habitat loss; factors like climate change and species migration must be acknowledged
as the dominant impactors. This is basic conservation biology. Despite this, serious remediation
efforts and enforcement have been lacking. Unpermitted motorcycles and bicycles also damage
sensitive habitat, yet there have been no regulatory changes addressing this issue. In fact, we have
witnessed Fish & Wildlife agents high five bicyclists leaving the Bayview Unit area despite it being
prohibited. There has never been fencing on this property or signage even prior to it being a Reserve.

The majority of the Los Osos community is constructed on ancient dunes, forming a unique coastal
ecosystem. The Coastal Commission, in partnership with the Fish & Game Commission, applied
similar arguments for the Los Osos Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) in 2010, considering ESHA
disturbance for such projects as the least environmentally damaging feasible alternative. After over
ten to twelve years since the MDER was established, Fish & Game was trying to establish a funding
mechanism for remediation activities. It is 2023 and it has been 23 years since this property was
purchased and there is still not an active funding source in place. It is dependent on the approval of
the Coastal Commission confirming there is water in Los Osos and allowing building in the
community again. This may take another decade. During this time, one of the dominant species that
led to this property being designated an Ecological Reserve was reclassified as Threatened instead of
Endangered as “the species' status has improved such that it is not currently in danger of extinction
throughout all or a significant portion of its range”. Additionally, the Morro Bay Kangaroo Rat was
declared functionally extinct. These occurred during the time that no remediation efforts were
occurring and equestrian use was occurring in the Bay View unit. Equestrians ride on trails that avoid
the vegetation species that are endangered and threatened and the horses do not consume these.
We walked by foot trails we used to ride to determine if they were surrounded by coastal sage scrub,
dune scrub, Morro manzanita and maritime chaparral. We prefer to ride trails that are horizontal that
do not cause erosion and avoid trails that are showing signs of erosion.

However, the confusion surrounding the Bayview Unit property persists due to the lack of remediation
activities, enforcement, signs, or acknowledgment of its status as an Ecological Reserve. The Coastal
Commission's involvement in mitigation further complicates the situation, with delays in
implementing mitigation and conservation measures. On the request of Dave Hacker of Fish & Game,
Los Osos equestrians temporarily stopped riding the area to demonstrate a willingness to work
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together to come to a solution on the trails and he advised applying to the Commission to clear up
the history regarding the property.

He, and the current commission, may not be aware that property evaluation leading to the
establishment of the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve was based on an Implied Dedication Study by
Senior Land Agent Debra Townsend, who failed to acknowledge the continuous and uninterrupted
equestrian use of the property. Townsend was aware of this recreational use, as evidenced by
photographs of her riding in the area. She is a current equestrian and a long term Fish & Game Senior
agent employee who retired recently. She rode with members of our community in the Ecological
Reserve before this property was a reserve and was aware of the significant, historical equestrian use
in this area. The lack of accurate representation during the property evaluation has led to the ongoing
issues and disputes concerning the reserve's status and usage.

SECTION II: Optional Information
5. Date of Petition: November 15, 2023

6. Category of Proposed Change
\D\ Sport Fishing
[ Commerecial Fishing
[ Hunting
X Other, please specify: Ecological Reserves

7. The proposal is to: (To determine section number(s), see current year regulation booklet or
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs)
X Amend Title 14 Section(s):630
[0 Add New Title 14 Section(s): Click here to enter text.
‘D‘ Repeal Title 14 Section(s): Click here to enter text. ‘

8. If the proposal is related to a previously submitted petition that was rejected, specify
the tracking number of the previously submitted petition Click here to enter text.
Or X Not applicable.

9. Effective date: If applicable, identify the desired effective date of the regulation.
If the proposed change requires immediate implementation, explain the nature of the
emergency: This petition urgently calls for immediate action because equestrian use predates
the creation of the Ecological Reserves. Furthermore, contracting irregularities, lack of
transparency, and a failure in due diligence have unjustly denied equestrians their prescribed
rights for the past two decades. The upcoming review of the Los Osos Community Plan by the
Fish & Game Commission and Coastal Commission, as part of the Los Osos Habitat
Conservation Plan (LOHCP), demands urgent attention. Despite the well-known fact that land
use, development, and habitat loss significantly contribute to the decline of endangered
species, including those in the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve (MDER), the Fish & Game
Commission points fingers at equestrian land disturbances while permitting residential,
commercial, and industrial development. The MDER is currently being used as mitigation to


https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs
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develop vacant residential and commercial properties in Los Osos, where endangered species
are thriving under the Fish & Game Commission’s Incidental Take Permit program. Allowing
construction activities on these covered species, as proposed by the County in the LOHCP
conservation program, will further endanger these species. The Commission's decision to
permit such activities could lead to the extinction of these species, as they will be threatened
by the construction, undermining the very purpose of the conservation program. It is essential
to emphasize that equestrian recreation activities do not have the same impact on the
environment as large-scale land use development projects. Immediate action is imperative to
rectify these issues and protect the endangered species in the Morro Dunes Ecological
Reserve.

10. Supporting documentation: Identify and attach to the petition any information supporting the
proposal including data, reports and other documents:

Images of America: Los Osos/Bay Wood Park: Lynette Tornatsky depicts history of the
Los Osos/Baywood community and mentions “the Broderson area...is land crisscrossed
with hiking and horse trails” (105).

Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants; Reclassification of Morro
Shoulderband Snail From Endangered to Threatened With Section 4(d) Rule Species
Assessment Report: Ventura Fish and Wildlife Office U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service: “At
the time of listing, we thought Helminthoglypta walkeriana morroensis (currently, Chorro
shoulderband snail, CSS) was extinct and speculated that there may have been as few
as several hundred individuals of H. walkeriana (currently, Morro shoulderband snail,
MSS) extant. Within a few years of listing, CSS was rediscovered near the northern limit
of Morro Bay. Since the time of listing, living CSS individuals have been documented at
other locations from northern Morro Bay south and inland through the City of San Luis
Obispo and we now know MSS numbers far exceed what was thought at that time.
As part of the listing rule, we identified urban development and other
anthropogenic activities such as recreation, grazing, and utility construction as
threats to the banded dune snail (Service 1994: 66401). Currently, the most
common threats to both species are those associated with land use practices that
eliminate, reduce, fragment, and/or modify habitat used by the species. We
expect that climate change will likely exacerbate the severity of these threats.
Determining Extinction for Small Cryptic Species: The Morro Bay Kangaroo Rat
Biological Sciences Department, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis
Obispo, CA 93407, USA

California Fish and Game Commission Justice, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Policy:
The Department’s Lands Program, assisted by others throughout the Department, will
begin taking steps to acknowledge historical connections and usages at many of the
Department’s lands

Baywood Park Training Area
https://documents.coastal.ca.gov/reports/2010/6/Th7b-6-2010.pdf



https://books.google.com/books?id=zwIZDQAAQBAJ&pg=PA118&lpg=PA118&dq=al+switzer+bayview+los+osos&source=bl&ots=1MeIzuUfkH&sig=ACfU3U0r4pLr1-g9ewGEpHvISGCfr9ZRew&hl=en&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwid5YnI676BAxUqKEQIHb13BHg4ChDoAXoECAIQAw#v=onepage&q=al%20switzer%20bayview%20los%20osos&f=false
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/02/03/2022-02008/endangered-and-threatened-wildlife-and-plants-reclassification-of-morro-shoulderband-snail-from
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/02/03/2022-02008/endangered-and-threatened-wildlife-and-plants-reclassification-of-morro-shoulderband-snail-from
https://ecos.fws.gov/ServCat/DownloadFile/183161
https://ecos.fws.gov/ServCat/DownloadFile/183161
https://www.mdpi.com/1424-2818/15/2/245
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=199236&inline
https://www.spl.usace.army.mil/Missions/Formerly-Used-Defense-Sites/Baywood-Park-Training-Area/
https://documents.coastal.ca.gov/reports/2010/6/Th7b-6-2010.pdf
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*LAND RECORDED FOR
PUBLIC USE JOHN CUIRCI original owner of MDER = Prescriptive Rights same as Pecho
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Property



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 20 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 21 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 22 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 23 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 24 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 25 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 26 of 49



State of California — Fish and Game Commission
PETITION TO THE CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION FOR REGULATION CHANGE
FGC 1 (Rev 06/19) Page 27 of 49

To whom it may concern,

| have grown up in the small Los Osos community, nding horses, since | was a very small child. My mom used to ride me to Sunnyside elementary school on horseback in the 80s and 90s
through this beautiful reserve.

|t has been one of the greatest joys of my life being able to share in this awesome community, my love and passion for horses, and the beautiful trails that we have always been allowed to
access | have always been kind, and considerate to passing people on the trails and up until recently | have always been warmly welcomed with a smile and wave by people in the community,
walking their dogs or hiking with family.

Signs have been posted now that are stating that NO horses are allowed in the Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve. | have felt intense discrimination and hostility since those have been put up,
and it is very sad to witness the divide that it is causing in our community. | believe in supporting equality among people and animals, and it feels important to be kind to one another in our
shared spaces. | do believe in preserving our environment, and want to do my part in helping to protect and enjoy the land for many generations to come. | have children that have also loved
trail nding with me through this whole area and are also devastated by having no access. | am requesting a compromise where horses and their nders are allowed a penmeter trail and a
coastal access corridor, as | have loved, and cared for for the past 41 years. We request coastal access that allows people to get to the beach safely throughout the community. We had not
been previously notified of any issues or closures specifically to horses.

| appreciate your consideration by sustaining our access to the corridor frail.

All my best,
Chelsea McLaughlin
805-440-5775

Commisioners,

| hawve been a full e resident of Los JOsos since 1872, and a freguent
wisitor to the ares to ses family and friends since 1855 | am an
equestrian, in addition to oy velibood as an Agriculberal Enginesr amnd
Projeci Manager. | and my family live adjacemnt to the property nose Bowoeem
as the "Mormmo Dumes Ecological Resaerve, Baywiewr Linit'. We hawve
freguently w==d the mmubi-uses trail comidors thru this area (south of
Highlamd Driwve) when riding horsaeback or hiking from the east side of
tonam o the west, and o the coast, == well as into Montama de Oro State
Park. Thess= lomg used mulfi-use: trails, now within the "WMomo Dunes
Ecological Reserwa, Baywview Linit’', hawve allowed safe access for
eguestrians and hikers from the east of Los Osos to the west, awoiding
ridimg on the strests. As users of these trails we, our commmunity of

those who use thesse trails, hawe and will going foneard assist with
maimtenance of the trails, and =lp prevaent dewvistion of its boundary.

Wi are part of the large Los Os=os Equestrian Comemmunity and find that we
hawe= mot had 3 woice m the decision o take this comdor away from us.

Im other reserves within the State, the Habitat Conservation Plans state
“wrhen possible ink trails™, and can allosw mited equestriam uss when
linkimg trails o exasiing trails. as well as coastal acocess. Fleasse

note, that sinoce the "MNo Horses Allowed™ signs were put up along the
penmetier of this area we hawve withessed public exchangs towarnd
egquestrians become guite negative and aggressive, where before exchanges
were mrost often friendly amd welcoming. This is a sad chamge for the
atmospherse of ouwr Los Dsos Community. We also note that some of the
species of concam in this ressrve area (2g. the 'banded dums snizil’)

hawve been re-designated from Endangersed io Thraeatesned., Flesss consider
our mesd, and reguesis.

Thambk=s,
Geof Gurley
SE-458-1212
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Subject: Trails Support Letter from Mike

Michael Johnston

1151 Bayview Heights Drive
Los Osos, CA 93402
September 10, 2023

To Whom It May Concern:

| am writing this letter to support those who are advocating for an equestrian friendly community in Los Osos and continued use of the trails that
have been available to us for decades.

| have lived in Los Osos with horses at my property since 1988. Since that time, | have ridden and enjoyed the trails between Mike Gorby's
LOVE Farm and the beach as well as Montana De Ora. Those trails and riding opportunities have been a major enjoyment in my life, and | regret
each time a trail is closed to riders.

Please explore every option for keeping trails open to horses and riders as they are an integral part of this beautiful and special community.

Thank you for your attention to this matter,

Michael Johnston
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Date: Monday, August 14, 2023 12:00 AM

Dear Members of the Coastal Commission,

My name is Devyn DiMascio and my Email address is diverdeb@flash.net

| am requesting that you help us correct an issue that is affecting many multi-use trail users in the Los Osos Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve area. \We have historically (well
over 50 years) used and needed a trail that goes from East to West across this area to allow access to the coast. We are currently being prohibited from using it. This trail exists
in an East/West direction and it parallels Highland Dr. in Los Osos. Without this access trail we are forced to ride our horses on dangerous and busy streets with fast
moving traffic and are cut off from reaching the coast.

Months ago the CA Fish and Wildlife Department posted signs throughout the boundarnes of the reserve, including our main access to the coast demanding that all horses and
riders are prohibited. They claim that they are trying to preserve a Morro Banded Snail, which is not endangered (and according to the county biologist lives way under the
bushes down in the moist root area so we do not impact them). The plants in this area are flourishing and are not damaged or impacted either.

We as frail users and equestrians have been the recipients of hostile and unpleasant behavior from other uninformed trail users as a result of the CA Fish and Wildlife signs,
EVEN when we are on other trails where we are NOT prohibited

Please allow us an East/West access on a already existing, well-established wide and safe trail that will permit us to continue with the Historic trail use and access to the coast,
and will end other trail users unpleasantness toward us. We understand that the Habitat Conservation Plan says "link trails when possible.” There are other similar
reserves that are following this and allowing Equestrian access.

**Side note- Over many years there has never been any problem with the multi-use trail users in this specific area, all very courteous and understanding of others desire to
recreate and have coastal access in this area UNTIL the CA F&W signs were posted.

Many thanks for your consideration of this matter, it is much appreciated,

Devyn DiMascio
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To whom it may concern re: equine ftrail access in Los Osos off of Sea Horse Lane.

Hi | am writing in support of continued equine trail access in the trails recently closed to equines near Sea Horse Lane. | have been
boarding my horses and riding on those trails for @20 years. | would like some access for equestrians to be allowed. Perhaps a
perimeter loop using the existing perimeter trails on the property. All we would need are signs designating equestrian access for the
perimeter trail.

Thank you for your time and consideration. Kathy Sallaz

Sent from my iPad

To: CA Fish & Wildlife
From: Sharon & Jim Kroll
Re: Broderson Los Osos Trail Closure

Dear Sirs/Madam:

I'm writing in regards to the trail closure to equestrians on Broderson Dr, Los Osos. [t is the area
west of Bayview Heights and east of Seahorse Lane that was owned by Morro Palisades Group
until 2001. It was so surprising to see the signage maybe 2 years ago or so, out of the blue,
designating the area closed to equestrian use. There were no notifications, meetings, nothing.
For decades we have used those trails. For me, personally, | have been riding that trail since
1988..35 years! At that time | boarded with Barbi Breen (now Breen-Gurley). In 1994 my
husband and | purchased property at the bottom of Seahorse Ln and within 2 years acquired a
business license and Animal Regulation permit to board horses on the property, and have been
operating ever since. So we are speaking from the perspective of a rider and business owner.

It is especially important to us now as our grandchildren (4 & 7) are now riding. We've walked
their pony down to Bayview Heights to pick the youngest up from school (the site of the old
Sunnyside school), and were forced on to Highland Dr and the traffic inherent to that.

Many decades ago that area east of Seahorse Lane was part of a future trail plan. | believe it
was called Estero Trail Plan. Communities in many semi-rural areas of California have adopted
such plans, bringing hikers, hikers, and equestrians together. We would hope for such a vision
in our area.

We understand that these things aren’t free...there’s work involved keeping the trails up,
addressing potential erosion, and a commitment that's necessary for users to be educated on
environmental concerns and more, but this is all doable and the reward far outweighs the cost.

We urge you to amend the use designation for that area (Morro Dune Ecological Reserve
Bayview), and to allow horseback riding on a designated trail.

Thank you,
Jim & Sharon Kroll
805-459-9336
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To: Fish and Wildlife
Re: Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve/Equestrian Trail Closures

My name is Julie Heriford and | have boarded my horses at Rancho Montanya del Mar for the past 7 years. | specifically picked this
area due to the safe and immediate access to trails this barn has had access to for well over 30 years.

| can unequivocally say we are all nature lovers at heart. We understand the importance of preserving all endangered flora and fauna.
We respect the environment and only ride well established dirt trails. We often come across families out walking and hiking and there is
most always a positive exchange.

We have, at times, been the eyes and ears when illegal campers trespass and disrupt the environment and create an unsafe situation.

Now, eguestrian's access to trails is being denied . We, as a group, are devastated. This is such a huge part of our lives that we hope
will not come to an end.

I am hoping there is a place of compromise. Please consider providing equestrians a specific flat area where your concerns for erosion
are minimized.

Thank you for your time.

Julie Heriford (homeowner)
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sunnyfriend@sbcglobal.net Sat, Jul
22,
7:55PM

to Losososequestriancommunity

My name is Carol Friend and | have been involved with the Los Osos equestrian
community since 1970 when | moved to San Luis Obispo to attend

Cal Poly. The reason | choose Cal Poly was because of the large horse community and
the abundant year around trails.

Los Osos has always been a horse friendly community as evidenced by the street
names referencing horses, such as Buckskin Drive, Palomino Drive, Lariat Drive and
Tapidero Avenue to name a few. One of the big draws to living here is that a person
can purchase an acre or two of land and keep their horse at their home.

In the 70's and 80's many of the people who kept their horses at their homes north of
Los Osos Valley Road would ride to Lariat Drive, cross Los Osos Valley Road, and
access the trails near Los Osos Creek and then access the trails that are in what is
now called Morro Dunes Ecological Reserve. From there they could continue to
Montana de Oro State Park.

| have personally ridden these trails since the early 1970's. Equestrians have had
unfettered access to the trail system in the area now being called Morro Dunes
Ecological Reserve.

To my knowledge no one was notified that horses would be excluded from these trails
which have well established historical equestrian use.

| suggest that rather than exclude horses from this area, they should be grandfathered
in because of their well established historical use in the area now called Morro Dunes
Ecological Reserve.

Sincerely,

Carol Friend
Sent from my iPhone
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From: Cricket Wood <cricketwood @ me.com>
Date: Fri, Jul 21, 2023 at 11:27 FIM

Subject: Trail access

To: <Losososequestriancommunity@gmail.com>

Hello,

My name is Cricket Wood. As a teenager | rode the Los Osos trails in the summers of 1984/5 when |
worked for Barbi Breen at Seahorse Ranch during the summer. | boarded my horse at Seahorse ranch
and the trails provided a way for my horse and | to travel safely across Los Osos to visit friends at other
barns and take our horses out to the beach. As a young person who didn’t have my own truck and
trailer | would have been stranded at one property if it hadn’t been for the trails. It was beneficial to my
horse and | to have the freedom to ride out in the open safely without encountering cars. Open trails
for safe travel on horseback is a precious resource that has been rapidly disappearing across California.
Owver the past 40 years as cars and people have multiplied in CA | have watched as the trails available to
horse riders in Southern and Central California have been continuously shrinking due to development,
legal issues, etc. Horses traveling on established trails that have been in use for decades are not
damaging to the animals that inhabit the Morro dunes. Please support sustainable travel and partner
with horseback riders who are good stewards of the environment. Horseback riding across these trails
has long preceded other human impacts on this region and has been intertwined with the natural state
for decades. Please restore access for horses across the trails of Morro Dunes as has been a historical
precedent and because it is also harmonious with the natural environment surrounding the trails.
Sincerely,

Cricket Wood

Deborah Hirons <djhirons@gmail.com= Sun, Jul
23

8:19 PM
to Losososequestriancommunity

Dear Stewards of the Morro Dunes and Ecological Reserve,

My name is Deborah Hirons. | was raised in San Luis Obispo County with a big part of
my childhood being with my pony and riding all over Los Osos. | kept my pony, and
later a horse at sea Horse Ranch from 1975 to 1985 and again, off and on, from 1999 to
present. | used to ride the corridor trail from Sea Horse Ranch to LOVE Farm, and other
existing trails to go out on a leisure ride with my horse to be one with nature and enjoy
the beauty Los Osos has to offer. |, and my riding companions, have always respected
the environment and have never left the established trails.

Recently, the trail that | have been riding on for over 45 years has been designated as a
preserve and closed to horses. | am asking that you please consider keeping the
existing trails and the corridor above Highland open as other alternatives for riding are
dangerous.

Sincerely,

Deborah Hirons

Sent from my iPhone
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11. Economic or Fiscal Impacts: ldentify any known impacts of the proposed regulation change
on revenues to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, individuals, businesses, jobs,
other state agencies, local agencies, schools, or housing: The proposed designation will result



12.
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in additional revenue for local businesses such as the boarding facilities and hotels and could
lead to additional jobs for our low income communities that are struggling to afford the rising
costs in one of the most expensive regions in California (Central Coast). Los Osos has very
limited job opportunities and limited housing due to the building moratorium by the Coastal
Commission.

The initial designation of the Ecological Reserve failed to include the surrounding farms and
horse boarding facilities despite it being a key tourist draw to the city. This has resulted in loss
of revenue from the equine boarding stables surrounding the ecological reserve who have
ridden there for countless decades. In addition, it has forced horseback riders to cross the
heavily trafficked Los Osos Valley Road - Pecho Road which leads to Montano de Oro State
Park that allows equine use. This area allows traffic speeds up to 45 MPH and there is no
safety infrastructure for pedestrian or equine infrastructure. There have been enough collisions
in the area surrounding Rodman Drive and Pecho Valley Road that the County of San Luis
Obispo is studying the stretch of Los Osos Valley Road to Pecho Valley Road to determine
how they can meet Caltrans’ and the Department of Transportation’s mandated safety
guidelines. This has also reduced the demand for jobs in agriculture and equine care. With
less available riding for horses, this impacts our low-income communities who have
traditionally pursued this labor type among other agricultural employment.

Forms: If applicable, list any forms to be created, amended or repealed:

Click here to enter text.

SECTION 3: FGC Staff Only

Date received: 11/27/2023.

FGC staff action:

Date petitioner was notified of receipt of petition and pending action:

Meeting date for FGC consideration:

(] Accept - complete
[ Reject - incomplete

[1 Reject - outside scope of FGC authority
Tracking Number

FGC action:

(1 Denied by FGC
[1 Denied - same as petition

Tracking Number
[1 Granted for consideration of regulation change



Bayview Ecological Reserve
(Morro Palisades), San Luis Obispo County

Stewart Title Company of Sacramento: Escrow No. AL17000370
First American Title Company: Preliminary Title Report SLO-52984, dated December 19, 2000

EXPLANATION OF TITLE EXCEPTIONS

Exception : Explanation

1 General and Special Taxes. All taxes will be paid by Grantor
' and confirmed to be in good standing, up to and including the

date of close of escrow. The State is exempt from paying

taxes and they will be cancelled upon close of escrow. Delete.

Lien of Supplemental Taxes. There are no supplemental taxes
- levied against the subject property at this time. After close of

escrow, these taxes will be handled in accordance with the

Revenue and Taxation Code and will be cancelled. Delete.

Drainage and Fire Protection Assessments. All taxes and
assessments will be paid by Grantor and confirmed to be in

good standing, up to and including the date of close of
escrow. These assessments are levied with the General Taxes
and the State will seek to exercise its exemption upon close of
escrow. Thereis little risk to the State that the exemption will
not be granted. In the event that the County continues to
provide these services, it will be the responsibility of the
Department of Fish and Game, as manager of the property, to
determine whether the services are of benefit to the property,
and if not, to request the exemption and cancellation of the
service at a local level. Delete. '

Utility and Road Easement. ‘This 1962 easement in favor of
Morro Palisades Company, et al., did not merge when Morro
Palisades, et al., acquired the property, as the others holding
title to the property were not the same. The easement,
extending along the westerly boundary of the property, is for
the extension of Broaderson Road, if it is ever developed. In
the interim, it provides access to a property just north of the
subject which would be landlocked without the right of way.




Explanation of Title Exceptions
Page Two

A:\Bayview-Title(Amended)(37)

The access easement, as currently used, will not interfere with
the State’s proposed use of the subject property. Should the
County ever undertake extension of Broaderson Road, the
project will need to comply with CEQA and all regulatory
agencies having authority over the project, including the
Department of Fish and Game. Accept.

Notices of Consent. Notices recorded in 1972 and 1983,
granted consent to the general public to cross over a portion
of the subject property, but preciudes their ability to claim
prescriptive rights. There is little risk that public access, if
any, will impact the State’s intended use of the property. If
public use becomes a management liability, the state can
revoke the notice. Accept. :

Right of Way Easement. These exceptions are paper roads
depicted on Parcel Map CO-76-227. They were offered by
the property owner to the County, and while the County
rejected the offer of dedication it has not abandoned (vacated)
the right of ways. Due to the sandy terrain, there is little risk
that the County will develop the roads. In the event they
elect to construct, however, the County would need to comply
with CEQA and all regulatory agencies having authority over
the project, including the Department of Fish and Game.

Accept.

Partnership Information. The title company has required
Morro Palisades to provide a copy of its partnership
agreement, as well as other information, prior to closing
escrow. This exception will then be eliminated. Delete.




Bayview Eéological Reserve
(Morro Palisades)
San Luis Obispo County

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the interest in real prbperty conveyed by the Grant

Deed dated November 8, 2000, from Morro Palisades Co., a California General
Partnership, John L. Curci Trust, established 12/22/93, aﬁd_ the California Institute of

- Technology, a California not for profit corporation, to the STATE OF CALIFORNIA, is
‘ hereby accepted by the undersigned officer on behalf of the State of California, pursuant
to authority conferred by authorization of the Wiidlife Conservation Board, Department
of Fish and Game, Resources Agency, State of California, adopfed on August 10, 2000,

and the grantee consents to the recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Resources Agency '

Department of Fish and Game
uriginal signed by
By: James V. Sarro

Al Wright
Executive Director }
Wildlife Conservation Board

Date: 0//0 ?/0/
77

A:\Bayview-CertAccep(37)




6/7/24, 9:37 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-...

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Tim Smallwood <smallwoodtim@ymail.com>
Thu 6/6/2024 9:18 PM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

In regards to the community plan to lift the building restrictions in Los Osos. We simply need more time
as uniformed citizens to the details of the current water tables and possible sea or waste water
infiltration.

It hasn't been that long since you got most residents off septic and in that time we've had abnormal rain
periods that would possibly project a nice little comfort zone to build.

We all know that there needs to be more time to truly project the availability of water before lifting a
restriction to build. There also needs to be more time for the citizens to divest and inform themselves
before giving consent to such action.

You'll have a showing Thursday regarding this and whether or not it's the right thinEo do, it's definitely

not the right time to decide. H CE'VED

Sent from my iPhone
JUN 07 202

CALIFORNIA
COASTAL Copm
CENTRAL COAEﬁ%OEAN

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

From: carolanns@charter.net <carolanns@charter.net>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:41 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Cc: 'Carol Stephens' <carolanns@charter.net>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

| am asking the Coastal Commission to postpone your vote on Los Osos so the community can get complete
information to fully understand the implications of lifting the building moratorium in Los Osos

| am aware that the long-awaited Los Osos Community Plan is up for approval next Thurs. 6/13/24 at the
California Coastal Commission. SLO County may say it's only a 1% growth rate of 60 houses a year, but they
are not including water-using hotels, restaurants, other commercial buildings, and an unlimited amount 2
bedroom, one bath, wet bar “guesthouses” that are not required to retrofit for “water neutral”. All of these new
uses are supposed to have a sustainable water supply, but there is not yet proof that our water basin is
sustainable. In fact, the water level needed for existing residences is still too low and chlorides and seawater
Intrusion are Increasing. Yet SLO County has convinced the Coastal Commission that it is ok to further stress
our water supply that has not yet recovered from decades of overdraft, septic tanks and seawater intrusion.
Updated Title 19 2:1 retrofit-to-build is being used to “prove” that new building will not affect our only source of
water. (Title 19 does not include the 25% average outdoor water use for homes). And remember an unlimited
amount of basically two-bedroom homes do not have to retrofit. Do we need housing? Yes! Do we need a truly
sustainable water supply FIRST? YES, YES, YES!!!

THIS VOTE HAS HUGE RAMIFICATIONS FOR OUR TOWN. WE SHOULD HAVE BEEN GIVEN A CHANCE
TO LEARN ABOUT IT. You were allowed this courtesy for the approval of the Habitat Conservation Plan at
Town Halls, why not the Community Plan? PLEASE POSTPONE your decision to allow more time for public
input.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Carol Ann Stephens

Los Osos



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:43 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Los Osos

From: Karen Swanson <kgrayswan@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:32 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos

Dear commissioners,

Thank you for holding this meeting in Morro Bay. | asked that you postpone the vote of the Los Osos Community
Plan until the community has been fully informed and brought up to date on SLO county’s vague Growth
Management Ordinance. Los Osos needs an adequate water supply, and all basin management plan water metric
goals met.

Karen Swanson

Woodland Dr., Los Osos

Sent from my iPad



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:00 PM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Los Osos

From: Laurie Wright <lawrn@charter.net>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:56 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Los Osos

To Whom It May Concern,

| wholeheartedly request that you postpone your decision regarding the building out of our water deprived Los
Osos community it until all the facts are available and the public has the opportunity to be informed of the same.
Respectfully,

Laurie Wright

2109 Pecho Road

Los Osos, CA 93492



6/7/24, 9:06 AM Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda ltem Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-.

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Kim O <kimo62@sbcglobal.net>
Thu 6/6/2024 5:20 PM
To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

PLEASE hold off on voting on the Los Osos building moritorium until we can get full information on.
Need to make sure that we have a sustainable water source.

Sincerely, RECEIVED
Kim O'Bryan
JUN 07 2024
Sent from AT&T Yahoo Mail on Android -
CALIFUHNIA
COASTAL COMMISSION
CENTRAL COAST AREA

about:blank 1M



6/7/24, 9:08 AM Dear Coastal commission - CentralCoast@Coastal - Outlook

Dear Coastal commission

Tom Anello <anellotom@gmail.com> HECEIVED

Thu 6/6/2024 6:42 PM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> JUN 0
7 2024

U 4 attachments (S MB) CALIFUHNIA

IMG_3847 jpeg; IMG_3845 jpeg; IMG_3848 jpeg; IMG_3844jpeg; gg’&'?;ik gg:‘fg‘{_i%gﬁl

| have written to you before regarding adding of additional mobile homes to the property of
Morro Shores mobile home Park located at 633 Ramona Ave. in which | am a resident.

Once again | will restate that aside from the inappropriate water level of the Los Osos aquifer,
our park has a water system that is more than half a century old and creates many leaks in the
property which causes the park water to be shut down regularly.

In addition, the part of the property that they want to place the homes on used to be the leech
field prior to the building of the sewer system. This ground is sinking in this area. See photos
below. This is an unsafe area to be add additional homes,

| ask that you do not stop the building moratorium for at least another few years in order to allow
the Los Osos acquifer to get to a good level and maintain that level

Tom Anello.
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San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-
Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Dear Commissioners,

Firstly, thank you so very much for holding this month’s meeting in Morro
Bay so that concerned Los Osos citizens may easily attend. | appreciate
the work you do and am saddened by the pressure and the budget cuts
that may be coming your way from our State Officials. The California
Coastal Act is a shining example of something that our state has gotten
right. Thank you for your service.

This is a long letter, but with our life-sustaining aquifer at risk | feel that it is
needed and | want it to be in the public record. Believe me it could be a lot
longer.

As a 39 year resident of Los Osos, | am writing to ask that you postpone
the vote for the Los Osos Community Plan. Let me be clear, | am not a
NIMBY. For the past three years | have been learning more about our
town’s only source of fresh water, the Los Osos Groundwater Basin. | had
mistakenly thought that our basin was on its way to being sustainable, yet
after attending many Basin Management Committee and other meetings
and reading Annual Basin Reports | could see that we were a long way
from the Basin Plan Goals.

During the long, arduous, sewer battle nitrate pollution was at the center of
the conversation, seawater intrusion not so much. At a Central Coast
Regional Water Quality Control Board meeting | listened to a CCRWQCB
staff member present a report where he stated that at that time (fall of
2022) none of the metrics had been met and that it would be 2050 until
they would. This included seawater intrusion and Chloride pollution. We
have only met the Basin Yield Goal the others have a long way to go.

| would like to add that | was so concerned about our basin and wanting to
understand the lingo and concepts, | signed up for a Hydrology &
Groundwater Sustainability short-course through UC Davis and recruited
two neighbors to attend with me. It was taught by well-known CA
Hydrologist, Dr. Thomas Harter who is a board member of the Water
Education Foundation and engages with policy makers to effectively
address sustainable groundwater management. (I wish he would engage
with our policy makers). Other accomplished professors and the Attorney
for the State Water Board spoke about important issues such as Climate



Change and its affects on groundwater basins. And that sea level rise
threatens coastal groundwater basins. Climate Change is already having
an affect on the State Water Project, but a $10 million dollar intertie to this
project has been proposed for Los Osos. The term “paper water” is often
used when referring to the actual amount that is available to existing SWP
subscribers. So far, the project will only intermittenly provide 200 acre feet,
on very rainy years. The water has not yet been secured.

On page 2 of the CCC Report it states “the Los Osos Water Recycling
Facility (LOWRF), which allowed the community to essentially rid itself
of individual septic systems and their adverse effects” This is untrue!
Out of 5,500 or so residences in our town 1/3 of them remain on
septic systems, they are still dumping nitrates and other pollutants
into the aquifer. Entire neighborhoods were left out of the Prohibition
Zone. (A grand example of policy making that adversely affects our
town, just as the LOCP and the new GMO will do unless modified).

One of these unsewered neighborhoods, Cabrillo Estates voted to be left
out of the Prohibition Zone and it was allowed. In a 1985 newspaper article
it stated that Cabrillo, way up on the hill was not in the same watershed as
the poorer parts of town. And yes, their septic pollution was flowing
downhill, but it was only polluting the ocean, as if that was a good thing. |
was incredulous at the time and remain so. What divisive and foolish
policy-making. In addition Watching mansions being build up there and on
1 acre lots throughout the building moratorium is a source of irritation for
many. Now it has been found that nitrates, pfas, sucralose and other
pollutants have turned up in a Golden State Water well and in S&T Water
wells. Recently the County was asked by the Water Board to install three
nitrate monitoring wells for this pollution plume and Supervisor Gibson,
when asked said that the cost would be put onto our sewer bills! And then
we learned that the County disagrees as to where the pollutants are
coming from. | thought “seriously? We sewered folks have been paying for
the $200 million dollar sewer and now they want us to pay to clean up the
the un-sewered folks’ polllution too?”

Residual nitrates from septics and noe sewered homes are still in the
ground. Agricultural nitrates also add to the pollutant load. | contacted the
Morro Bay National Estuary Program this week to ask about nitrate levels
coming from seeps to the bay on 4th street and was told the nitrate
levels have not changed since the sewer went in. It could be from
homes in the prohibition zone that have still not hooked up added
additional pollution along with the nitrates from thousands of now defunct



systems. In addition, new homes are being built and Cabrillo neighbors
with failing septic systems must now use Onsite Wastewater Treatment
Systems that still release 30% of the nitrates into our aquifer. (This info.
came from a Water Board staff member at a LOCAC meeting) | say No
new nitrate releasing septics should be allowed and all homes must
be hooked up to the sewer, it only makes sense.

Cleath-Harris the contracted geologist company for the BMC does fine
work and are trusted in our County. Nowhere in the Annual Reports do
they say that our basin is no longer in overdraft, that all metrics have been
met or that data proves that there is a sustainable water supply to support
the existing population into the future, let alone new population. Seawater
intrusion is evidence of overdraft and we have plenty. Since moving
here in 1985, the seawater plume has moved inland 1.9 miles. High
chloride levels are also evidence and are supposed to be at 100 mg/L they
are at 199/mg/L.

We have been hearing “The aquifer not in overdraft” and it is
“Trending towards sustainability” (First heard in a Water Board staff
report) nonsense from Supervisor Bruce Gibson for over a year and to
now see the Coastal Commission repeating the same non-scientific
verbage is truly disappointing. Our basin is OVERDRAFTED and has
NOT recovered from decades of abuse. The word play gymnastics
does not fix the problem, neither do two years of good rainfall.
Remember, climate change is real as is sea-level rise.

Now to address the weak attempt to inform and educate the
community. At the recent CSD Utilities Committee meeting (Only three
community members were present), committee members were asked to
vote on signing a letter to support the new GMO which stated that our
water supply was sufficient for new growth. Concerns were voiced by
members and the public that once again the County was dumping this
important item at the last minute just like the Title 19 update was dumpled
last-minute just before the holidays. Leaving the CSD without sufficient
time to properly discuss. They were told that is was better to just sign it
because the County was going to move ahead without the purveyor’s
letter, so they might as well sign it. More than one committee member
voiced that more time was needed to read the material, but in the end all
except one voted to send the letter of support.



A few days later at the full CSD meeting, (Again three community
members) and members also wanted more time, there were some good
ideas put forth about the growth managment ordinance, but they were told
by the CSD Manager that is was too late and the letter was sent because
the County had wanted it ASAP. Some of the CSD Board were very
surprised. (These meetings are not advertised well, and there are
poorly attended, better outreach is needed)

This is just a couple of examples of how our community and even its
elected and volunteer representatives are left out of the loop by our
County. | know the Coastal Commission is firm in its belief in public
participation, if only that were so in Los Osos and SLO County.

At one of first BMC meetings | attended, myself and a neigbor were told by
Supervisor Bruce Gibson that we were wasting time at a “business
meeting” by asking questions. And that we should email the appropriate
persons on the board before meetings. When | asked one of the board
members if he was an appropriate person to email, he said “l don’t know”.
We were also told to read the Basin Reports. (If you have read the Basin
Reports then you know how large they are and overly technical for lay
persons. The last one included the terms®kigering, isopleth and aquitard”
my hydrogeologist friend had to look up “kigering”)

Our supervisor has not held in-person office hours in Los Osos for over
three years, even though we have requested them. The BMC meeting is
the only local, in-person venue that he attends and it is 1:30 in the
afternoon. He is often in a hurry to leave and has asked that public
comment be cut short to accommodate him. Thankfully Mark Zimmer of
Golden State Water and Chuck Cesena have stood up for the public.
Working folks are not able to attend unless they take time off and parents
of young children would need childcare. Meetings are not well-advertised
and updates are not easily accessible. There is a new BMC website, but
the County website is not in sync with it, it is not well-know that there IS a
new website. In posts we have made on social media about this upcoming
CCC meeting people asked - “How come we didn’t know about the
Community Plan and GMO?”. So as you can see it is difficult for our
community to stay informed.

| have asked at several BMC, LOCAC and CSD meetings for informative,
easy to understand, public outreach/education be available to the
community. At a water board meeting one of the board members told our
Basin Executive Director that they should be doing public outreach and



edjucation. That has not happened in any meaningful fashion. | have
volunteered to help a number of times, as a former outdoor science
educator, scientific illustrator and graphic artist | have skills that could
help.

When our Habitat Conservation Plan was adopted our community was
given ample time to learn about the Plan and attend a Town-Hall type
meeting in person with Q&A with County Staff, Fish & Wildlife and other
officials. We would like the same courtesy with the Los Osos Community
Plan. So many community members do not even know what it is, plus we
have quite a few newcomers too. They also do not know about the
vaguely worded GMO.

At meetings | have attended that do address the GMO (The last LOCAC
meeting occured when the town was having internet problems) what is
talked about is 1% growth of SFRs, not how many multifamily units,
commercial, restaurants, hotels and certainly not the unlimited amount of
2 bedroom, 1 bath, wet bar, 2 car garage “guesthouses”. These are all
water-using buildings and “guesthouses” are not required to retrofit 2:1
under Title 19. Water use for landscape by each Los Osos residence and
is also not addressed through any retrofit program - this equates to 25%
of the water used from our basin. Our Supervisor and County Staff say
these mini houses are the same as adding a bedroom - | say with all
confidence that this with utter hogwash! (See attached) Some are
already being used as second residences. You, Coastal Commission
explicitly told the SLO County Planning Dept. to “Not even consider”
applications for water-using permits. (Please read Dan Karls’ stern
letter to SLO County from April 19th 2022) Yet, SLO County thumbed
their collective noses at you and these mini homes are popping up all over
town. Most egregiously you, Coastal Commission told us that this was
an illegal build. (see attached Tribune Article) and to seek legal
counsel, which we did. You did send a STOP WORK ORDER for this
guesthouse to the County. We found out in court was never sent on to the
owner. | am wondering why you didn’t check to see if your demands were
followed.

You have made a complete 180 degree about face in regards to our water
supply and call it an “evolution” in your thinking. How is it that you allowed
citizens to waste an inordinate amount of time and $70,000 trying to do
the right thing for our water supply and uphold the Coastal Act and not
have the decency to let us in on the game. You know, the one that was



being played with our Supervisor, our Groundwater Sustainability
Directors, and SLO Planning for two years? The judge at our lawsuit
stated that main reason she did not decide in our favor, ESHA and the
aquifer’s favor was that the she wanted to hear from the Coastal
Commission and you refused to oblige. (We WERE told by CCC staff
early this year, two years into the lawsuit that we wouldn’t want you to
opine because of the EVOLUTION in thought).

So for all of the above reasons and especially the lawsuit debacle, |
implore you to postpone the vote on the Los Osos Community plan and
help to ensure that Los Osos is given the courtesy to learn about and be
given answers to their questions. This needs to take place in an in-person
town hall with Q&A and an option for ZOOM participation. And it needs to
be thoroughly advertised to each and every community member.

Sincerely,
Rebecca McFarland

lllegal Guesthouse Article: https://www.sanluisobispo.com/news/local/
environment/article258220633.html|

Dan Karl Letter April 2022

COASTAL COMMISSION

April 19, 2022

0 County Department of Planning and Building
976 Osos Street, Room 200
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

Subject: New Development in Los Osos
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These are just some
of the water using
guesthouses,
guesthouse/offices
and studios that
have popped up
after CCC said they
were illegal and not
to “even consider”.



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: | caulfield <slocaul@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 6:26 PM
To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal
Subject: Los Osos community plan
Hello

This is to advise the coastal commission staff that | am very concerned about approving further
development and Los Osos given The fact that Our water basin continues to have saltwater intrusion and
continues to be risk.

Please do not approve the community plan Until there is clear evidenceOf a reversal of salt water
intrusion And a sustainable water supply.

Further, Los Osos residents Have not been given sufficient notice of this pending decision. Therefore |
request you suspend any decision And ensure there is time for public education and notification.

Lee A Caulfield

748 Lilac Dr

Los osos ca 93402

Sentfrom my iPhone



RECEIVED

JUN -6 2024
To: The California Coastal Commission COASQT&'E%:"&{\SSDN June 5, 2024

CENTRAL COAST AREA

Subject: San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program
Amendment Number LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)

Dear California Coastal Commissioners,

I’'m a long time resident, and it’s hard to understand the policy shift of the staff report
since the April 19, 2022 letter to the County. The Basin plan is in its infancy. Is the
County’s housing push over-riding the importance of long term data and studied science
analysis? Not everyone can contribute to housing in the same way, every community
has their own set of resource limitations, and for Los Osos it’s our single source aquifer.
A few years ago when the Los Osos Community Plan was being discussed, the County
assured us that build-out would only happen once the Basin was restored to a viable
water source for the current population into the future.

More recently, the Basin Management Committee annual reports have characterized
Basin conditions with a subjective spin towards graph projections into the future,
neglecting the original management goal of appropriate safeguards. Adding water use
too early in the Basin’s restoration, along with the possible exasperation of drought
conditions, and sea level rise, the basin could loose progress made to date. Being
cautious and inline with our limited resources is critical, because the consequences are
too great for the community. Two years of tremendous rain does not give certainty of
this plan. The Basin has not recovered yet to the BMC Plan of safe levels of 8-12ft. (3ft.
7inches to go to get to 8ft.) Advancing Seawater Intrusion - Chlorides have almost
doubled 184 (2022) to 199 (2023), along with being a sign of over-draft.

The water purveyors were told how many yearly builds of Single Family Residential
category, though other building types: Low Income, Median, Multi-family, Commercial,
Hotel growth, and Guest houses are defined more vaguely in terms of implementation.
How can purveyors know if they can serve the growth ordinance with out a grasp of
the overall amount and implementation?

Is it reasonable to expect that the percentage of building projects will fluctuate with the
Basin conditions? - How will the brakes be put on development, especially if
conditions worsen by long term drought and continued sea level rise that adds to
advancing chlorides?

Does this plan take away all appeals with all building types? Will neighbors be able to
voice negative impacts of projects around them? Along with adding population there
will be much needed infrastructure with County agencies being participatory and
accountable

serving this under-served community. This will have financial impacts, is this defined
well enough to move forward?




Half of our water use is pumped without metering, so private well’s and Ag use metrics
are based on modeling. One-third of Los Osos is un-sewered, and one-half of Los
Osos is un-metered. Isn’t it reasonable to expect these issues to be taken care of by
hooking everyone up to the sewer, and metering private wells and Ag well before
growth?

Not all areas of water quality degradation is from “legacy pollutants from decades of
inadequate groundwater management”. Leaching nitrate levels down hill from the
Cabrillo neighborhood has degraded the water quality for purveyors S&T and Golden
State. This nitrate problem shows that the interacted issues of waste water impacting
groundwater basin are not resolved. Cabrillo needs to be tied into sewer system as a
priority.

The use of water off-set programs are designed for water conservation, but does not
warrant use as a method to justify permitting projects. Title 19 is not guaranteed ‘water
neutral’ status - the metrics do not take into consideration the water-user, and
properties change ownership and are remodeled over time. By adding water use of this
scale - businesses, residents, and visitors equates to a range of additional high water
demand.

The sustainability of the groundwater basin goes beyond the health of the Morro Bay
estuary. Our Basin must be monitored by the most reliable indicators listed under the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. SGMA standards do not incorporate
sustainable yield estimates directly into sustainable management criteria. Basin wide
pumping within the sustainable yield estimate is not a measure of sustainability.
Additionally, SGMA defines Groundwater-dependent ecosystems (GDEs) as,
“ecological communities or species that depend on groundwater emerging from aquifer
or on groundwater occurring near the ground surface.” The Morro Bay Estuary is a
groundwater-dependent ecosystem through groundwater and surface water
interactions. Pumping the upper basin will impact Groundwater-dependent
ecosystems. There must be conclusive evidence for the persistence of legally
protected Steelhead trout in Los Osos Creek, and other groundwater-dependent
species. A 2019 field study shows Steelhead only detected in small area of upper Clark
Valley, and in Warden Creek.

Commissioners, please do not support the staff report. Current residents need certainty
of a viable water source into the future before opening the taps to this growth plan. I'm
asking for continuance for better evaluation.

Sincerely,
Lisa Denker
Baywood Park



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 8:33 AM
To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal
Subject: Fwd: Los Osos Water Supply

Get Outlook for iOS

From: james ratner <jimsonrat@yahoo.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 8:32:28 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Cc: james mealy <jimsonrat@yahoo.com>

Subject: Los Osos Water Supply

The Los Osos water supply is in the process of becoming stable, but it is not there yet. As a Los Osos resident, we need
more time before we allow more houses to be built in Los Osos. Even a slow buildout of properties will put the water
supply in further peril. Please do not allow further development until the water supply is stable.

Additionally, it makes no sense to move forward until all wells are metered. Larger homes and farms are not metered and
thus cause an unknown amount of harm to the water supply. It makes no sense to make any decisions involving water
supply until we know how much water all uses are drawing.

Thank You.

Bryan Mealy

381 Woodland Dr
Los Osos, CA 93402

Happy fun stuff: http://www.academonic.com

People don't abandon the people they love;
they abandon the people they are using. goodbyejournals

You will never forget a person who
came to you with a torch in the dark. ~M.Rose

The truth is that all people having power ought to be
be mistrusted. James Madison (with gender neutrality)

"Our greatest fear should not be of failure
but of succeeding at things in life that don't really
matter." Francis Chan



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Elizabeth Karsh <eakarsh@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 4:12 PM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Los osos building moratorium

Please consider postponing this vote until more questions are answered on the sustainability and there
is an allowance for community input.
Thank you.

Elizabeth Karsh



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Pernille Kruse <pernille kruse@icloud.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 5:51 PM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Agenda Item 14 on Thursday 6/13

Please postpone the vote on the lifting of the building moratorium until we can get the full details.

Thanks,
Pernille Kruse



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 3:43 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: | don't do facebook but would like to join arroyo grande events to help | am a senior and do not crochet but can
cut and do novice needs for first time volunteer and grow to help thank you <I1b593522 @gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 3:22 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Sent from Mail for Windows

Linda and Gene Burris at 1132 First Street Los Osos CA

There isn’t enough water no matter what is stated and more building will be a mistake as it has been in the past. |
believe that $$S is the issue here for people who want to build and have waiting for their opportunity. People don’t
follow the rules when building and is someone going to monitor? Los Osos is ALREADY overcrowded so now building on
vacant lots and allowing builds is WRONG for our community. There isn’t enough water or supervision on what will be
built. Getting something passed and then we are stuck with the problems after the building has begun. We are NOT in
favor or more building when what is already here isn’t handled correctly as | see buildings without permits in our county
and have called my neighbor on just that as he did not have a permit to build a HUGE shed next to our property
thankfully he now has a stop order put on his build thanks to my calling and the code enforcement officer Daniel Del Rio
doing his job pronto which we are thankful for as my neighbor is NOT in compliance. DO NOT stop the moratorium
without a lot more input for the homeowners and time to assess all that is proposed. Same as sewer issue we have a
say thank you for your time and we hope to find a reasonable solution for all. Gene and Linda Burris



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Art Lindsay <art_lindsay@me.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 5:41 PM
To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Los Osos Community Plan

I am submitting this email because | will be out of town on the date of the meeting so | cannot attend.
This is to request for more time to complete a more thorough review of the issues and decisions re: the
Los Osos Community Plan. The current proposal and schedule seems to be a hurry & bury strategy
employed by the county to evade the serious questions and issues needing to be addressed. The citizens
of Los Osos are asking many questions about seriously legitimate issues absolutely needing to be
addressed in any community plan. That they haven’t been acknowledged and we need to placate for
them borders on ineptitude or worse.

Please delay any procedural vote on this until the scientifically legitimate questions have been
adequately answered.

Sincerely,

Art Lindsay

2330 Glenn St

Los Osos, CA 93402
(661) 205-4911

Sent from somewhere, going, coming, or stuck in traffic.



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Patrice Promack <ppromack@yahoo.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 11:09 PM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Agenda item T14a Amendment number LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos

Community Plan).

To all members of the California Coastal Commission:

Please extend the deadline for final commission action on this amendment. There is a great deal that needs to more fully
understood to determine the true consequences of lifting the building moratorium in Los Osos. There is not yet proof that
our water basin is sustainable. The water level needed to serve existing residences is inadequate, and chlorides and
seawater intrusion are increasing. Although more housing is needed in the county of San Luis Obispo, we need a truly
sustainable water supply before additional homes can be built in Los Osos.

Please postpone your decision on this amendment, to allow more time for public input. Please also take into account the
contents of the letter from Emily Miggins and Ronald Smith that was submitted to you as a comment on this Amendment.

Thank you for postponing your decision.
Sincerely,

Patrice Promack



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 3:42 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: Rob Fisher <rfisher71 @gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 3:38 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

| respectfully request that this agenda item be postponed for six months in order to give the Los Osos community
time to study the proposal.

This proposal should not be rushed through without a chance to verify and/or challenge the conclusions.
There is no doubt that the water supply aquifer is in an overdraft condition on a five year rolling average basis.

If the conclusions of the proposal are valid, there will be no harm in waiting six months to consider it. If the
conclusions of the proposal are invalid, then the harm in approving the proposal is permanent.

Sincerely,

Rob Fisher
Los Osos, CA



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 9:58 AM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal; Moroney, Ryan@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo

County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

No stamp needed

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Robin McPeak <mcpeakchina@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 9:44 AM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment
No. LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Dear Commissioners,

| am writing to ask the Commission to extend the time limit to act on San Luis Obispo County Local
Coastal Program Amendment Number LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-Part G to September 30, 2025.

The basis of Commission staff’s recommendation to approve San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal
Program Amendment Number LCP-3-SL0O-21-0028-1-Part G is imprecise. This is because Commission
staff used the Los Osos Basin Management Committee’s (BMC) sustainable yield metric as the measure
of groundwater basin sustainability (Staff Report, page 3).

Ten years ago California enacted the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SMGA) to manage the
state’s groundwater in a sustainable manner. Today the majority of the over-drafted water basins are
now being successfully managed under SGMA which does not incorporate sustainable yield estimates
as a measure, or proof of, a basin’s sustainability (Department of Water Resources Sustainable
Management Criteria Best Management Practice, page 32). Furthermore, the Los Osos Basin Plan (LOBP)
Table ES-2 for 2023 shows there was an increase in chloride levels (Goal: 100 mg/L or lower. Calculated
value: 199 mg/L in 2023. Increase from 184 mg/L in 2022) showing that there is a worsening in seawater
intrusion. SGMA considers seawater intrusion as a negative sustainability indicator (Department of
Water Resources Sustainable Management Criteria Best Management Practice, pages 4 and 5).

The Los Osos BMC, and Coastal staff, did not follow the respected and established SGMA protocol when
making their determination of the adjudicated Los Osos groundwater basin’s sustainability and its ability
to tolerate population growth. This leaves questions as to the accuracy of their data and conclusion. |
believe the proper course of action is for the Commission to vote for a continuation to September 30,
2025 and have a certified hydrogeologist assess our groundwater basin, the only source of water for Los
Osos. The report should be signed by the certified hydrogeologist along with their professional seal. This
will result in an impartial report issued by an independent third party authority. It would give confidence
to the community that your decision on our Community Plan was made with valid information.



Sincerely,

Robin McPeak
Los Osos

Sentfrom my iPhone



SIERRA CLUB RECEIVED

SANTA LUCIA
JUN -6 2024

CALIFUHNIA
California Coastal Commission COASTAL COMMISSION
CENTRAL COAST AREA

June 5, 2024

Hearing date June 13, 2024

Item 14: San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program Amendment Number
LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)

Dear Commissioners:

We urge a very cautious approach in moving the Los Osos Community Plan forward. Your staff report
notes the unclear and confusing status of the Plan in relation to the LCP and the Estero Area Plan.
What is missing and sorely needed is: “...a clear, succinct, and directive set of policies that address
today’s understanding of core water, wastewater, and habitat protection issues” (Staff Report, p. 22).

While current usage is estimated at 69% of the estimated sustainable yield of 2,380 AF/y, the levels of
chloride and nitrate are important indicators of basin health.

“And while the BMC’s 2023 report shows that the chloride and nitrate metrics are above target
values (with two of the four chloride-monitoring wells above the 100 mg/I target (at 211 mg/I
and 346 mg/I respectively), and four of the five nitrate-monitoring wells above 10 mg/I (for an
average of about 14 mg/l})....” (Staff Report, p. 23).

While the Basin Management Committee expects these metrics to vary but to be trending lower, we
have concerns about this casual approach to chloride levels. In comments in 2021 we expressed
concerns that the levels that had trended down in 2017/18 moved up again through Spring of 2020
and are even higher now at 346 mg/I.

“Water Level and Chloride Metric trends from spring 2020 show that seawater intrusion is
advancing in lower aquifer Zones D and E. After showing signs of improvement in 2017 and
2018, the Chloride Metric, which the BMC uses as an indicator of seawater intrusion, has risen
from 145 mg/! in fall of 2018, to 163 mg/| in fall of 2019, to about 180 mg/I in spring of 2020,
indicating worsening conditions (WL and CL Metrics, Spring 2020 Draft)” (Santa Lucia Chapter
Comments, 2021).

Specific policies and goals should be identified in the Community Plan to guarantee that as water
usage rises, chloride and nitrate levels will actually trend down. Clear metrics should be identified and
adopted that guarantee that chloride levels will not rise above a defined level and, at that point,
pumping will be cut back. If water quality declines as use increases, there are no alternative water
supplies available. '

Your Commission has unquestionably been an important backstop preserving marine resources,
wetlands, and environmentally sensitive habitat areas (ESHAs) and overseeing the health of the basin
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for the benefit of the environment and the residents by requiring the new development be served by
an adequate water supply.

A readable accurate Plan in plain language would be beneficial to all and more likely to achieve the
goals of environmental enhancement and a reliable stable water supply.

Kind regards,

Susan Harvey, Chair
Conservation Committee
Santa Lucia Chapter, Sierra Club

Santa Lucia Chapter of the Sierra Club
P.O. Box 15755, San Luis Obispo, CA 93406
(805) 543-8717

Sierraclub8@gmail.com
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Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Meg Syfan <msyfan@protonmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 3:55 PM

To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal

Subject: Thursday 14a Syfan

Dear Coastal Commission Staff,

| ask that you consider postponing your approval of the Los Osos Community Plan until 2 important conditions are
met.

1. The majority of Los Osos residents must have an opportunity to learn about the Los Osos Community Plan,
the Coastal Commission Staff Report and it's potential ramifications.
2. There is confirmation that the Groundwater Basin can support the existing population.

| have done my best to stay up to date with the decisions being made regarding the Los Osos Aquifer and possible
development. | have shared information about the decision of the Coastal Commission to accept the Community
Plan to several people in Los Osos and they have no idea what I'm talking about. This leads me to believe that
most of the residents in Los Osos are unaware of this very critical decision and more effort needs to be made to
inform them before making this decision.

| am also opposed to the County Board of Supervisors decision accepting the map for 97 homes that are
proposed to be built on the driving range at Sea Pines Golf Course. | urge you to have some language in the
Community Plan that states that (upon proving with Sufficient Data that the aquifer is sustainable) if any
development were to occur in Los Osos, that the individual lots have priority over a tract home build out.

Also, the email link on your website for how to email a written comment is not working properly. The last letter "v" in
gov does not appear in the address and | had to put it in manually.

Thank you for your consideration,

Meg Syfan
Los Osos Resident

"Refuse, Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, Rot"
Bea Johnson - Zero Waste Home



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 1:53 PM

To: Moroney, Ryan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: Elaine Watson <elaine.watson@charter.net>

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 1:51 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Commissioners:

Los Osos Sustainability Group has been coming before this Commission and Staff for
something close to 20 years making essentially the same request, the same ones
memorialized in Condition 5/6 of the CDP.

We, as should everyone dealing with a finite resource, believe the Precautionary Principle
must apply. Our basin, as you well know, is a finite resource historically threatened by
overuse and the resultant SWI. Now we’re before you again asking you to seriously and
with all due diligence, prohibit any and all new development until there is conclusive
evidence our basin will sustainably support the existing population well into the future
before permitting more water use or users.

In spite of very significant effort by LOSG, the BMC, primarily controlled by the County,
has done practicably nothing to improve metrics and/or other means to accurately assess
sea water encroachment. Requests to meter basin-wide water users, a practice being
implemented in other water challenged areas around the state, coupled with repeated
requests to maximize all conservation measures have been met with silence or, at most,
perfunctory lip service, both of which point to bureaucratic indifference/lassitude.

There is, however, apparently, a plan to solve this dilemma. Build a pipeline to Morro Bay
in order to buy some of their State Water allotment. Many problems follow. For starters
Morro Bay residents are very opposed, the $8M or whatever the cost will be (as we know,
probably much more) plus the cost for that very expensive water will be borne by the
already overburdened rate payer. Overburdened with historical inflationary costs of nearly
everything. This is yet another infrastructure project, purported to solve a problem that
simply, functionally, feeds the said bureaucratic system and its contractors. There’s also
the very real issue of predicted future droughts and the availability of often over sold State
Water. Something like this should be a very last ditch effort, not a band-aide for poor
oversight and irresponsible decisions.




Please, reel this back to the foundation of all our efforts - to prioritize policies that ensure
the health and sustainability of this basin. Of course it’s complicated and requires much
due diligence, but it’s also a very simple guiding principle.

We understand the political pressures you are under and the impulse to acquiesce, but
this basin — and its residents — depend on your decision. That’s a huge responsibility, the
consequences of which will last lifetimes.

Elaine Watson
Board Member, LOSG
elaine.watson@charter.net

Virus-free.www.avast.com
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Gavin Newsom, Governor

David Shabazian, Director

June 4, 2024
VIA EMAIL

Mr. Ryan Moroney

California Coastal Commission
Central Coast District

725 Front Street, Suite 300
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
Ryan.Moroney@coastal.ca.gov

Dear Mr. Moroney:
LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-PART G LOS OSOS COMMUNITY PLAN

The California Geologic Energy Management Division (CalGEM) appreciates the
opportunity to submit comments on the project referenced above (Project).

CalGEM’s authority is set forth in Division 3 of the Public Resources Code (PRC), and of
the California Code of Regulations, title 14, (CCR). PRC section 3208.1 establishes well
re-abandonment responsibility when a previously plugged and abandoned well may
be impacted by planned property development or construction activities. Local
permitting agencies, property owners, and/or developers should be aware of, and fully
understand, that significant and potentially dangerous issues may be associated with
development near oil, gas, or geothermal wells.

CalGEM has reviewed the Project. To assist local permitting agencies, property owners,
and developers in making wise land use decisions regarding potential development
near oil, gas, or geothermal wells, CalGEM provides the following information.

Our records indicate there are oil, gas, or geothermal wells located in and around the
City of Los Osos. For comment and well review for future development on parcels
where wells are located, please contact CalGEM. Records and locations for oil, gas,
and geothermal wells located in California are available online at
https.//www.conservation.ca.gov/calgem/Pages/WellFinder.aspx

CalGEM categorically advises against building over, or in any way impeding access to
oil, gas, or geothermal wells. Access is considered the ability for a well servicing unit
and associated necessary equipment to reach a well from a public street or access
way, solely over the parcel on which the well is located. A well servicing unit, and any
necessary equipment, should be able to pass unimpeded along and over the route,
and should be able to access the well without disturbing the integrity of surrounding
infrastructure. Items that can affect well access include, but are not limited to,
State of California Natural Resources Agency | Department of Conservation
Northern District
Orcutt Office and Mail: 195 S. Broadway, Suite 101, Orcutt, CA 93455 | T: (805) 937-7246 | F: (805) 937-0673
Sacramento Office and Mail: 715 P Street, MS 1803, Sacramento, CA 95814 | T: (916) 322-1110 | F: (916) 445-3319
Ventura Office: 1000 S. Hill Road, Suite 116, Ventura, CA 93003 | T: (805) 937-7246 | F: (805) 654-4765
Ventura Mail: 195 S. Broadway, Suite 101, Orcutt, CA 93455
conservation.ca.gov
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buildings, housing, fencing, hardscape, landscape, trees, pools, patios, sidewalks,
roadways, parking lots, waterways or channels, and decking. Impeding access to a
well could result in the need to remove any structure or obstacle that prevents or
impedes access.

There are no guarantees a well abandoned in compliance with current CalGEM
requirements will not start leaking in the future. It always remains a possibility that any
well may start to leak oil, gas, and/or water after abandonment, no matter how
thoroughly the well was plugged and abandoned. CalGEM acknowledges wells
plugged and abandoned to the most current standards have a lower probability of
leaking in the future, however there is no guarantee that such abandonments will not
leak.

CalGEM advises that all wells identified on development parcels prior to, or during,
development activities be tested for liquid and gas leakage. Surveyed locations should
be provided to CalGEM in Latitude and Longitude, NAD 83 decimal format. CalGEM
expects any wells found leaking to be reported to it immediately.

PRC section 3208.1 gives CalGEM the authority to order or permit the

re-abandonment of any well where it has reason to question the integrity of the
previous abandonment, or if the well is not accessible or visible. Failure to plug and re-
abandon a well may result in enforcement action, including an order to perform
re-abandonment well work, pursuant to PRC section 3208.1, and 3224. Responsibility for
re-abandonment costs may be affected by the choices made by the local permitting
agency, property owner, and/or developer in considering the general advice set forth
in this letter. The PRC continues to define the person or entity responsible for
re-abandonment as:

1. The property owner - If the well was plugged and abandoned in conformance
with CalGEM requirements at the time of plugging and abandonment, and in its
current condition does not pose an immediate danger to life, health, and
property, but requires additional work solely because the owner of the property
on which the well is located proposes construction on the property that would
prevent or impede access to the well for purposes of remedying a currently
perceived future problem, then the owner of the property on which the well is
located shall obtain all rights necessary to re-abandon the well and be
responsible for the re-abandonment.

2. The person or entity causing construction over or near the well - If the well was
plugged and abandoned in conformance with CalGEM requirements at the
time of plugging and abandonment, and the property owner, developer, or
local agency permitting the construction failed either to obtain an opinion from
the supervisor or district deputy as to whether the previously abandoned well is
required to be re-abandoned, or to follow the advice of the supervisor or district
deputy not to undertake the construction, then the person or entity causing the
construction over or near the well shall obtain all rights necessary to re-abandon
the well and be responsible for the re-abandonment.
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3. The party or parties responsible for disturbing the integrity of the abandonment -
If the well was plugged and abandoned in conformance with CalGEM
requirements at the time of plugging and abandonment, and after that time
someone other than the operator or an affiliate of the operator disturbed the
integrity of the abandonment in the course of developing the property, then the
party or parties responsible for disturbing the integrity of the abandonment shall
be responsible for the re-abandonment.

To view PRC section 3208.1 in its entirety, please visit:
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/index/Documents/CALGEM-SR-1%20Web%20Copy.pdf

No well work may be performed on any olil, gas, or geothermal well without written
approval from CalGEM. Well work requiring written approval includes, but is not limited
to, mitigating leaking gas or other fluids from abandoned wells, modifications to well
casings, and/or any other abandonment or re-abandonment work. CalGEM also
regulates the top of a plugged and abandoned well’s minimum and maximum depth
below final grade. CCR section 1723.5 states well casings shall be cut off at least 5 feet
but no more than 10 feet below grade. If any well needs to be lowered or raised (i.e.,
casing cut down or casing riser added) to meet this regulation, a permit from CalGEM
required before work can start.

CalGEM makes the following additional recommendations to the local permitting
agency, property owner, and developer:

1. To ensure that present and future property owners are aware of (a) the existence
of all wells located on the property, and (b) potentially significant issues
associated with any improvements near oil or gas wells, CalGEM recommends
that information regarding any identified well(s), and any other pertinent
information obtained after the issuance of this letter, be communicated to the
appropriate county recorder for inclusion in the title information of the subject
real property.

2. CalGEM recommends that any soil containing hydrocarbons be disposed of in
accordance with local, state, and federal laws. Please notify the appropriate
authorities if soil containing significant amounts of hydrocarbons is discovered
during development.

As indicated in PRC section 3106, CalGEM has jurisdictional authority over the drilling,
operation, maintenance, and abandonment of oil, gas, and geothermal wells, and
attendant facilities, to prevent, as far as possible, damage to life, health, property, and
natural resources, damage to underground oil, gas, and geothermal deposits, and
damage to underground and surface waters suitable for irrigation or domestic
purposes. In addition to CalGEM’s authority to order work on wells pursuant to PRC
section 3208.1 and 3224, it has authority to issue civil and criminal penalties under PRC
section 3236, 3236.5, and 3359 for violations within CalGEM’s jurisdictional authority.
CalGEM does not regulate grading, excavations, or other land use issues.
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If during development activities any wells are encountered that were not part of a
construction site well review, a CalGEM engineer in the Northern District - Orcutt office is
to be notified immediately, and an amended site plan with well casing diagrams for
CalGEM review shall be filed. After appropriate review, the District office will send a
follow-up well evaluation letter to the property owner, applicant, and local permitting
agency.

Thank you for considering the CalGEM’s comments. If you have any questions, please
contact our District office at (805) 937-7246 or via email at
CalGEMNorthern@conservation.ca.gov

Sincerely,

Trey Powell
Northern District Deputy

ZN:jizkv

cc: CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov
Chrono
CSWR
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Request for Continuance of Decision — San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program
Amendment Number LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)

From: Emily Miggins and Ronald Smith RECE'VED

To: California Coastal Commission (CCC), email transmission
JUN -4 202

Date: June 4", 2024
COASTAL COMMS
. . _— MISSION
Dear California Coastal Commission, CENTRAL COAST AREA

We are writing to respectfully request a continuance of the Coastal Commission’s consideration
of the Los Osos Community Plan (LOCP) currently set for June 13th, 2024,

Reasons for Continuance

More time is needed for expert consideration of the complex water supply issues: The Coastal
Commission staff has been working on the complex issues implicated by the County’s proposed
major revisions to the Estero Bay Area Plan, particularly those associated with the LOCP. Whereas
the Commission Staff and the County have been working on this issue for months if not years, the
public has only been presented with the technical reports and the Commission’s analysis for just a
couple of weeks. As a result, the public has not had adequate time to retain experts to thoroughly
analyze and comment on the complex and vexing water supply issues that have resulted in a virtual
ban on new water- demanding construction in Los Osos for the past decades.

Need for More Public Input: The current proposal for the LOCP and growth management (GM)
has not received sufficient public input from the citizens of Los Osos. A continuance would allow
for additional community outreach and education efforts, ensuring a more informed and inclusive
decision-making process. An open house or Town Hall with CCC staff and the County of San Luis
Obispo Planning Department and Los Osos Basin Management Committee would be an excellent
way to garner true, transparent governance and most importantly community based scientific input.

Potential Impacts Require Further Scrutiny: The potential environmental and social impacts
of the LOCP are potentially irreversible and therefore require thorough analysis and public input.
A continuance would allow for more time to assess these impacts and explore potential mitigation
strategies and garner community support for how growth will be managed by the County of San
Luis Obispo.

e There are many subject matter experts that live in the community of Los Osos, such as
hydrogeologists, geologists, environmental scientists, ecologists and engineers and
regional academics in these fields that work full time and cannot attend Basin Management
Committee meetings that occur during the day. While the LO Community Service Utility
Committee meeting is held during evening hours — the CSD is a utility that serves a very
small percentage of the water users in our community.

e There have been no concerted efforts by the CSD Board or County BMC & Planning to
reach out to local citizens to discuss the new Community Plan in light of the County and
Commission’s freshly minted water supply analysis. Instead, these matters have been
discussed at Board Meetings that do not encourage or even allow free opportunity to openly
ask questions without the constraints of the Brown Act. For example, there was a very well
attended open house held in 2019 with County Planners and their consultants, and
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California Fish & Wildlife and U.S. Fish & Wildlife representatives, regarding the draft
Los Osos Habitat Conservation Plan and Environmental Impact Report. Many community
and county stakeholders attended this meeting, in fact it was standing room only at the
meeting, so the government professionals and consultants could engage deeply with
concerns in the community and stakeholder groups. There were even in person follow up
meetings with stakeholders such as Fire Safe Council. No such meetings have been held to
discuss the important issues that are raised by the Commission’s analysis and conclusions
concerning the health of Los Osos groundwater and the evidence that allegedly supports
the conclusion that sea water intrusion has been adequately curtailed.

Some of the Specific Concerns:

o The LOCP has both potential positive and negative impacts with an increase in population
— an increase in housing but also water use demand and traffic congestion, how can the
citizens of Los Osos be assured that there will be sufficient human resources to protect
against wildfire, including appropriate care and restoration for drought parched coastal
chaparral and its potential conflagration (as discussed during the Los Osos Fire and
Emergency Preparedness Townhall in 2019)? We have had no large-scale public town halls
since this time or regular smaller routine focus group meetings with CALFIRE.

o There are essentially no well-advertised local public forums for the citizens of Los Osos to
engage in community-based initiatives and issues, such as LOCP. Los Osos has a
Community Advisory Committee (LOCAC) and is attended by a county supervisor
(District 2), but most Los Osans are unfamiliar with LOCAC because the meetings are
essentially unadvertised, and our county supervisor has not held open “Los Osos Office
Hours” the past few years. Ideally the LOCAC meetings would be advertised on social
media platforms like Facebook group Support Los Osos and NextDoor, or noticed in our
local newspaper Estero Bay News, or in the mail (e.g., a “postcard drop” or a notice in our
water bills) and our “Los Osos Office Hours” would resume.

e What are the qualifications and backgrounds of the staff behind the technical
recommendations in growth management? For example, the annual basin reports published
by the Los Osos Basin Management Committee are verified/approved by a certified
professional hydrogeologist. Why is there no ‘citizen at large’ representative on our Basin
Management Committee working with our ‘Water Master’?

Measurement Matters:

Is Staff’s current conclusion that groundwater supplies in Los Osos are “trending towards
sustainability” a scientifically defensible proposition? This conclusion would mean that Los Osos
is open for new water use consumption despite the monitoring data showing seawater intrusion
(i.e., chloride content in drinking wells) continues to rise?

e What within the adjudicated basin metrics supports the statement “trending towards
sustainability”?

e What is behind the technical recommendations in the LOCP — and over what period were
they developed?
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As scientists we find “big picture decision making” for sustainability to be a risky proposition. For
approximately the last decade there have been four groundwater metrics and goals for the BMC,
regulatory agencies, and the public to evaluate the “health” of the Los Osos groundwater basin
“through objective, numerical criteria that can be tracked over time.” These include metrics for
basin yield, water level, chloride, and nitrate. The goal for the basin yield metric has been met
seven of the last nine years, but the goals for the water level, chloride, and nitrate metrics have
never been met.

While the nitrate metric goal has not yet been achieved, at least the nitrate levels have steadily
decreased over the last seven years. As one would expect, the water level metric is sensitive to
precipitation and recharge, and we saw a nice increase in water levels the last two above-average
precipitation years. The chloride metric, on the other hand, has been variable the last nine years,
but not trending in any direction. The 2023 Basin Report showed once again an increase in chloride
levels. According to the most recent draft 2023 Basin Report “seawater intrusion is a major concern
for the Lower Aquifer. The seawater intrusion front corresponds to the position of the 250 mg/L
chloride concentration isopleth, which has been advancing inland for decades, and continues to
advance under current Basin conditions, based on the monitoring program data. A significant
reduction in Lower Aquifer production in the Western Area, together with other LOBP programs,
is necessary to halt, slow and/or reverse intrusion.”

A number of important questions have not been addressed by the Staff Report:

e How will a moderate to extended drought impact the metrics that are behind the technical
recommendations for growth management? The BMC basin yield and water level metric
are sensitive to drought (or lack of recharge) and could trend “in the other direction” during
drought.

e Saltwater intrusion into the Los Osos groundwater basin is a huge concern, how will an
increase in population and water demand impact this? Title-19 retrofits do not negate the
total water use footprint each new citizen can create like landscaping (think grocery store
operations, restaurants, bars, coffee houses, cars washed, visitors hosted, and new
vegetable and fruit tree gardens watered, specialty crop acreage added, hobbyist livestock
operations established, hot tubs installed and even the perennial issue of illegal VRBO’s
operated and Guesthouses illegally occupied as fulltime living accommodations.)

e What is the plan if trends reverse, and we start “trending towards unsustainability?”” Will
the BMC or County Planning have the power to immediately stop development and rescind
already issued building permits?

e How much actual development will be generated under the Staft’s proposed 1% growth
scenarios? Are commercial builds, ADUs, Guesthouses and/or affordable housing projects
subject to or exempt from the 1% cap?

Benefits of Continuance:

The decision before you are a major land use decision that would affect the health and welfare of
the Los Osos Community for decades to come. Increase in water consumption could effectively
compromise the groundwater basin by accelerating seawater intrusion. By granting a continuance
and taking steps with the County of San Luis Obispo to engage in depth with the community of
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Los Osos at a public forum where a sincere Q&A can be had, the Commission can ensure a more
robust and well-rounded decision-making process. This will ultimately lead to growth
management that better serves the needs of the community and protects the delicate coastal
environment and resources in Los Osos without the risk of further contaminating our only source
of drinking water. We would like to remind the Commissioners, and hardworking Planning Staff
that changing only when you have to usually means it's too late. If you don't anticipate the future,
you will be run over by it.

Again, we strongly urge Commissioners to practice good governance and uphold Coastal
Commission values of strong public participation, education, and effective intergovernmental
coordination by facilitating open transparent communication via a public forum to interact with
our community scientifically, and socially as with the previously mentioned example regarding
the Habitat Conservation Plan open house.

We are available to discuss our concerns further at your convenience as well as offer suggestions
for solutions for community engagement. Please feel free to contact us at 510.292.9078 or
LosOsans4GoodGovernance@gmail.com.

On behalf of Los Osans for Good Governance®, thank you for your time and consideration,

AL

Emily Miggins, Environmental Scientist & Sustainability Strategist
https://www linkedin.com/in/emilymiggins
Ronald Smith, M.S. Hydrogeology

https://linkedin.com/in/geomechanic



From: CentralCoast@Coastal

To: Moroney. Ryan@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No.
LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Date: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 1:47:52 PM

From: Eve Gruntfest <evegruntfest@icloud.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 1:46 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Subject: San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program Amendment Number
LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan)
Dear Coastal Commission Staff Members and Commissioners,

I am an avid fan of the Coastal Commission and I appreciate the difficult challenges you and the staff face on a daily and intensifying
basis in managing competing short and long term objectives and maintaining public access with careful attention to natural areas.

The Los Osos Community Plan should not be approved until two important conditions are met:

1. The majority of Los Osos residents must have an opportunity to learn about the Los Osos Community Plan, the Coastal Commission
Staff report and its potential ramifications; and,

2. There is confirmation that the Groundwater Basin can support the existing population.

Most people in Los Osos had no involvement (or awareness) of the Los Osos Community Plan in 2020 when it was last approved by the
SLO County Board of Supervisors and the Planning Commission. In the past four years many people have moved to Los Osos and there
is no mechanism for them to have learned about the existence of the Los Osos Community Plan. The narrow 3 week timeline between the
release of the Coastal Commission Staff report and the potential approval of the Los Osos Community Plan is unacceptable if the Coastal
Commission genuinely wants public involvement.

The Coastal Commission needs to require that the County offer a series of public awareness meetings to share the details and importance
of the Los Osos Community Plan with local residents. As someone who has participated in the Los Osos Community Advisory Council,
the Basin Management Committee and other small committees I know how limited the local involvement and awareness of the land use
and water issues have been.

While the outcome may not change and the Staff recommendations may be approved by the Commission, it is prudent to open the
conversation among the interested parties of 15,000 current residents. After the 40 year moratorium and five years since the last mention
of the Local Community Plan - there is no urgency to rush the Coastal Commission decision in three weeks.

Since it appears that the county will be the responsible entity for managing the permitting process - public meetings can help with
clarification of how the County staff will manage the new building. Which lots will be prioritized (will there be systematic consideration
based on placement on the “waiting list”, where will the multi-family housing developments on the waiting list be prioritized, and how
will building permits on the properties outside the prohibition zone be permitted. It is unacceptable to move forward without offering
broad community involvement.

2. A content analysis of the recorded Basin Management meetings shows that the main goal of the Basin Management Committee was to
interpret what is known about the Los Osos Basin to assure that it was sustainable and that new building should be permitted.

There was no commitment to learning more details about the Basin. There are so many uncertainties that have not proven that the Basin
can support the current population, let alone, authorize additional building.

For years, every other meeting was “canceled”. Questions about the number of “straws” in the aquifer, especially related to agricultural or
large unmetered lots, the contamination of the S& T well by the nitrates in un-sewered Cabrillo Estates and the saltwater intrusion that


mailto:CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:ryan.moroney@coastal.ca.gov

will intensify with sea level rise were brought up but words like “hopefully” and “improved” were used and these essential issues were
never addressed. From the evidence, all of the active stakeholders on the Basin Management Committee acknowledged that nitrates from
Cabrillo Estates contaminated the S&T well (s). If the Committee members were serious about protecting the Los Osos Groundwater they
would have addressed this problem head on - and not authorized more expensive studies to consider other possible sources of the
contamination.

I have not met one person who can explain how the “offset” program allows for thousands of new residents without adding any water
demand. How can the Coastal Commission staff “know” that the addition of 800 new residents in the proposed Multi-Family Housing
south of Morro Shores will not cause more irreparable harm to Los Osos’s sole water source? Magical thinking seemed pervasive.

At the close of the first quarter of the 21st century engineers and scientists on policy making bodies like the Los Osos Basin Management
Committee, the Los Osos Community Services District, the Regional Water Quality Board (that established the moratorium in Los Osos)
and even the California Coastal Commission are interpreting science in ways that are influenced by wishful thinking, not just by scientific
interpretation of the best available data. With climate change -it it NOT the time for wishful thinking - it’s time for careful risk
management of precious water resources.

It is disturbing that the Coastal Commission Staff so powerfully wrote about the status of the groundwater in their April, 2022 letter to the
County stating that no building could occur would also be convinced 2 years later that in 2024 the conditions had improved so much that
building should commence.

Talk of an intertie or some other pipeline and talk about a pipeline also require “magical thinking” intensified by the one year of rainfall.
It is nonsense that there will be state water available for tiny Los Osos. How is it possible that Los Osos could effectively compete (or
afford to even try to compete) with the larger cities and towns once the competition for newer water sources occurs? Many much larger
municipalities will be much higher on the priority list for water during droughts and some of them will not be able to get water.

Why is the extensive conservation by current Los Osos residents being used to punish them by allowing more stress on the Basin. As
others have stated - Los Osans did not radically alter their water usage to allow new residents. They reduced their usage because they
knew that it was necessary to assure that THEY would have water in the coming years.

As unincorporated San Luis Obispo County, Los Osos already has difficulties with crime, drainage and flood control, traffic and a huge
lack of enforcement of existing codes because of limited County resources that are allocated elsewhere. Supervisor Gibson’s main job at
many Los Osos Community Advisory Council meetings is to say NO to the growing number of funding requests for parks, road
maintenance, and general upkeep because of limited and diminishing county funds. What guarantee is there that managing growth and the
implications of growth (including the wishful thinking that the permitting will stop if/when it is determined that nitrates, seawater
intrusion, and/or drought no longer support the permitting) will not be subject to the same lack of necessary resources?

In addition to these 2 items:

a. Please recognize that Los Osos has limited road access. There are only 2 routes out of Los Osos: Los Osos Valley Road to San Luis
Obispo or South Bay Boulevard to Morro Bay. The proximity of Diablo Canyon Nuclear Plant and the increasing threat of wildfire in and
around Los Osos compound the risks of substantially adding to the population. Los Osos has a large senior population that will be unable
to evacuate quickly enough if a major fire or other incident occurs.

b. The Coastal Commission Staff states that much of Los Osos, and particularly the 56 acres south of Morro Shores Mobile Home Park,
was considered ESHA, and therefore was unsuitable for development.

Suddenly during the approval of the Community Plan in 2020 the SLO County Planning Commission asked the County Planning
Department to modify the draft Plan so that the final approved Plan does not have any maps showing much of the ESHA lands

The county acknowledges that Los Osos has fewer acres per person of parks than most of the rest of San Luis Obispo County. Working
with the Land Trust, Audubon Society and others establishing a dog park and other recreational opportunities in the open spaces would be
a wiser long term solution for maintaining the aquifer than adding 800 people. Paving and rooftops will greatly reduce the aquifer
recharge that occurs when the open space can absorb rainfall. The urbanization will send the runoff and pollution into Morro Bay.

Thank you for your consideration of these elements.

Sincerely,

Eve Gruntfest, Ph.D. geographer
evegruntfest@gmail.com



Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: CentralCoast@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 3:03 PM

To: Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Fw: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County

LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

From: office bearvalleyre.com <office@bearvalleyre.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 2:53 PM

To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP Amendment No. LCP-3-
SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Dear committee,

Please act and lift the building moratorium in Los Osos.

This community is in a state of limbo and has been for decades.

I don’tthink itis fair that a small group of residents make appeal after appeal to thwart any building or
community progression here.

Lifting the moratorium would create jobs, increase taxes for SLO County and allow vacant landowners
the opportunity to see their
dream of living here, become a reality.

Thank you,

Dianne Blanchard, Broker
DRE #01945483
Broker and Transaction Coordinator

900 Los Osos Valley Road Suite A
Los Osos, CA 93402
805-528-0100



6/5/24, 2:16 PM Mail - CentralCoast@Coastal - Qutlook

Public Comment on June 2024 Agenda Item Thursday 14a - San Luis Obispo County LCP
Amendment No. LCP-3-SLO-21-0028-1-Part G (Los Osos Community Plan).

Andrew Cal rwood <calderwoodaj@gmail.com>
Mon 5/27/2024 1:54 PM

To:CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>

To: California Coastal Commission

I grew up in Los Osos, CA and | always enjoyed the small-town community with all its quirkiness and
the natural beauty that is around us. Throughout my childhood | remember learning about water
conservation in school and at home, and the question of septic tanks versus a sewer. It was enriching
to see a community so passionate about water. After graduating high school | went to UC Davis where
I earned my BS in Civil and Environmental Engineering and found a passion for water which | furthered
by completing my PhD in Hydrologic Sciences. After focusing on water problems and solutions for
many years in school, I've been proud to look back on my community with a new lense and see the
progress that we've made in moving toward water sustainability. The development and
implementation of a water recycling system is a major accomplishment that not many cities in
California have achieved. Additionally, the coordinated effort of local water purveyors, stakeholders,
consultants, and government has produced a basin management plan with proposed management
actions that will grow and help maintain water sustainability into an uncertain future climate. Beyond
this, the community of Los Osos has become thoroughly involved in at home water conservation and
maintaining the community for future generations. To support future generations, there is a strong
need to develop additional housing in Los Osos as the younger generations are trying to move back
home to a place that once was an affordable community to raise a family. The proposed 1% growth
plan that is supported by the county of San Luis Obispo, local water purveyors, and Coastal
Commission staff would begin the process of creating new development that would reduce the lack of
housing which has raised both home and rental prices. The proposed growth plan is an appropriate
balance of water sustainability and community support as it will ensure slow, steady growth without
overusing the Los Osos aquifer system. Additionally, the choice to allow 1% development will give
time for water resources projects to improve the communities water portfolio to ensure sustainability
under future drought conditions. I recommend the Coastal Commission listen to the recommendations
of the county of San Luis Obispo, the local water purveyors, Coastal Commission Staff, and the
community of Los Osos by approving the Los Osos Community Plan to allow for sustainable
development. Thank you for considering the proposal.

Best,
Andrew Calderwood

RECEIVED

MAY 28 2024

CALIFOANIA
COASTAL COMMISSION

CENTRAL COAST AREA
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Jackson, Devon@Coastal

From: Jeff Edwards <jhedwardscompany@gmail.com>

Sent: Saturday, December 9, 2023 7:16 AM

To: Carl, Dan@Coastal; Moroney, Ryan@Coastal; Jackson, Devon@Coastal

Subject: Los Osos Groundwater Basin

Attachments: LO Water Use_Population Graph_JHE final July 2023.pdf; Take-Aways from July 2023 Los

Osos Groundwater Basin Graph.pdf

Hello Gentlemen,

Please see attached a graph depicting water levels, groundwater production and population in Los Osos
since about 1970 with projections into the future. Also attached is a summary of facts and assertions
about future growth. My hope is this information helps your staff better understand the situation with
respect to water resources in Los Osos. The oft repeated false narrative about the contamination of the
basin and the depletion of the resource requires that accurate information be acknowledged. | am
available for any questions you may have. Please confirm receipt.

Thanks,

Jeff

Julie Tacker
Administrative Assistant

J.H. Edwards Company
P.O. Box 6070

Los Osos, CA 93412
805.235.0873 - Jeff
805.235.8262 - Julie
805.528.3569 - Office
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Take-aways from July 2023 Los Osos Groundwater Basin graph.

The water level in the lower aquifer (Zones D&E) has risen 7.8 feet
between 1990 and 2023.

Peak groundwater production for all uses (urban, rural and
agriculture) dropped from 3720 AF in 1988 to 2010 AF in 2022 a
reduction of more than 45%.

Peak urban demand supplied by purveyors dropped from 2560 AF in
1988 to 1016 AF in 2022 a reduction of more than 60%.

Since the California Coastal Commission approved the Los Osos
Water Recycling Facility (WRF) in 2010 the urban demand dropped
from 1620 AF to 1016 AF a reduction of nearly 40%.

Between 1988 and 2022, the per capita water demand dropped from
159 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) to 63 gpcd, respectively.

The total population of Los Osos has been constant since 1990 at just
over 14,000 people.

The residential growth rate between 1983 and 1988 was
approximately 5% annually with construction of about 225 dwelling
units per year.

The projected average residential growth rate for the next thirty plus
years in Los Osos is 0.5% with a build-out population of
approximately 17,500 people by 2060 which averages about 35 new
dwelling units per year.

Presently the $200 Million Los Osos WRF has excess capacity of
100% or in other words is operating at just under 50% of design
capacity (1.2 million gallons per day).

With respect to urban demand, in 1972 the population of Los Osos
was less than 5,000 people and groundwater production by water
purveyors was approximately 970 AF which ironically, is essentially
the same today with a population of 14,500.



California Coastal Commission
725 Front St.
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Dec. 5, 2023

Subject: A comprehensive in-depth analysis of the state of the Los Osos Water
Basin.

Included are supportive documents and recommendations for parameters and
criteria, based on conclusive evidence of a sustainable water supply, needed for the
approval of the Los Osos Community Plan (LOCP) and related

documents. Hyperlinks have been added to the Support Materials so you can locate
relevant topics easily.

We explain why current management of the Los Osos Water Basin will not succeed
and why the Basin is still in a state of overdraft. We realize some of these
recommendations are out of the scope and authority of the Coastal Commission and
pertain to other agencies, but may assist in the negotiations with the County, and in
updating the LCP and EAP. The Standard of ‘conclusive evidence’ is supported
throughout this document and must be upheld to insure sustainability of the Los
Osos Groundwater Basin.

Dear Commissioners and Staff Members,

We are writing, first, to thank the Commission for finding substantial issue with the
County of SLO’s (County’s) approvals of new development dependent on water from
the Los Osos Groundwater Basin. We appreciate that in 2010 you recognized the
need to set the conclusive evidence standard for the County’s approval of new
development, and that you continue to recognize the need for it.

Clearly, with the devastating effects of climate change on basins, communities, and
natural resources in the state, this standard of conclusive evidence is essential to
protect and preserve the vital, irreplaceable Los Osos Groundwater Basin, which
suffers from decades of severe overdraft due to inadequate standards for the
County’s approval of development and the non-existent and inadequate
management of the Basin for many years. The Basin and its dependent resources
will continue to be particularly vulnerable to the impacts of climate change--sea
level rise, seawater intrusion, record droughts, low water tables, low soil moisture
content, and the depletion of groundwater.

In the following document we provide evidence to support key points we have made
in our past letters and appeals. In Part 1 we explain why we say the Basin is in
overdraft and the County cannot provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable water
supply for new development per Special Condition 6 of the LOWWP CDP. Three
important reasons for our positions are the following:



e Seawater intrusion continues to advance in the two lower aquifer zones
of the Los Osos Groundwater Basin, Zones D and E, threatening Basin
sustainability (see Part 2)

e Threats to Basin sustainability have not been sufficiently addressed
(see Part 3)

e The BMC’s monitoring program and metrics are not adequate to
establish Basin sustainability or provide conclusive evidence of a
sustainable water supply for the current or additional population (see
Part 4)

(See Support Materials outline)

Recommended Parameters and Criteria for Sustainable
Basin Management

In Part 5 of Support Materials, we provide a common-sense set of parameters for
approval of development that we ask you to review, augment as needed, and add to
the amended Estero Area Plan (EAP) e.g., the Los Osos Community Plan (LOCP) (7.3,
Community-wide Standards) and the Growth Management Ordinance (GMO). These
parameters, with your additions, are essential for the County to be able to provide
conclusive evidence that the Basin can sustainably support new development. They
include clear and specific quantified physical objectives, identifying significant
threats to Basin sustainability that must be avoided or eliminated in order for the
Basin to support an appropriate increment of further development.

In Part 6 of Support Materials, we provide a list of essential criteria for sustainable
Basin management based on the “Basin Plan” the Commission required in Special
Condition 5 of the LOWWP CDP as well as SGMA regulations and best management
practices (BMPs).

We suggest that the Commission incorporate these baseline parameters and criteria
into the LCP, EAP, CZLUO, GMO, and other appropriate documents for sustainable
management of the Basin to be augmented by any others the Commission believes
are necessary to protect, preserve, and restore the Basin and dependent coastal
resources.

The criteria and parameters we suggest require significant upgrades in the County
and BMC’s management of the Basin. We know that Commission and County staff
have spent a good deal of time exploring opportunities to find common ground and
move toward agreement on what would best achieve the County’s and
Commission’s goals. The most important consideration, of course, is protecting and
preserving the Los Osos Groundwater Basin, the focus we all share.

Outline for Support Materials 2



Moreover, the County has been aware of the “conclusive evidence” standard for over
13 years since it signed the CDP of the LOWWP. The County and BMC have also
been aware of outcome-based data-driven standards for sustainable basin
management established by SGMA since 2014 before Basin management began.

We appreciate that you clarified to the County in a recent appeal response that BMC
management and its guiding documents (the Basin Plan and Stipulated Judgment)
are not approved LCP components, and that Commission staff contacted the BMC in
2014 to inform the County and other BMC members that BMC guiding documents
and operations are required to comply with the Coastal Act and with Special
Conditions 5 & 6 regardless of whether the documents did so at the time.

In your 2015 letter to the BM(, you reiterated the “need to better align BMC
documents and operations with the Coastal Act and related Coastal Policies,
including the Los Osos Wastewater Project (LOWWP) Coastal Development Permit
(CDP).” The County is relying on BMC operations to provide the means for
establishing and maintaining a sustainable water supply for new development and
to verify with conclusive evidence that new development has a sustainable water
supply. Therefore, BMC operations must be reviewed and found to be consistent
with and in compliance with the Coastal Act and related documents as part of the
EAP update process. Toward that end, we include in Support Materials Part 6 a
section entitled “Essential criteria for sustainable Basin management,” which
identifies aspects of basin management essential for the protection of the Basin and
consistency/compliance with the Coastal Act, LCP, and related documents (see
Support Materials, Part 4). These criteria are designed to apply to BMC operations,
with the County as a member, or to the County and BMC as separate entities
working cooperatively.

The mission and first priority of the Los Osos Sustainability Group (LOSG) is the
sustainability of the Los Osos Groundwater Basin. The Basin’s survival remains
threatened by 50 years of overdraft and seawater intrusion, climate change, and
emerging threats such as PFAS contamination. These threats and others have not
yet been adequately assessed or addressed, putting the Basin’s survival in jeopardy.

Our primary desired outcome is cost-effective sustainable Basin management. To
that end, we study the voluminous Basin-related reports, consult with experts, do
our own research, and make recommendations. In this letter (Support Materials,
Part 4) we recommend about 16 new, single-aquifer, nested monitoring wells
costing at most $3 million to upgrade the lower aquifer monitoring program in the
urban part of the Basin. This may seem like a lot of money. We explain why the wells
are critically needed and will make the difference between effective Basin
management and ineffective management—ultimately between saving the Basin
and not saving it. The community has spent over $200 million for a sewer to
preserve the Basin; $3 million is a bargain.

The purpose of this document is to make it easier for Commissioners, Commission
staff, and other stakeholders to look below the surface of the many conclusions and
findings the County cites to support Basin sustainability and new development—

Outline for Support Materials 3



https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/vmq5m7drk453u7qu8fxfr/CCC-D.-Carl-let-to-ISJ-parties-8-28-15-re-LOBP.pdf?rlkey=rndv80mnsjld3chk6q79ymjw4&dl=0

particularly those based on the BMC’s Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) and
technical memoranda (TMs). Many are based solely upon modeling and
assumptions, not supported by accurate, reliable data. Much more and much better
data is needed. The findings, conclusions, charts, graphs, etc., that the County and
BMC have assembled form an elaborate structure built on a shaky foundation of
poor-quality data.

We again thank the Commission for supporting our appeals, adding Special
Conditions 5 & 6 to the Wastewater Project CDP in 2010, and recognizing that
comprehensive, data-driven outcome-based sustainable management of the Basin,
in conjunction with a requirement that the County base approval of development on
“conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply, is essential to protecting,
preserving, and restoring the valuable coastal resources in the Los Osos area. We
hope you find the materials on the following pages helpful.

Respectfully,
The Los Osos Sustainability Group

www.theLOSG.com
Patrick McGibney, Chair

Outline for Support Materials 4



http://www.thelosg.com/

SUPPORT MATERIALS
Table of Contents

1. Why the BMC and County can’t provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable
water supply and the Basin remains in overdraft
e Why the BMC and County can’t provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable

water supply (Reasons 1-3)
e Why the Basin remains in overdraft (Reasons 1-3)

e Other reasons the model shouldn’t be used in a development parameter—and
doesn’t have to be

2. Seawater intrusion continues to advance into the two Lower Aquifer zones
(Zones D and E) threatening the Basin
e Qverview
e ZoneE intrusion
e Zone D intrusion

3. Threats to Basin sustainability have not been adequately addressed

e Qverview

e Seawater intrusion in Zones D and E

e PFAS in private and community drinking water, ag wells, and recycled
water

e Low water levels Basin-wide and in key subareas, including where the
BMC is shifting pumping to curb seawater intrusion

e High nitrate levels in upper and lower aquifer wells (Zones C, D, and E)

e High saltlevels

4. The BMC’s monitoring program and metrics are not adequate to establish
Basin sustainability or provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable water
supply
e Overview
e The lower aquifer program has only 7 wells producing high quality data
e The Chloride Metric and seawater intrusion front contour mapping show
changes at Well LA10 but not significant changes in seawater intrusion

e The Water Level and Chloride Metrics, including any updated versions,
are inherently flawed

e More monitoring wells are needed to track and set sustainability
objectives for seawater intrusion

e More monitoring wells are needed to assess, track, and set objectives for
threats to Basin sustainability throughout the urban Basin

5. Parameters for approval of development
e OQOverview
e Substantial upgrades to current management are needed
e Sustainability objectives for seawater intrusion should be set where the
model locates the fronts with pumping at 80% of sustainable yield

Outline for Support Materials 5



e Objectives should include minimum thresholds, interim milestones, and
sustainability objectives

e Parameters should be “development objectives” that exceed
sustainability objectives

e The growth rate should be incremental as “development objectives” are
achieved; no future buildout limit should be set to avoid inducing
unsustainable growth

6. Essential criteria for sustainable Basin management

e A monitoring program providing sufficient high-quality data

e Time-specific objectives that quantify sustainable conditions relative to each
threat

e A time-specific sustainability goal

e Adequate Basin-wide management programs, policies, and actions

e Adequate resources and authority to implement Basin-wide programs,
policies, and actions

e Adequate outside agency oversight, support, and incentives

e A commitment to data-driven and outcome-based decision-making

We incorporate by reference all documents cited in Support Materials, as well as all
earlier letters, appeals, and related materials the LOSG has sent to the Commission
or the County of SLO regarding the Los Osos Community Plan and related matters.

Outline for Support Materials 6



PART 1

Why the BMC and County can’t provide conclusive evidence of a
sustainable water supply and the Basin remains in overdraft

Why the BMC and County can’t provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable
water supply

Reason 1 Special Condition 6 and the Coastal Commission require the County of
SLO to provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable water supply for new
development, so that it can be used to set buildout limits and the mechanisms to
stay within them. There is currently no substantial evidence, let alone “conclusive
evidence,” that the Los Osos Basin is sustainable for the current population. The
County claims that the Basin is not in overdraft. Several facts refute this: 1)
According to AMRs, Zone E intrusion poses “a significant threat to Basin
sustainability,” 2) data show seawater intrusion is advancing in Zone E, and 3) the
BMC doesn’t have enough Zone E monitoring wells to know where the front is or its
rate and movement, e.g., whether it is threatening major supply wells in the
commercial area (see 2022 AMR, Pages 56-57). The BMC also can’t provide
conclusive evidence that strategies to stop and reverse seawater intrusion (SWI) in
Zone E have worked or will work, e.g., Broderson leach field discharge and moving
wells inland. In fact, moving wells inland may only pull Zone E intrusion further
inland since modeling indicates inland wells influence intrusion (Program C Update
TM, e.g., Pages 3-4, LOCSD Adj Item 21, 11.21.20). Additionally, seawater intrusion
is not the only threat to Basin sustainability (see Part 3 of Support Materials). The
threats (undesirable results of climate change, management actions, and other
impacts) have either not been addressed or not been adequately addressed by the
BMC and County. To do so first requires assessing the threats and setting
measurable objectives to avoid or eliminate them. This will require major upgrades
to the lower aquifer monitoring program for it to produce high-quality data. The
program now has large gaps due to too few wells and wells producing poor-quality
data (see Part 4).

Reason 2 Sustainable management of the Basin and conclusive evidence of a
sustainable water supply also require that the County and/or BMC develops and
implements essential components of sustainable groundwater management. In
addition to sufficient high-quality data and objectives based on that data to address
all threats (undesirable conditions), essential components include a time-specific
sustainability goal that represents the completion of all sustainability objective and
Basin-wide programs including monitoring, conservation, recycled water reuse, and
contaminant reduction/management programs. Essential components also include
the authority, funding, and oversight necessary to implement and maintain the
programs and to meet time-specific objectives and goals. SGMA requires Basin-wide
programs, and it grants agencies the powers to enact them and meet objectives. The
County lacks this authority, but is able to enact and enforce programs Basin-wide
via an ordinance (see below). The Coastal Commission recognized in Special

Outline for Support Materials 7


https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
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Condition 5 the need for Basin-wide conservation, recycled water use, and
monitoring, along with time-specific success criteria for the programs, and it
required the County to spend $5 million on conservation to “help Basin residents to
reduce their potable water use as much as possible” with “enforceable mechanisms.’
In the Basin Plan, the BMC recognizes the need for a Basin-wide conservation
program with “mandatory standards” as its “highest priority” program, and
provided for the County, in cooperation with purveyors, to use the $5 million and
another $0.5 million to implement the program (see Basin Plan, Pages 141, 193,
196-199). The BMC also recognized in the Basin Plan that monitoring of all water
use in the Basin is essential to avoid irreparable harm to the Basin and provides a
plan for the monitoring to be implemented with an ordinance for an estimated
$150,000 (see Basin Plan, Pages 137-139). The BMC in the Basin Plan and
Stipulated Judgment further recognized the need for a Basin-wide funding
mechanism that spreads the financial burden and responsibility for Basin
sustainability equitably Basin-wide and the Stipulated Judgment grants the BMC the
power to develop community-wide funding requiring the BMC to “make every
reasonable effort” to fund the Basin Plan as soon as possible (see Stipulated
[udgment, Pages 13, 31 and Basin Plan, Pages 14, 15, 141, 199, 307). When the
County entered into the adjudicated basin process and negotiated the Interlocutory
Stipulated Agreement (1S]), it also recognized the need for an ordinance to enact and
enforce Basin-wide programs and fulfill its role as the agency responsible for Basin-
wide management (see IS], Pages 7-8). The County and Coastal Commission further
recognized the need for integrated management of the Basin in the 1988 LCP
(Revised in 2007) (see Coastal Plan Policies, Coastal Watersheds Policy 5, Page 9-6).
However, none of these vital components of Basin sustainable management were
implemented. The BMC did not implement a Basin-wide conservation program or
an effective Basin-wide recycled water reuse program—or even effective programs
in purveyor service areas (purveyor water use has not gone down in eight years—
see 2022 AMR, Pages 36-37). Metered purveyor water use has not gone down in
eight years, and after dropping about 150 AFY from 2015 to 2017, unmetered
(estimated) private well use has “stabilized” since 2018 (see 2022 AMR, Pages 36 -
37). The only reductions in water use Basin-wide since 2015 are due to revisions in
estimated private well use, which the Basin Plan and AMRs indicate has an
uncertainty factor of +/-100 AFY (see 2022 AMR, Page 38).In 2021, the LOSG hired
a hydrogeologist to review agricultural water use, who found that the BMC
significantly underestimated agricultural usage (see Shakofsky Review, Pages 3 &
4). Further, the BMC has not succeeded in reducing pumping from the Lower
Aquifer in the Western Area appreciably since 2015, which is the BMC’s key strategy
for stopping and reversing seawater intrusion (see 2022 AMR, Pages 37-38 and
Figure 22, Page 68). The County did not spend the $5 million on conservation ($3
million remains as of June 2020) (see WCIP All Cost Data). The Basin-wide
equitable funding has not been implemented, and the County has refused to monitor
private wells in the Basin. The County even added a provision to the Stipulated
Judgment prohibiting the BMC from voting to have the County implement the

private well program (see Stipulated Judgment, Page 32).

)

Reason 3 SGMA is the logical and most appropriate standard for determining the
relationship of a modeled (estimated) sustainable yield, pumping within
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“sustainable yield” estimates, and Basin sustainability. SGMA recognizes that
pumping below a modeled sustainable yield does not demonstrate basin
sustainability.

SGMA does not incorporate sustainable yield estimates directly into
sustainable management criteria. Basin wide pumping within the
sustainable yield estimate is neither a measure of, nor proof of,
sustainability. Sustainability under SGMA is only demonstrated by avoiding
undesirable results for the six sustainability indicators (SMC BMP, Page 32).

SGMA'’s BMP also states:

...sustainable conditions within a basin are achieved when GSAs
(Groundwater Sustainability Agencies) meet their sustainability goal and
demonstrate the basin is being operated within its sustainable yield.
Sustainable yield can only be reached if the basin is not experiencing
undesirable results (SMC BMP, Page 2).

The BMC (including the County as a member) understands that Special Condition 6
requires the County to “demonstrate” that the Basin is sustainable.

Special Condition 6 requires the County to demonstrate a sustainable basin
before the Coastal Commission allows adoption of the LOCP or the connection
of any properties to the LOWWP (see Basin Plan, Page 297).

The County claims it is pumping within the sustainable yield of the Basin, and as a result
is meeting the standard for verifying an adequate water supply for new development.
The Coastal Commission’s definition of “adequate water supply” is “sustainable water

supply.”

Therefore, the relevant question regarding Special Condition 6 is not whether Basin
pumping is within the “sustainable yield” estimate, but “How does the County
demonstrate with conclusive evidence that the Basin provides a sustainable water supply
for the current and any additional population?” The term overdraft is confusing since it is
often discussed in terms of estimated sustainable yields. However, when the Coastal
Commission specifies “conclusive evidence,” it intentionally excludes modeling
estimates as the means for verifying Basin sustainability because modeling has inherent
uncertainty. Basin modeling and “sustainable yield” values depend on the data,
interpretations of data, and assumptions that go into the model. The Basin model can, and
has, refuted its own “sustainable yield” estimates with different assumptions. Consistent
with SGMA, the means for demonstrating Basin sustainability is the achievement of a
sustainability goal, which requires the avoidance/elimination of all undesirable conditions
(i.e., completion of objectives for all undesirable conditions). Consistent with
“conclusive evidence,” sufficient high-quality monitoring data must be the basis for
conclusions about Basin sustainability, so that conclusions cannot be refuted by
additional or other evidence.

Although Special Condition 6 makes it unnecessary to refute modeling estimates of

Outline for Support Materials 9


https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Sustainable-Groundwater-Management/Best-Management-Practices-and-Guidance-Documents/Files/BMP-6-Sustainable-Management-Criteria-DRAFT_ay_19.pdf
https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Sustainable-Groundwater-Management/Best-Management-Practices-and-Guidance-Documents/Files/BMP-6-Sustainable-Management-Criteria-DRAFT_ay_19.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/ht0km0shtc2h142di8djf/Los-Osos-Groundwater-Basin-Plan-January-2015.pdf?rlkey=cnttrvpcrz8engrao5ajp6aol&dl=0

sustainable yield and the County’s claim that the Basin is being pumped within its
sustainable yield (not in a state of overdraft); we provide some reasons below explaining
why the County’s claim is not true using the model and available data.

Why we say the Basin is in overdraft

Reason 1 Sustainable yield is defined as the maximum amount of water that can be
withdrawn from a basin annually without causing an undesirable result (see SMC
BMP, Page 34 and Stipulated Judgment, Page 9). Currently, undesirable results
including seawater intrusion are occurring based on the best available data and
other evidence. Further, several threats (undesirable results) that could
substantially reduce the water supply and beneficial uses have not been addressed,
or adequately addressed (see Part 2).

Reason 2 One of the creators of the model, Gus Yates, points out in a 2014 review of the
Basin Plan, that, according to the model, the Basin must be pumped below 80% of the
modeled “sustainable yield” to stop and reverse seawater intrusion in Zone E and avoid
salt buildup in the Lower Aquifer. He recommends a 12° Water Level Metric Target
rather than the current 8’ target, which he states is needed to stop and reverse intrusion in
Zone E, in case the BMC does not pursue its pumping goal of 80% of sustainable yield
(see 2014 Yates Basin Plan Review, Pages 4,7, 8,12). Supervisor Gibson, other BMC
members, and some members of the Planning Department and public have apparently
forgotten (as Yates said might happen) that the BMC committed in the Basin Plan to
keeping Basin-wide production at 80% of “sustainable yield” (see Basin Plan, Pages 5,
110, 114). The 2380 AFY “sustainable yield” would be the theoretical sustainable yield
only if the BMC ignores salt build up and “abandons” Zone E to seawater intrusion,
which AMRs state is “a significant threat to Basin sustainability” (see 2014 Yates Basin
Plan Review, Page 7, 8, 12 and 2022 AMR, Page 57). The Yates review points out that
the BMC’s pumping goal of 80% does not add a 20% margin of safety to the current
“sustainable yield.” Instead, the 80% goal is the “sustainable yield” because it is modeled
to avoid/eliminate undesirable conditions. Current Basin-wide estimated production is
above the 80% target, so the Basin is currently in overdraft based on the model and
accepted definitions of sustainable yield. The 20% buffer would theoretically be
subtracted from the 80% of production estimate to account for uncertainties. However,
uncertainty levels for the model have not been analyzed, and are likely to be much greater
than the arbitrary 20% assigned to yield estimates in the Basin Plan (see Basin Plan,
Pages 110-114). The “hydrologic relationships...which partially determine recharge
rates” that the Basin Plan lists as just one of many sources of the uncertainty adds +/-
40% of uncertainty to modeling predictions according to Yates, and would require all of
the 20% buffer (see Basin Plan, Pages 112; 2014 Yates Basin Plan Review, Page 3; and
2010 Peer Review of Model, e.g., Page 4). Thus, the Basin is over-drafted based on the
model, accepted definitions of sustainable yield, and accepted practice (calculating and
assigning uncertainty values for sustainable yields).

Reason 3 Basin-wide production has been below the BMC’s current revised
“sustainable yield” estimate of 2380 AFY for eight years and the best available
chloride data, the accepted indicator for seawater intrusion, show intrusion
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advances in both Lower Aquifer zones, Zone D and Zone E (see Part 2 and 2022
AMR, Pages 37,69). Water level data show some signs of water levels rising, but like
most data produced by the Lower Aquifer monitoring program for the urban Basin,
the data are unreliable and possibly inaccurate and misleading. The Basin Plan,
developed by the BMC, explains that the three wells of the 5-well Water Level Metric
(the wells located in the western part of the urban Basin, not the wells on the
sandspit) have historically been influenced by seawater intrusion (see Basin Plan
Pages 100, 101). Thus, water levels in all monitoring wells in the western Basin
could be elevated by seawater intrusion. Some wells are also reported in AMRs to be
affected by tidal influence, and many wells have wellbore leakage and pumping
interference, both of which can raise water levels and result in misleading data (see
Part 4, LOSG Table A, and 2022 AMR, Page 56). Rising water levels in the southern
part of the urban Basin may be due to groundwater high in nitrates flowing in from
outside the Basin boundary. BMC staff have also suggested that Broderson leach
field disposal may be affecting water levels, but leach field effects on Lower Aquifer
water levels have not been confirmed. Further, both sources of groundwater may
be cut off in the future due to PFAS or other contamination. The BMC also recently
had elevation reference points at monitoring wells resurveyed, which raised water
levels on paper only (see 2020 AMR, Page 22 and 2021 AMR, Page 21). SGMA allows
water levels to be used as a substitute for chloride data to assess seawater intrusion,
but only if the data are “reliable, consistent, high-quality, and defendable data,”
which BMC data are not (see Part 4, e.g., Table A, and MND BMP, Page 9). Given
evidence seawater intrusion has not stopped after eight years of pumping below the
modeled “sustainable yield,” as well as the unreliability of data and metrics used to
track seawater intrusion (see Part 4), the threat PFAS and other contaminants pose
to the water supply, and the fact that intrusion has not been stopped in 50 years (in
part due to overstated “sustainable yield” estimates that helped justify 40 years of
severe overdraft), a reasonably cautious and responsible conclusion is that the
Basin continues to be overdrafted until proven otherwise by sufficient high-quality
monitoring data from an upgraded monitoring program (see Parts 5 and 6).

The DWR classifies the Basin as subject to critical conditions of overdraft. Water
code Section 12924 defines the condition as “A basin is subject to critical conditions
of overdraft when continuation of present water management practices would
probably result in significant adverse overdraft-related environmental, social, or
economic impacts” (see BMC Agd Pkt, 6-21-23, pdf Page 15). Based on available
data and other evidence, the Basin should remain in this classification (e.g., due to
the threat of PFAS and other contaminants). (See Parts 2, 3, & 4.)

Other reasons the model shouldn’t be used in a development parameter--and
doesn’t have to be.

Reason 1 Modeling does not provide conclusive evidence. It also does not provide
transparent and understandable evidence that allows the public and most stakeholders to
provide informed input into decision-making. Every model has uncertainties, and the
information embedded in a model (data, assumptions, interpretations, and estimations, in
addition to complex calculations and the limitations and uncertainties of particular
modeling codes) is determined and understood by only a few people—often just the
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person programming the model. In Parts 2, 3, & 4, we present evidence of the very poor
data, flawed metrics, and other uncertainties (e.g., threats not addressed) embedded in the
model.

Reason 2 Even when the model is upgraded to a transient model and reviewed by
another hydrogeology firm, as the BMC plans to do in 2024, the model, if applied to
development decisions, will be a source of ongoing conflict, appeals, and wasted time
and effort. Given the history of the model, the Commission would be making a mistake if
it makes modeling even a small part of a development parameter. The County will give it
too much weight in decision making, and the decisions will not be accepted by members
of the public and other stakeholders. The people of Los Osos have good reason not to
trust the model. For 40 years the County has relied on modeled safe yield estimates of
about 3100 AFY to 3500 AFY to justify continuing development after the County
allowed an unsustainable building boom in the 1970’s and 80’s. That boom started the
severe overdraft of the Basin. For 30 years the Basin was over-drafted by about 20-40%
on BMC sustainable yield estimates (see Basin Plan, Pages 3, 48, 69-70 and RSC 2007,
Pages 8-9). Those early development decisions, made despite an impending sewer
moratorium and warnings about seawater intrusion, contributed to much of the Basin
being destroyed, and those decisions continue to haunt the community—the County
recently finalized Tentative Tract Map 1646/CDP of a 97-home development it approved
in 1990.

In 2015, the Stipulated Judgment set the “sustainable yield” at 2,400 AFY, about 25-40%
less than earlier estimates. However, by 2016 the BMC was reporting a “sustainable
yield” of 2,760 AFY in AMRs based on modeling, which estimated that planned
infrastructure (some of it not yet implemented or operational) would increase the
“sustainable yield” by over 300 AFY. The BMC uses the Basin Yield Metric (BYM) to
track progress toward its pumping goal of 80% of sustainable yield or BYMS8O0. The
metric is estimated Basin-wide production divided by the estimated sustainable yield, so
modeling uncertainties are compounded in the metric. Almost 50% of Basin water use is
estimated because it is from unmetered private wells (see 2022 AMR, Table 14, Page 37).
Based on the 2760 AFY estimate, the 2016 through 2021 AMRs reported that the BMC
had met and exceeded its BYMS8O0 of “sustainable yield” production goal and a technical
memorandum in early 2019 found the Basin to be sustainable for the current population
at the time (see 2018 Adapt. Mgmnt. TM, e.g., Page 10). At that point, the County began
the Los Osos Community Plan (LOCP) review process, and the BMC took several
supportive actions (e.g., deferring installation of an “expansion well” allowing the
modeled increase in yield to be used for new development, and supporting the County’s
retrofit-to-build program). However, in 2021, with seawater moving inland, a serious
drought in progress, and the BMC realizing the Stipulated Judgment required the BMC to
unanimously approve the “sustainable yield” each year; the BMC reduced the
“sustainable yield” to 2380 AFY, also acknowledging that the “sustainable yield” as
defined in the Basin Plan would harm the Basin (allow seawater to move further inland).
The 2380 AFY estimate meant the BMC had not met its BYMS80 goal since BMC
operations began. To arrive at the 2380 AFY estimate, the BMC changed modeling
parameters and redefined “sustainable yield” as the maximum production that would
maintain Zone D and E intrusion fronts where they were in 2021 (see BMC Agd Pkt 9-
29-21, Item 8b, Sus.Y1d.). The 2021 locations, however, are unknown since not enough
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reliable monitoring data exists to confirm the locations. Further, the location of the
seawater intrusion front in Zone E poses a “significant threat to Basin sustainability” (see
2021 AMR, Page 58).

As we explain above, the 2380 AFY estimate will also harm the Basin because the
BMC’s 80% production goal (1904 AFY) is modeled to stop and reverse this Zone E
intrusion. But even the 1904 AFY could harm the Basin. When referring to the metrics
and the 20% buffer, the Basin Plan states, “Where practicable, the Basin Plan uses
reasonably cautious assumptions in evaluating the current status of the Basin and
planning for future actions” (see Basin Plan, Page 114). In the case of the 20% buffer,
the BMC apparently didn’t find it “practicable” to use cautious assumptions. The sources
of uncertainty discussed in the Basin Plan (e.g., estimated production, climate change,
recharge rates) and other uncertainties not discussed (e.g., the effects of Broderson leach
field and moving wells inland) together undoubtedly exceed the arbitrary 20% buffer the
BMC assumes for modeling uncertainties. The County and BMC have shown a
willingness to rely on overestimated and uncertain sustainable yield estimates rather than
sufficient reliable data for critical decision making about basin sustainability and how
much development the Basin can support. The problems with the model and how it is
used will not go away with an updated model. (See Basin Plan, Pages 110-114 for a
discussion of modeling uncertainties; the 2021 AMR, Pages 3, 66-67 and the BMC Agd
Pkt 9-29-21, Item 8b, for discussions of sustainable yield); Basin Plan Pages 137-139
for a discussion of the need for private well monitoring; and the LOSG letter to the BMC
of 3-12-21 for further discussion of BMC use of the model and support of development.)

Reason 3 Luckily for the Basin and Coastal Resources, the Coastal Commission listened
to concerned citizens in 2009 and 2010, adding Special Condition 6 to the LOWWP
CDP, and the County signed it. Thus, the County agreed to use “conclusive evidence” of
a sustainable water supply as the standard for development. Conclusive evidence requires
demonstrable physical evidence of Basin sustainability, and it precludes the use of
modeling. If the Commission requires the County to set measurable sustainability
objectives based on sufficient high-quality monitoring data, the objectives account for
climate change and other impacts and uncertainties, and the Commission remains
involved to ensure data quality remains high, objectives are protective of the Basin, and
progress is made—all stakeholders will be able to clearly see and understand when
development is sustainable and allowed over the Basin. Of course, the BMC and/or
County must also fulfill its responsibility to implement Basin-wide programs that are
backed up by sufficient funding, authority, and outside oversight to ensure objectives and
goals are achieved within specific reasonable timeframes.
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PART 2

Seawater intrusion continues to advance into the two Lower Aquifer zones
(Zones D and E) threatening the Basin

Overview

Data show that seawater intrusion continues to move inland in Zone D and Zone E
based on data at Zone D Well LA15, and Zone E Wells LA11 and LA40. This
contradicts the 2022 AMR findings, which report an “improvement” in seawater
intrusion based on the Chloride Metric (see Tables ES-2 and Table 24). The
discussion of seawater intrusion mapping also states that conditions improved (see
2022 AMR, Page 56). We explain why the metric and contour mapping are not
accurate in Part 4.

Zone E intrusion

Chloride data at monitoring Well LA11, a Zone E monitoring well located adjacent to
the estuary, show chloride levels continue to rise above the 250 mg/1 seawater
intrusion threshold indicating seawater continues to move into the deepest and
largest aquifer of the Basin. Chloride levels climbed from 105 mg/1in 2014 to 287
mg/l in spring of 2022. After dropping slightly to 279 mg/l in fall of 2022, levels
jumped to 346 mg/1 by spring of 2023 continuing the upward trend. The 2022 BMC
Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) for 2022 reports a worsening condition in Zone E
(see 2022 AMR, Page 57). However, despite Zone E intrusion posing “a significant
threat to the sustainability of the Basin,” the worsening condition is not reflected in
the Chloride Metric results or reported in the “Metric Summaries” of the 2022 AMR
(see Tables ES-2, Table 24, and Pages 56 and 57). This is due to a flaw in the
Chloride Metric and in the BMC’s approach to addressing and reporting Zone E
intrusion, which tends to downplay and ignore the threat. (Also see Parts 3 and 4.)

Zone D intrusion

Rising chloride levels at municipal supply Well LA15 in 2022 and spring of 2023
indicate seawater intrusion in Zone D is advancing toward the well. Chloride levels
rose from 116 mg/l1 in spring of 2022, to 138 mg/l in fall of 2022, then to 142 mg/1
by spring of 2023. Well LA15 is a municipal supply well reported to have well bore
leakage, so pumping at the well and water from the upper aquifer leaking to the
lower may adversely affect data. However, chloride levels have remained relatively
stable since 2014 varying between about 90 mg/l and 110 mg/l. The two-year
increase of over 30 mg/1 -- given the well’s location in the historic pathway of
seawater intrusion and the fact that 100 mg/1 is a “precursor” to seawater intrusion
in the area, according to the 2005 Seawater Intrusion Assessment -- provides
convincing evidence that intrusion is advancing, possibly along a preferred pathway
(see SWI Assmnt, Page 33). The LOSG noticed a similar jump in chlorides at this well
in 2009, which we correctly predicted indicated accelerating seawater intrusion.
That intrusion turned out to be intrusion into the Zone E level of the well, which the
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
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/pemash82ur6kvgu71mto9/Seawater-Intrusion-Assess-Cleath-Assoc.-2005-copy.pdf?rlkey=yfq1nkbt2w1cx55o70i3vcicm&dl=0

LOCSD subsequently sealed off in 2013. Assuming relatively reliable data at LA15,
the 2022 Chloride Metric and intrusion front contour maps incorrectly show a
retreat of Zone D intrusion (an “improvement” in conditions) when LA15 data
indicates a worsening condition (see 2022 AMR, Tables ES-2, Table 24, and Page
57). (See LOSG Figure 1 (modified Figure 18 of the 2022 AMR) for an approximate
location of Zone D intrusion based on LA15 data.) (Also see Part 4.)
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PART 3

Threats to the Basin have not been addressed
Overview

A bottom line for sustainable basin management is that managers identify and
adequately address all threats to basin sustainability. The BMC has not evaluated or
adequately addressed the following threats:

Seawater Intrusion in Zones D and E

The AMRs since 2020 have acknowledged that the lower aquifer monitoring
program does not have enough monitoring wells to track seawater intrusion fronts
in Zones D and E (see 2022 AMR, Page 57). The shortage of wells, and gaps in the
monitoring network due to wells producing poor-quality data, prevent the BMC
from knowing exactly where seawater intrusion is, its movement, and the effects of
management actions and changing conditions on intrusion. For instance, despite the
AMRs stating that Zone E intrusion poses a “significant threat to Basin
sustainability,” the BMC’s hydrogeologist and author of the AMRs, Spencer Harris,
provides a “generalized... interpretation” of the front, acknowledging that he can’t
estimate the front location using the estimation method he typically uses (see LOSG
Figure 1 and 2022 AMR, Page 56). In AMRs since 2020, Mr. Harris recommends
upgrades to the intrusion monitoring grid and in a 2022 technical memorandum
(TM) he suggests four new wells and four modified wells [see CHG Figure 1 from
“Well modification TM,” Cleath-Harris Geologists (CHG) in BMC Agd Pkt 7-28-22, pdf
Pages 25-26, 29 of 116] (Also see 2022 AMR, Page 57). This would provide 11 new
and modified wells because the new wells are nested wells (a Zone D and a Zone E
well at the same site). These upgrades would fill critical gaps in the network,
including a gap south of LA 15 to monitor intrusion movement into the commercial
area, a gap along the estuary to measure significant new movement north of the
historical intrusion pathway, and a gap below the Broderson leach field to measure
the effects of leach field disposal on Zones D and E intrusion. The BMC voted to
install only three of Mr. Harris’ suggested upgrades, not nearly enough to perform
essential tasks for sustainable management, such as:

1) reliably and accurately measure the extent and movement of seawater intrusion
2) detect movement into the commercial area and threats to key supply wells

3) set and verify measurable sustainability objectives for each aquifer

4) assess the effects of management actions, e.g., the effects and timing of Broderson
leach fields

5) track future climate change impacts that could cause intrusion at any point along
the front

6) assess the need and effects of further actions, e.g., injection wells, reduced
pumping from inland wells)
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To adequately perform these tasks will require all the new wells Mr. Harris suggests,
and we suggest five additional new wells for the seawater intrusion network (see
LOSG Figure 2 and Part 5). With data indicating that intrusion continues to advance
in Zones D and E, additional conservation and other mitigation measures will likely
be needed, requiring significant program upgrades, planning, and funding (although
about $3 million should still be available for conservation). For the BMC and County
to address seawater intrusion and other threats, and conclusively establish Basin
sustainability, a good deal more work is needed.

PFAS in private and community drinking water, ag wells, and recycled water

The Regional Water Quality Control Board identified the Los Osos Recycling Facility
(formerly the Los Osos Wastewater Project) as a source of PFAS in 2021, and PFAS
has been detected in several private and at least one major community supply
source. The Golden State Water Company (GSWC) representative on the BMC
recently announced that PFOS was detected at an “entry point” to their system (see
“PFQOS--transcript of 8-16-23 BMC mtg” and “PFAS—Co notice to well owner”). The
potential impacts of PFAS on municipal and private wells, and the viability of the
recycled water program, have not yet been evaluated or addressed, although the
impacts threaten Basin sustainability and the water supply for multiple reasons,
such as:

1) supply wells may be shut down causing a water shortage

2) recycled water may be unsuitable for reuse and leach field disposal (Broderson
leach field disposal of about 440 AFY may have to be halted if it is determined to
contaminate the Basin)

3) added costs for water treatment may be infeasible

4) extensive use of R/0 systems may cause excessive water use and additional
overdraft

5) The “forever chemicals” may contaminate ESHA (e.g., the estuary and Los Osos
Creek).
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Low water levels Basin-wide and in key subareas, including where the BMC is
shifting pumping to curb seawater intrusion

With the cumulative impacts of climate change, including greater pressure on
groundwater supplies due to higher temperatures, extended droughts, and reduced
soil moisture—and with the Basin adjusting to the removal of dispersed septic
systems and shifts in pumping—water levels could become dangerously low
anywhere in the Basin, especially in the urban portion. Particularly vulnerable is the
commercial area east to Los Osos Creek. This is where many private wells are
located and the BMC plans to shift more municipal pumping to reduce seawater
intrusion. Water levels have been falling and remain low in the area, partly due to
increased pumping from private wells, e.g., near Los Osos Creek (see LOSG Figures
10,11, and 12 on Pages 35-37). With two of the three planned “expansion wells” yet
to come online, the area is vulnerable to overdraft. Infrastructure Program C
Expansion Well #2 was installed in 2022 and will soon be operational, and the BMC
recently approved Expansion Well #3 to begin operation sometime in 2024. Over-
pumping this area could cause reduced Basin capacity and permanent harm to the
Basin, to community wells, private wells, and valuable ESHA (e.g., Willow Creek and
Los Osos Creek). The BMC Stipulated Judgment points out that overdraft can cause
“loss of storage capacity due to aquifer compaction” (see Stipulated Judgment, Page
10). In his 2014 review of the Basin Plan, Gus Yates, an authority on the Basin and
one of the creators of the Basin model, states that increased pumping in the Central
Area (northern and eastern part of the urban Basin) could “decrease groundwater
discharge into Los Osos Creek, Willow Creek, and Morro Bay at various locations
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and times,” which “could have significant impacts on aquatic, riparian, and wetlands
habitat” (see Yates Basin Plan Review 2014, Pages 4 & 5). In 2020, the LOCSD
drilled a test well for Expansion Well #2 in the eastern part of the Western Area that
revealed Zone E did not exist at the site and Zone D would not support a municipal
well, contrary to previous assumptions regarding Basin structure and capacity (see
LOCSD Test Hole TM in 4-15-20 BMC Ad Pkt, pdf Pages 22-24 of 34). Having more
and better monitoring wells throughout the Basin, especially the urban Basin, to
track water levels and better understand Basin structure and conditions will be key
to avoiding harm to coastal resources and maintaining ample water in storage for
the Basin to weather climate change and other impacts. (Also see Part 4.)

High nitrate levels in upper and lower aquifer wells (Zones C, D, and E)

Nitrates in the Upper Aquifer are high in some locations (20-25 mg/1), which could
make nitrate treatment of the water by purveyors at some wells infeasible
(according to a member of the BMC who spoke with the LOSG). The Basin Plan
includes a proposal for installing additional Upper Aquifer wells and developing a
nitrate treatment facility to remove nitrates from water pumped from the Upper
Aquifer (Infrastructure Program B), but the cost is high and the Basin Plan proposes
that the facility is paid for by new development (see Basin Plan, Pages 292, 295). If
more pumping from the Upper Aquifer is needed for the current population to avoid
harm to the Basin and ESHA, the nitrate facility will likely be economically infeasible
and possibly environmentally infeasible (e.g., due to the economic and
environmental impacts of brine disposal). Nitrate levels in the lower aquifer are also
rising in supply wells in the Western Area (e.g., at LA8 and LA9) and in the lower
aquifers due to wellbore leakage at older supply and monitoring wells (e.g., 17E11
and LA22), leakage through the regional aquitard, and from groundwater flowing
into the Basin from the south (see Nit and SWI TM, Pages 3-6; Nitrate TM, Item 9b,
10-19-22 BMC Agd Pkt, pdf Pages e.g., 31, 33 of 66). Reviews of the impacts on wells
by Mr. Harris, indicate that rising nitrate levels in wells LA8, LA9, LA22, and 17E11
will exceed the maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) within 20, 30, 8, and 14 years
respectively, requiring blending and/or nitrate treatment to be usable. The BMC has
no plan for adequately addressing the cumulative impacts of nitrates on the Basin,
especially in combination with other threats. A good place to start is adding more
and better monitoring wells to be able to assess and track the sources and
movement of nitrates.

High salt levels

High salt levels in the recycled water have made the recycled water program less
viable for offsetting potable water use because farmers will typically have to flush
the salts periodically with potable water from their wells to avoid salt build up.
According to Gus Yates, an authority on the Basin who’s authored several Basin
studies and helped create the Basin model, high salt levels in the recycled water will
eventually cause salt buildup in the Basin if the Basin is not pumped below 80% of
sustainable yield to allow outflow from the lower aquifers to flush the salts. The
chloride levels in the recycled water going into Broderson leach field are 140 to 180
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https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Agendas/2022-Agendas/Agenda-Packet_BMC-Meeting_10-19-22_v1.pdf

mg/l—significantly higher than salt levels in wells below the leach field that haven’t
been affected by seawater intrusion (see 2019 LOWRF Annual Report and Co.
RWMP 2020, pdf Page 38 of 316). Thus, the Broderson leach fields and use of
recycled water will eventually reduce beneficial uses of the Basin, and the BMC has
not assessed or addressed the issue.

PART 4

The BMC’s monitoring program and metrics are not adequate to establish
Basin sustainability and provide conclusive evidence of a sustainable
water supply

Overview

The lower aquifer monitoring program in the urban Basin (Western and Central
Areas) does not have enough monitoring wells producing reliable and accurate data
to assess conditions and set sustainability objectives for seawater intrusion and
other threats in Lower Aquifer Zones D and E. As a result, the BMC cannot track
progress toward and verify Basin Sustainability or provide conclusive evidence of a
sustainable water supply for new development.

The lower aquifer program has only 7 wells producing high-quality data

The BMC’s Lower Aquifer monitoring program has only 7 wells in the entire urban
area (Western and Central Areas) not affected by factors known to adversely affect
data. In LOSG Figure 3, we provide CHG Figure 4 from the 2022 AMR to show the
BMC’s Lower Aquifer monitoring wells currently in use. In LOSG Figure 4, we show
the wells that remain when wells with wellbore leakage, mixed-aquifer screening,
and/or pumping interference are removed. In Table A, we list the Lower Aquifer
water level and water quality monitoring wells in the urban area program and
identify the wells with mixed-aquifer screening, pumping interference, and/or
wellbore leakage. In LOSG Figure 2, we show the number of wells and approximate
well locations needed to upgrade the Lower Aquifer monitoring program in the
urban Basin.

The 2022 AMR agrees with the need for more dedicated monitoring wells to replace
production wells:

Despite the relatively high density of available monitoring locations in the Basin,
only a few of the wells are dedicated to monitoring Lower Aquifer Zone E, which is
the deepest aquifer in the Basin and the most susceptible to seawater intrusion.
Over half of the 93 wells in the monitoring network are water supply wells, which
are not specifically designed for groundwater monitoring, and may include mixed
aquifer zone completions and wellbore leakage. There is a need for additional
monitoring locations in the Lower Aquifer (see Section 2.2.5). (see 2022 AMR,
Page 10).
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SGMA and SGMA BMPs state that production wells and wells with mixed-aquifer
screening (pumping from more than one aquifer or aquifer zone) should be replaced
as monitoring wells (see MND BMP, Page 9). The BMC Annual Monitoring Reports
(AMRs) identify wellbore leakage (water leaking into the wellbore from the Upper
Aquifer to the Lower Aquifer) as having adverse effects on Lower Aquifer data
because it dilutes and reduces chloride levels in monitoring samples (see 2018 AMR,
Appendix |).

We assume all production wells are adversely impacted by pumping interference
based on SGMA BMP, which is reinforced by the statement in the 2022 AMR.

Though some lower aquifer production well data have few variations and appear
relatively reliable, the owners/operators of these wells are likely applying pumping
protocols that involve collecting water quality data (e.g., chloride data) at a certain
point in the pumping cycle and/or after purging the well. Protocols require
operator/sampler discretion regarding, for example, when to sample in a pumping
cycle and how long a well should be shut down before purging. Thus, pumping
protocols reduce the scientific objectivity of data collection and introduce factors
that adversely affect data, e.g., operational needs such as customer demand and bias.

The 7 wells we identify as providing reliable and accurate data include 3 wells,
LA11, LA 40, and LA41, which the 2022 AMR indicates are affected by tidal
influence. The 7 wells also include Well LA13, which 2021 and 2022 AMRs indicate
is affected by “seasonal (water level) fluctuations” and pumping interference (see
2021 AMR, Page 56 and 2022 AMR, Page 56). These wells may require a collection
protocol, e.g., collection at certain phases of the tide or nearby well pumping cycle,
to obtain the most reliable results.
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LOSG Figure 3 Current lower aquifer monitoring well locations, Figure 4 from 2022 AMR
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Table A Factors Adversely Affecting Monitoring Data—Lower Aquifer Zones D & E

WL wQ Wells WBL* | MA* PI* Notes:

Wells (AQ) Y/N Ag/Aq | Y/N

LA1 (E) Sand spit well.

LA2 (D) Sand spit well.

LA3 (D) Sand spit well.

LA4 (E) Chlor. level est. at 17,000 mg/I in 2005

LAS (D) Y Prod Nit. lev. 12.4 & 13.3 mg/I (2005 & 9),
Prod. Well no longer used due to nits.

LAG6 (D) Prod Chlor. lev. 230 & 460 mg/I (2005 & 9), Nit. lev
2.19 & 2.25 mg/l; Prod well off line due to SWI.

LA7 (D) Shown Table 5 as “Private—not measured”

LA8 (D) LA8 Y Prod Nit. lev. 7.5 (F2021)

LA9 (D) LA9 Y Prod Nit. lev. 6.4 (F2021)

LA10 LA10 Y D/E Prod Nit. lev. 4.6 (F2020) chgd to 2.1 mg/I

LA11 (E) LA11 Seawater influence (LOBP pp,100-101)
Tidal influence (2022 AMR, p. 56)

LA12 (D) LA12 Prod 9.6’chg spring to fall 2021

LA13 (E) Y Pl per 2021 AMR, Page 56

LA14 D/E Seawater influence (LOBP pp,100-101)

LA15 (D) LA15 Y Prod WBL-when production reduced
10.8’chg spring to fall 2021

LA16* Y D/E Prod Seawater influence (LOBP pp.100-101)
Nit. Lev. 10.4 (2005)

LA17 ** D/E Prod -22’chg spring to fall 2021, 38.7’- 16.2’

LA18 (E) LA18

LA19 (D) Prod -10.1chg spring to fall 2021

LA20 LA20 C/D/E | Prod -8 chg spring to fall 2020

LA21 (E) WQ affected by high PH and alkalinity—high chlor.
not SWI (Oct. 7, 2014 I1SJ SWI update)

LAZZZ (D) LA22 Y Y Zone D monitoring well with PI, near LOCSD Well
17E11. Nit. lev. 7 mg/I fall 2022; WLs -27.4’ and
-40.1" spr. & fall 2022; -12.7” chg spr to fall 2022

LA31 C/D Private-wQ only; Chlor. 636 F2022
LA32 LA32 Y C/D Prod Nit. lev. 6 mg/ and 4 mg/| spring and fall
2020

LA39 (D) LA39 Prod

LA40 (E) LA40 Tidal influence (2022 AMR, Page 56)

LA41 (D) LA41 Tidal influence (2022 AMR, Page 56)

Factors adversely affecting data quality
WBL—Well-bore leakage WBL—assumed for
wells w/ NO3-N above 2 mg/l based on
Appendix J, 2018 AMR
MA—Mixed-aquifer screening
PI—Pumping interference
Prod— Production well w/ assumed PI
(see Note). Over 5’ of S-F chg. noted
Prod—Muni supply; Prod—Private prod.
Y/N—“Yes” shown with Y
“No” shown with no entry

Outline for Support Materials

** LA17 WLs more 10X’s average LA levels LOBP—BP--
Basin Plan
LA161—WBL based on LOBP, Fig. 27 note
for 18M1(LA16) and 2005 data (10.4 nit.)
LA222—WBL based on 2019 Adaptive Mgmt. TM,
Page 5; Pl based on resp. to LOSG 2021 Drft
AMR Comments, Page 11
Note: Mixed-aquifer, municipal supply, and ag wells
used for water level monitoring should be replaced
with zone-specific dedicated monitoring wells per
SGMA BMPs—see “Monitoring Networks and ID of
Data Gaps,” p. 9, DWR website
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The Chloride Metric and seawater intrusion front contour map show changes
at Well LA10 but not significant changes in seawater intrusion

BMC AMRs state that more monitoring wells are needed to “further define the
extent and movement of seawater intrusion in both Zone D and Zone E” (see 2022
AMR, Page 57).

The Lower Aquifer program does not have enough wells producing reliable and
accurate data to use the ordinary kriging estimation method to calculate the
position of the Zone E intrusion front. As a result, the AMRs provide a “generalized
plan view interpretation” of the Zone E intrusion front and a calculated estimate of
the Zone D front. However, the Zone D front estimate is based primarily on data
from Well LA10, which suffers from all three of the factors listed in Table A:
wellbore leakage, mixed aquifer screening, and pumping interference. AMRs identify
only two factors as adversely affecting data (wellbore leakage and mixed-aquifer
screening). However, AMRs provide a disclaimer when discussing the intrusion
front contour mapping for Zone D, that the calculated front is “interpreted to be the
result of localized chloride fluctuations at LA10 rather than broad intrusion front
movement.” The AMRs also caution that the “calculated position of the intrusion
(Zone D) front and...velocity...can vary significantly from year to year, and Spring to
Fall due to localized chloride fluctuations, particularly at well LA10” (see 2022 AMR,
Pages 56-57 for above citations).

Thus, well LA10 does not provide data that identifies the location of the Zone D
front, but instead provides data that measures localized variations in chloride levels
at Well LA10. In LOSG Figure 5, we modify Figure 18 from the 2022 AMR to
illustrate what the data supports. Rather than supporting an advance or retreat of
the Zone D from year to year as shown on AMR contour maps and reported in the
discussion, the data show only that intrusion has reached LA10 and is affecting
LA10 data. Therefore, we show the contour line going through Well LA10 well and
we put X’s on the estimated advances and retreats not supported by data.

The localized nature of the chloride changes at Well LA10 can be accounted for by
the three factors adversely affecting LA10 data, especially pumping interference.
From 2016 to 2018, chloride levels dropped about 170 mg/1 (from 389 mg/1 to 220
mg/1) with major cutbacks in pumping that raised water levels from about 9’ below
mean sea level (MSL) to about 16’ above MSL (see 2022 AMR, Appendix ],
highlighted LA10 data; 2016 AMR Table 5 p. 26; 2018 AMR Table 5 p.25). The 16’
level is substantially higher than the water levels of other wells in the area,
indicating that localized mounding may be contributing to the significant pumping
interference effects on data. The drop in chlorides at LA10 does not include the
effects of wellbore leakage, which lowered chloride levels to 152 mg/I in fall of 2018
(see 2018 AMR, Appendix ]). The data were later adjusted to remove the leakage
influence as we explain below.

The dramatic effects of pumping influence were known to BMC members before
BMC operations began in 2015, and the decision to double-weight LA10 data
suggest that the BMC built a confirmation bias into the metric. With significant
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cutbacks in pumping as planned for western wells including LA10, metric values
would predictably drop significantly indicating significant “improvements” in
conditions. The well’s response to pumping changes are reported in footnotes on
data tables in the 2022 AMR and in a 2014 seawater intrusion report prepared for
the BMC, then referred to as Parties to the IS]:

Chloride concentrations at 13]1 (LA10) can vary seasonally by 100+ mg/l and
are affected by well production and borehole leakage, so fluctuations are
expected. (Emphasis added.) (see 2022 AMR, Appendix ] and BMC IS] SWI

Report 2014).

In early 2019, Mr. Harris devised a data substitution method and pumping protocols
to adjust LA10 data in an attempt to remove wellbore leakage influence. The
substituted data raised the fall 2018 LA10 chloride level from 152 mg/1 to 220 mg/],
making the drop in the metric less dramatic. Shortly after, in 2019, the declining
Chloride Metric “trend” at LA10 reversed and chloride levels rose to 310 mg/1 by fall
of 2020, dropping again to 235 mg/1 by fall of 2022 (See 2018 AMR, Appendix ],
Pages 4,5; 2022 AMR p. 21 and Appendix ]).

Chloride data for LA10 collected during regular monitoring events was replaced
using the substitution method in 7 of 12 semiannual events between spring of 2017
and fall of 2022 (see 2022 AMR, Appendix ], highlighted LA10 data). Use of pumping
protocol(s) is reported in the 2019 and 2020 AMRs, and may have been used in
2021 and 2022 but not reported. Based on LA10 data (adjusted for wellbore leakage
and recorded in data tables since 2017), data substitution and protocols have
reduced the overall variability of LA10 data to some degree (e.g., the effects of
pumping interference and mixed-aquifer screening). However, both strategies
require discretion on the part of operators/samplers, so both introduce subjective
factors including bias and operational needs/limitations that adversely affect data
objectivity and quality.

The AMRs do not document use of pumping protocols or purging of wells prior to
sampling. The BMC has a voluntary set of monitoring procedures for water level and
water quality sampling, including voluntary quality-control measures (see 2022
AMR, Appendix D). The procedures recommend entering information relevant to
sampling events in Field Logs, but almost no information is recorded in the
examples of logs provided in AMRs (see 2022 AMR, Appendix C). The one exception
is for Well LA15. Logs indicate the well is turned on several hours before collection.
Based on the title page of Appendix C, GSWC, the owner-operator of LA10, does not
share well logs with the BMC for publishing.

The very poor-quality data produced by LA10, including the negative effects of data
substitution and discretionary, unreported pumping protocols, mask and fail to
capture two significant changes in seawater intrusion conditions--advancing
seawater in Zone E toward Well LA11 and advancing intrusion in Zone D toward
LA15. See LOSG Figure 6 for a comparison of the variable and unreliable LA10 data
to the more reliable data of LA11 and LA15, which show a relatively steady increase
in chloride levels. See LOSG Figure 7 showing that the 2015 to 2022 Chloride Metric

Outline for Support Materials 26



https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/okut7fjykbjllk6aff5t1/BMC-ISJ-SWI-Report-2014.pdf?rlkey=x5h9tt7lqyrjrie62x4n74uv3&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/okut7fjykbjllk6aff5t1/BMC-ISJ-SWI-Report-2014.pdf?rlkey=x5h9tt7lqyrjrie62x4n74uv3&dl=0
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Archived-Documents/2018-LOBMC-Annual-Report-(Draft).pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2019-LOBMC-Annual-Report.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2020-LOBMC-Annual-Report.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports/2022-LOBMC-Annual-Report-Final-061523.pdf

trend is flat, indicating the metric is not on track to meet predicted timelines for
reaching metric targets.

Inadequate monitoring and metrics make it impossible to assess, track, and address
seawater intrusion threats to Basin sustainability. Available data indicate that the
Zone E intrusion could be entering the commercial area and Zone D intrusion has
moved inland past LA10. (See LOSG Figure 1 for an approximate location of the Zone
D front based on LA15 data and the “generalized...interpretation” of the Zone E front
based on the inadequate current data. (Also see Part 5 for LOSG recommended
upgrades to monitoring program.)

LOSG Figure 5.

Zone D contours should all be shown

as a single contour at LA10 since all

are based on LA10 data within the range
of data variation at the well.

AMR’s indicate contours reflect “localized
chloride fluctuations at LA10” (see pages 56 & 57)
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LOSG Figure 7

188 - F2015 _—
Comparing metric results

184 - F2022 from 2015 and 2022
shows that the metric is
not on tract to meet the
predicted timeline for
metric target. It also
shows that the metric fails
to capture worsening
conditions in Zones D & E
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The Water Level and Chloride Metrics, including any updated versions, are
inherently flawed

The BMC plans to review and upgrade the monitoring metrics, although plans are
currently on hold, pending review of upgrades to the monitoring program (see 2022
AMR, Page 3). Based on the BMC’s approved upgrades to the monitoring program
for 2022 and 2023 (modification of Well LA13 and a new nested well near Skyline
Drive and Pine Street), the addition of new or modified wells to improve the metrics
will be minimal (see 2022 AMR, Page 20). Even if LA10 is replaced with the Skyline
well in the Chloride Metric, and one or two wells are added to the metrics, they will
still be fatally flawed. This is due to several inherent flaws:

1) Neither metric has enough strategically placed monitoring wells producing high-
quality data to accurately represent seawater intrusion conditions in two discrete
aquifer zones. The 4-well Chloride Metric and the 5-well Water Level Metric each
have just one Zone E well, LA11, in the northern Basin. LA11 also happens to be the
only well in each metric (not counting the two water level wells on the sandpit)
without well-bore leakage, mixed aquifer screening and/or pumping interference.
Well LA10, which is double-weighted in the Chloride Metric, has all three adverse
factors as mentioned.

2) The metrics also provide a single-value average for assessing and reporting
seawater intrusion conditions, which produces misleading results. An average value
can indicate improving conditions, although conditions at one or two wells are
deteriorating. For example, the 2022 result showed an “improvement”, although
intrusion worsened in Zone E.

3) The single-value metric targets (100 mg/1 of chlorides for the Chloride Metric and
8 'above MSL for the Water Level Metric) serve as the BMC'’s only seawater
intrusion objectives based on monitoring data, i.e., actual physical Basin conditions.
The objectives are inadequate for assessing conditions and confirming the threats
are avoided or eliminated due to flaws described in 1) and 2) above. Thus, simply
replacing LA10 with another well or adding one or two wells to metrics, which--
based on the BMC’s approved upgrades to the monitoring program (one nested well
and one modified well)-- are likely to be the extent of BMC upgrades.

More monitoring wells are needed to track and set sustainability objectives
for seawater intrusion

The BMC had Mr. Harris prepare a TM in 2022, which recommended up to 4
modified existing wells and 4 new single-aquifer, dedicated monitoring wells,
referred to as nested wells (see Well Modification TM in BMC Agd Pkt 7-28-22, e.g.,
Pages 2-3, pdf Pages 25-26). The addition of 4 nested wells and 3 modified wells
makes the total number of wells recommended 11. The BMC approved just three of
these, one modified well and one nested well (see 2022 AMR, Page 20).

Several wells the BMC did not approve are essential for tracking intrusion and
preserving the Basin: the Site D Sunnyside well is essential for determining if the
Zone E front is entering the commercial area and poses an immediate threat to the
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municipal water supply. The Site B well is important for measuring the effects of the
Broderson leach field on Zones D and E and determining the need for new strategies
if the leach field is not having intended effects on those Zones. The Site C well fills an
important gap in the grid along the estuary inland of wells LA40 and LA41. Well
LA40 has shown substantial increases in chloride levels since 2019. To provide
adequate seawater intrusion grids for Zone D and Zone E (i.e., grids providing
enough reliable and accurate data to set measurable objectives that quantify, track,
and verify sustainable conditions), five new nested wells in addition to the four the
TM recommends should provide adequate monitoring. We also support keeping the
one modified well completed in 2022 (LA13) and two other existing single-aquifer
wells (LA4 and LA18)—see LOSG Figure 2).

More monitoring wells are needed to assess, track, and set objectives for
threats to Basin sustainability throughout the urban Basin

We describe several threats to Basin sustainability in Part 3 that the BMC has not yet
addressed. More single aquifer dedicated monitoring wells are needed to effectively
assess and address these threats and to set water quality and water level objectives to
avoid and eliminate threats. More new dedicated monitoring wells are also needed to
assess and track conditions near ESHA and Basin borders. These wells are essential for
measuring the effects of management actions, climate change, and other impacts in the
future.

The following are some general recommendations from SGMA BMP for
monitoring network density and frequency (see MND BMP, Pages 12-13)

e Groundwater level data will be collected from each principal aquifer in the
basin. (Note that Zones D & E should each be treated as principal aquifers.)

e Agencies will need to adjust the monitoring frequency to address uncertainty,
such as in specific places where sustainability indicators are of concern, or to
track specific management actions and projects as they are implemented.

e Data must be sufficient for mapping groundwater depressions, recharge areas,
and along margins of basins where groundwater flow is known to enter or
leave a basin.

o  Well density must be adequate to determine changes in storage.

e Data must be able to map the effects of management actions, i.e., managed
aquifer recharge or hydraulic seawater intrusion barriers.

e Data must be able to demonstrate conditions at basin boundaries.

e Agencies may consider characterization and continued impacts of internal
hydraulic boundary conditions, such as faults, disconformities, or other
internal boundary types.

The BMC has no plans for adding new monitoring wells to fill the very large gaps
where no wells exist and where gaps exist due to current monitoring wells
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producing poor-quality data, other than the one new well mentioned planned for
2024. Some of these gaps include the northern part of the urban Basin and east of
the commercial area where the BMC is shifting pumping from the western part of
the Basin to reverse seawater intrusion. Gaps should also be filled with new wells to
monitor conditions near Willow Creek Drainage and Los Osos Creek, and along the
southern edge of the Basin. These areas are experiencing, and will continue to
experience, significant changes due to major changes in pumping and recharge in
the Basin, climate change, greater pumping of the Lower Aquifer by private well
owners, and other impacts. About 11 nested wells would be beneficial, in addition to
the 5 wells needed to fill the gaps in the seawater intrusion grid, distributed
strategically throughout the urban Basin to track and develop objectives to
avoid/eliminate threats to Basin sustainability (see LOSG Figure 2).

PART 5

Parameters for approval of development
Overview

Consistent with Special Condition 6 of the LOWWP CDP, we suggest the parameters
for approval of development in Los Osos, which we call “development objectives” be
set based on sufficient high-quality data to conclusively show that seawater
intrusion and other threats to the Basin are avoided and eliminated for the current
population, with an added margin to allow added development. We ask that they
are added to the LCP, AEP, GMO, and/or CZLUO.

Substantial upgrades to current management are needed

Substantial upgrades are needed for the current monitoring program. We suggest
the addition of approximately 16 nested dedicated monitoring wells for Lower
Aquifer Zones D and E in the urban part of the Basin (Western and Central Areas)
strategically distributed to assess Basin conditions and set sustainability objectives.
(see LOSG Figure 2. Also see LOSG Figures 10, 11, and 12 that show key locations
where water level contour maps fail to capture low water levels, e.g., Well LA22 on
east side of commercial area.)

Sustainability objectives for seawater intrusion should be set where the model
locates the fronts with pumping at 80% of sustainable yield

We suggest that the objective for seawater intrusion be located where Basin
modeling places the intrusion fronts for Zones D and E with pumping at 80% of
sustainable yield. This is under the estuary to the west of the urban portion of the
Basin (see LOSG Figure 9). (See GHC Sus Yld Methodology, Fig. 2, BMC Agd Pkt 9-29-
21, Item 8b.) Sustainability for the current population would be conclusively shown
by the fronts reaching and being maintained at contour line locations for a given
period of time. The contour lines would be based on quantified values at new
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monitoring wells strategically distributed in the western part of the Basin sufficient
in number and density to ensure the contour lines conclusively show the extent and
movement of seawater intrusion (see LOSG Figure 2 for recommended monitoring
well approximate number and general placement).

Objectives should include minimum thresholds, interim milestones, and
sustainability objectives

Objectives for each threat/undesirable condition should include quantified
minimum thresholds, milestones, and desired conditions using the same network of
dedicated monitoring wells. The minimum threshold would remove the immediate
threat, the time-specific milestones would confirm progress toward the desired
condition (sustainability objective), and the sustainability objective would quantify
the desired physical condition for sustainability relative to a particular threat or
undesirable condition. The sustainability objective would add the necessary buffer
to the minimum threshold objective to avoid/prevent threats/undesirable
conditions in the future by accounting for climate change and other impacts and
uncertainties.

Parameters should be “development objectives” that exceed sustainability
objectives

The parameters we suggest for the EAP update are “development objectives” that
exceed the quantified sustainability objective for each threat/undesirable condition.
For seawater intrusion, the added increment would be contour lines (one for Zone D
and one for Zone E) located west of the contour lines for sustainability objectives.

The growth rate should be incremental as “development objectives” are
achieved; no future buildout limit should be set to avoid inducing
unsustainable growth

Special Condition 6 requires “conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply for
new development to be the basis for setting “buildout limits and any appropriate
mechanisms” to stay within them. Given the unknowns associated with climate
change, identifying a theoretical future population number isn’t possible based on
conclusive evidence, nor is it a good idea since it creates expectations that can
induce unsustainable development. The focus should be on small incremental
increases in development based on achievement of development objectives that
exceed the sustainability (desired condition) objectives described above.
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LOSG Figure 9
Recommended locations of sustainability objectives (desired conditions)
for seawater intrusion. (Shown on Cleath-Harris Geologists Figure 2 of Seawater Intrusion

2022 Sustainable Yield Adaptive Method)

* Contour lines would be based on chloride data from seawater intrusion
monitoring network show in LOSG Figure 2
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PART 6
Essential criteria for sustainable Basin management

Basin sustainability is not possible without the following essential components of
sustainable basin management. We base these components on Special Conditions 5
& 6 of the LOWWP CDP, SGMA requirements and BMPs, and LCP Coastal Plan
Policies (1988, revised 2007) (e.g., Coastal Watersheds, Policy 5). We ask that they
be added to the LCP, AEP, GMO and/or CZLUO, and we explain why below.

A monitoring program providing sufficient high-quality data

A monitoring program is needed that provides data of sufficient quality, quantity,
density, frequency, and distribution to identify and evaluate threats to the Basin and
beneficial uses, and to develop objectives to avoid/eliminate the threats and show
with conclusive evidence that objectives are met and maintained. As we show in
Part 4, the insufficient and poor-quality data make decision-making vulnerable to
error, bias and misleading results that can jeopardize the Basin.

Time-specific objectives that quantify sustainable conditions relative to each
threat

Measurable objectives are needed that quantify desired physical Basin outcomes
representing sustainable conditions relative to each threat to Basin sustainability
and beneficial uses. The minimum thresholds, milestones, and sustainability
objectives (desired outcomes) should be quantified via a network of monitoring
wells. Minimum thresholds avoid or eliminate threats, and sustainability objectives
quantify sustainable (desired) conditions by building margins of safety into
minimum thresholds sufficient to account for climate change and other impacts and
uncertainties. Milestones mark progress toward achievement of sustainability
objectives, keeping Basin management on track to complete all objectives and the
sustainability goal by 2035 ensuring Basin sustainability as a sole water supply for
the community and dependent resources including ESHA. The BMC metrics and
metric targets (which the BMC uses instead of measurable objectives) do not
identify time-specific physical improvements in the Basin or allow managers to
track and avoid/eliminate all threats and undesirable conditions.

A time-specific sustainability goal

A sustainability goal representing the achievement of all objectives is needed that
summarizes objectives (desired outcomes) and how they will be achieved by 2035.
Because the BMC does not have measurable objectives, it does not have a
sustainability goal that represents the completion of the objectives and overall Basin
sustainability.
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Adequate Basin-wide management programs, policies, and actions

Adequate programs, policies, and actions are needed to achieve all objectives within
established timeframes, including but not limited to Basin-wide conservation and
recycled water reuse programs, monitoring of all water use, infrastructure
programs, and water-quality/contamination control and remediation programs. The
LOWWP CDP (Special Condition 5) and BMC’s Basin Plan provide for a Basin-wide
conservation program (see Basin Plan, Pages 198-199). The Basin Plan also states
that Basin-wide monitoring of all water use from private wells is needed to protect
the Basin, and it suggests an option in which the County implements mandatory
monitoring with an ordinance (see Basin Plan, 137-139). The Basin Plan further
proposes a funding mechanism that spreads costs for Basin management and the
LOWWP conservation and recycled water programs equitably Basin wide (see Basin
Plan, Pages 137, 138, 307-310). However, these programs and equitable funding
have never been implemented.

Adequate resources and authority to implement Basin-wide programs, policies, and
actions

The commitment of adequate resources and authority to achieve objectives is needed,
including such measures as a Basin-wide ordinance, mandatory conservation and
recycled water use, and mandatory monitoring of all wells in the Basin. The County
and/or BMC have the ability to develop adequate resources and authority, but haven’t
done so. The County has the authority via the Conservation and Flood Control District,
including with a Basin-wide ordinance, and both have the authority through the Superior
Court to develop Basin-wide funding and authority, but neither has taken the initiative to
do so.

Adequate outside agency oversight, support, and incentives

Agency oversight, support, and incentives are needed to ensure time-specific objectives
and the sustainability goal are met. Oversight must also include regular review to ensure
program quality and effectiveness, including high-quality monitoring programs and data.
As we have shown in Part 4, BMC operations, data, and documents do not have sufficient
oversight to ensure the effectiveness of operations (e.g., all threats are addressed with
measurable objectives and timely progress toward Basin sustainability), and adequate
quality control is in place to ensure accuracy and reliability of data and related
conclusions.

A commitment to data-driven and outcome-based decision-making

Decisions must be based on high-quality data that provide conclusive evidence of specific
physical outcomes, rather than model-based decision-making that provides theoretical
outcomes. As discussed in Part 1, the model has substantial and unknown levels of
uncertainty, and it has not been shown to represent Basin conditions accurately and
reliably enough to avoid devastating consequences to the Basin. Furthermore, given the
poor-quality data that will have to be used for the planned new transient model,
programming/calibrating it will require many assumptions to fill large data gaps, making
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the new model unreliable and potentially harmful to the Basin and ESHA even for its
appropriate use—as a planning tool to initiate management actions.

LOSG Figure 10.  Fall 2022 Water level contours (modified Figure 14 from 2022 AMR)
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LOSG Figure 11: Spring 2022 water levels (modified Figure 11 from 2022 AMR)
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LOSG Figure 12. Fall 2021 Water level contours (modified Figure 14 from 2021 AMR)
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Cited documents

1. All cited documents, including our letter of 5-9-22 to the Commission, our letter of
7-16-21 to the BM(, e.g., Pages 7, 11, & 15, and Mr. Carl’s letter of 8-28-15 to the IS]
Parties are provided on the LOSG webpage with links in the letter and/or in the

support materials.

2. The BMC Basin Plan (Basin Plan), Stipulated Judgment, Annual Monitoring Reports
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https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Stipulated-Judgment.aspx
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Annual-Reports.aspx

(AMRs), BMC meeting agenda packets, and most of the technical memoranda (TMs) can
be also be found on the SLO County BMC webpage.

3. SGMA related portions of the letter are based on three documents developed by the
Department of Water Resources (DWR): Sustainable Management Criteria BMP (Draft),
November 2018; SGMA and Sustainable Management Criteria, May 4, 2018; Monitoring
Networks and Identification of Data Gaps, December 2016. The documents are
abbreviated herein as SMC BMP, SGMA SMC, and MNG BMP respectively and are
available on the DWR website at: DWR
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https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC)/Agendas.aspx
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Groundwater-Sustainability/Forms-Documents/Los-Osos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC).aspx
https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Sustainable-Groundwater-Management/Best-Management-Practices-and-Guidance-Documents/Files/BMP-6-Sustainable-Management-Criteria-DRAFT_ay_19.pdf
https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Sustainable-Groundwater-Management/Best-Management-Practices-and-Guidance-Documents/Files/BMP-2-Monitoring-Networks-and-Identification-of-Data-Gaps_ay_19.pdf
https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Sustainable-Groundwater-Management/Best-Management-Practices-and-Guidance-Documents/Files/BMP-2-Monitoring-Networks-and-Identification-of-Data-Gaps_ay_19.pdf
https://water.ca.gov/

Petition for Writ of Mandate. LOGG v. County of SLO, 22CV-0060.

“In an April 19, 2022 letter from [Dan] Carl, the Commission asserted that ‘there is insufficient water
supply to service even existing development in Los Osos without coastal resource harm . . . [that] the
Commission has repeatedly determined that the LCP consistency cannot be found for any new water
using development in Los Osos at the current time’. The Commission further noted that ‘unless and until
conclusive evidence is provided showing that these types of development[s] do not lead to an increase in
water on a given site, we believe that...that CDP applications for such development should not be
accepted (because they cannot demonstrate the availability of an adequate and sustainable water
source).”

Dear Commissioners,

Before considering approval of the Los Osos Community Plan, please recall your
requirement for conclusive evidence of a sustainable water basin.

You approved an ordinance that prohibited ADUs in Los Osos because you were
concerned about the overdraft of our basin. You essentially stopped the building
of projects that could intensify water use, because you were concerned about
more seawater intrusion into our basin. Chloride levels are still increasing, and
we could be decades away from the 4 ‘indicators’ of a sustainable basin
reaching their goals.

| am Patrick McGibney, Chair of the Los Osos Sustainability Group. Over the
past two years I’'ve had several in-depth conversations with your staff. One was
on June 30, 2022, with Esme Wahl and Kevin Kahn, and the most recent ones
were with Devon Jackson and Ryan Moroney, and then again with Kevin Kahn
and Dan Carl. During the last one, our attorney Babak Naficy joined us.

In the first conversation with Ms. Wahl and Mr. Kahn, the questions were “What
is ‘conclusive evidence’?” and “What does ‘sustainability’ mean?” It was
understood that these terms are not speculative or left up to interpretation, but
based in science and hard evidence. Conclusive evidence is indisputable,
measurable, and unquestionable - like death. And Sustainability means long-
term, not depleting, into the future. In written dialogues, these terms have been
woven together countless times over the years by this Coastal Commission, in
sentences like, “It is required that conclusive evidence be shown that the Los
Osos wastewater basin is sustainable before intensification of water use is



allowed.” Or, as it says in the Adjudicated, court-approved Basin Management
Plan for the Los Osos Groundwater Basin:

“. .. That condition requires that the County demonstrate a sustainable Basin
before the Coastal Commission will allow the adoption of the LOCP. . .” And that
“sustainable buildout limits, and any appropriate mechanisms to stay within
such limits, based on conclusive evidence indicating that adequate water is
available to support development of such properties without adverse impacts to
ground and surface waters, including wetlands and all related habitats.”

My last two conversations with Staff centered around an appeal | was bringing
to the Commission of a large, multimillion dollar home planned and approved by
the County, in the Cabirillo Estates. Staff informed me that they would not be
finding ‘substantial issues’ with this project because they will be recommending
the approval of the LOCP, the GMO and the revised LCP, that would allow 1%
growth in Los Osos, based on the view that the Los Osos Water Basin is
“trending towards sustainability.”

On December 5, 2023, the Los Osos Sustainability Group sent you a 38 page
dossier describing why the Los Osos Water Basin is not sustainable and why,
under the current management, it will not become sustainable. We emphasized
the lack of adherence to the Basin Management Plan, the modeling being used,
the lack of funding to monitor the Basin sufficiently, the fact that 50% of Basin’s
extraction is unmetered and estimated, and climate change.

The Basin Management Plan begins with the first two primary goals to achieve:
1. Halt, or to the extent possible, reverse seawater intrusion.

2. Provide sustainable water supplies for...existing residential development
overlying the Basin.

To achieve these goals it says that “bold, decisive actions” must be taken
immediately. That has never happened. One such action would have been to
meter and monitor all production wells overlying the Basin. Another would have
been to enact a community-wide conservation plan that equitably sets limits of
both indoor and outdoor use, with enforceable mechanisms. After 8 years of
management, the two immediate goals have not been achieved. Chloride levels
are still on the rise, indicating seawater intrusion, thus overdrafting. To
understand why the Basin is being ‘mismanaged’, one must take into
consideration that the Basin Management Committee is made up of 4 entities,
two of which may have their own agendas. Golden State Water is a for-profit
company, and must answer to its shareholders. The County, representing



agricultural users, does not want to burden them with metering their wells, and
has not required them to update their irrigation systems to water-saving devices.

Coastal Commission staff cites ‘the best science available’ as guiding their
change of position. However, the Steady State modeling BMC uses, as
concluded in their annual reports, has too many fallibilities and is being updated
to the Transient Model. Technologies are quickly evolving. The Los Osos Water
Basin has undergone an Airborne Electromagnetic (AEM) Survey, but the results
are still pending. In other words, best science hasn’t been used, and is always
advancing.

The Los Osos Water Basin, being adjudicated, is not eligible for much of the
State funding that SGMA basins may be granted. Thus there is a lack of the
number and placement of proper monitoring wells over the Basin. This was
detailed in the dossier we sent you. Without these monitoring wells or reliable
modeling, metrics like Sustainable Yield are only guesswork, estimates, and are
not the “conclusive evidence” you require for a sustainable basin. Two years of
abundant rainfall may have filled the reservoirs and lakes, but there is no
evidence that the Los Osos water basin, the sole water source for this
community, has been significantly recharged. Climate change is here, affecting
water availability all over the west; more and longer drought years will be the
new norm, with La Nifia starting the next rain season.

Because of this, we request that you postpone the approval of the LOCP, GMO,
and any updates of the LCP that allow any intensification of use of the Los Osos
Groundwater Basin until you conclusively know that the basin is sustainable.

Respectfully,

Patrick McGibney
Chair, Los Osos Sustainability Group



May 9, 2022

California Coastal Commission
Central Office, Santa Cruz, CA

Subject: Defining “conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply and parameters to
establish conclusive evidence relative to the Los Osos Basin

Dear Coastal Commission Staff,

The LOSG is submitting these recommendations for a “metric” for the Los Osos portion of

the Estero Area Update that will meet the standard of “conclusive evidence” required by
Special Condition 6 of the LOWWP CDP.

Consistent with the condition and findings of the Coastal Commission, the Commission
expects the County to provide “conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply prior to
approval of new development, and as the basis for identifying buildout limits and
mechanisms to stay within those limits in the Los Osos area in its update of the Estero Area
Plan (the Los Osos Community Plan or LOCP) and related documents.

We appreciate staff’s sharing insights on the “conclusive evidence” standard in a Feb. 15,

2022 teleconference, and inviting us to share our thoughts and position. We also
appreciate the foresight of Commission staff in 2010 in adding this Condition to the
LOWWP CDP recognizing the potential for harm to area resources should the 30-year
building moratorium be lifted. Given the long history of Basin degradation and the intense
pressures to develop the area, the “conclusive evidence” standard will be critical to the
sustainability of the Basin, community, and area resources in the future.

Definition of a sustainable water supply

Given the impacts of climate change locally and throughout the state, and the high cost of
water and wastewater in the community of Los Osos, we believe the Basin provides the
only potentially sustainable water source for the community for the foreseeable future
because imported water is not reliable and desalination is not likely to be feasible
environmentally or economically (e.g., with no direct outfall to the ocean).

It is our position that the term “sustainable water supply” can be defined as the ability of
the Basin to support indefinitely all beneficial uses that it currently provides for dependent
resources (e.g., the population, visitors, farms, and natural resources including ESHA). By
the Basin, we mean all parts of the Los Osos Basin from under the Morro Bay National
estuary west of the community of Los Osos inland (i.e., the portion of the Basin subject to
current Basin management). As we define it, the Basin currently includes parts in the
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Western Area that are intruded by seawater, but which we believe can and should be
restored for beneficial uses including drinking.

LOSG’s basic position

We agree that the standard must be clear, objective, and enforceable to avoid conflict and
provide direction for the County of San Luis Obispo and landowners in the area. We also
agree that the standard must be applied Basin-wide to be effective and equitable. We
concur also that the standard cannot be met by modeled sustainable yield estimates or
projected yield increases with the implementation of Basin Plan programs (e.g.,
Infrastructure Programs B, C, and D).

As we state in our letter to the Coastal Commission dated October 1, 2020, LOSG’s basic

position is the following:

To meet the (conclusive evidence) standard the County would be required to meet one
or more clearly articulated and measurable physical objectives based on sufficient and
objectively reliable well monitoring data collected over a sufficient time period in order
to establish that seawater intrusion is reversed to prescribed locations and water levels
are raised to prescribed elevations high enough basin-wide. The objective is to keep the
Basin safe from seawater intrusion and all other harmful effects through adverse
conditions such as droughts and climate change and ensure the Basin is capable of
supplying sufficient water for existing and any new or expanded development (see Pages
1&2)

When considering how this would look as a set of parameters, we reviewed SGMA BMPs
and Special Condition 5 of the LOWWP, which are both data-driven, outcome-based
processes for achieving a sustainable basin. Our recommended parameters are based on
both.

LOSG’s recommended parameters for “conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water
supply

Measurable objectives that quantify desired physical conditions in the Basin for all
sustainability indicators (conditions that have reduced beneficial uses or threaten
beneficial uses in the future). Measurable objectives would be quantified using sufficient
high quality monitoring data to conclusively show objectives are met. Objectives would
also include quantified margins of safety that account for climate change, adverse impacts
from management actions, and other impacts and uncertainties to ensure adequate Basin
capacity and resiliency to provide “conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply.
Incremental additional quantified thresholds in excess of objectives would be set to allow
incremental development. Margins would be conservative and consider worst-case
scenarios.
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Interim milestones would also be quantified to ensure progress toward the completion of
objectives and ultimately a sustainability goal. The sustainability goal would be the
achievement of all objectives (desired conditions) for a healthy and sustainable Basin.
Setting objectives would require first assessing all conditions that have reduced or threaten
beneficial uses.

A primary seawater intrusion objectives to support the current population through
droughts and other impacts would be to reverse of seawater intrusion in both lower
aquifers to points under the estuary. Seawater would be reversed to restore and preserve
use of all Western Area supply wells impacted by intrusion (remove undesirable effects)
and build resilience into the system—e.g., provide a drinking water supply that can be used
during droughts that also provides a substantial freshwater barrier between the new
pumping center near the commercial area and seawater. Thresholds would be set to push
fronts further back and to exceed other objectives Basin-wide before additional
development is added.

Objectives for seawater intrusion would be quantified using chloride monitoring data with
a monitoring program that produces sufficient high-quality data to quantify objectives as
contour lines consistent with SGMA. Water level and water in storage objectives would be
quantified Basin-wide using sufficient high-quality water level monitoring data, and
contaminant objectives would be quantified Basin-wide using sufficient high-quality water
quality data consistent with SGMA. Water level data would not be used for setting
minimum objectives for seawater intrusion recognizing that water levels can vary
significantly at individual wells and can be influenced by seawater intrusion in impacted
areas. However, water level data would be collected at the wells used for the collection
chlorides to better understand seawater movement and behavior. Geophysics would also
be used to gather more information about intrusion movement.

1. Measures to ensure objectives are achieved within reasonable timeframes and
maintained long term. These would include but not be limited to:

e time-specific interim milestones to achieve objectives (SGMA requires 5-year
milestones),

¢ adequate management programs and actions to achieve objectives,

e adequate means to implement programs and actions, including the demonstration
and commitment of adequate resources and authority (e.g., to implement mandatory
well monitoring and conservation Basin-wide),

¢ atime-specific sustainability goal that summarizes objectives and how they will be
achieved, and

e adequate outside agency oversight, support, and incentives to ensure minimum
thresholds, objectives, and the sustainability goal are met.

2. A monitoring program that provides sufficient high-quality data to accurately assess the

Basin setting and conditions, quantify minimum thresholds and objectives, and
conclusively show thresholds and objectives are met. The program would provide data

of sufficient quality, quantity, density, and distribution to support conclusive evidence.
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How the parameters build on SGMA requirements and SGMA BMPs

SGMA requires Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to identify and assess
“sustainability indicators” and to develop Sustainable Management Criteria (SMC) for each
indicator. Sustainability indicators are defined as the “effects caused by groundwater
conditions occurring throughout the basin, that when significant and unreasonable, cause
undesirable results...” (SMC BMP, Page 35). The six general sustainability indicators SGMA
recognizes include “chronic lowering of groundwater levels,” “reduction in groundwater
storage,” “seawater intrusion,” “degraded water quality,” “ land subsidence,” and
“depletions of interconnected surface water” (SGMA SMC, Page 17). (See

“Resources/Documents Cited” below for documents abbreviated with acronyms and a link
to documents.)

GSAs must quantify minimum thresholds and measurable objectives. The latter add a
‘reasonable margin of operational flexibility ...between the minimum threshold and
measurable objective that will accommodate droughts, climate change, conjunctive use
operations, or other groundwater management activities” (see SGMA SMC, Page 21 and
SMC BMP, Page 27).

GSAs must also set five-year interim milestones for each objective and summarize
measurable objectives (desired outcomes) and how objectives will be achieved in a
sustainability goal. SGMA further sets standards for monitoring networks and how

monitoring will be used to set and verify thresholds and objectives, and it requires GSA’s to

demonstrate they have the resources to implement adequate programs to reach thresholds
and objectives (SMC BMP, Pages 10, 27, 31: GMC BMP, Pages 4 & 7 and BMP SMC(, Page 20).

The Sustainable Management Criteria BMP makes it clear that, to comply with SGMA, GSAs
must make sure the GSA supports data-driven, outcome-based decision making and is not a
model driven process that relies on theoretical and uncertain sustainable yield estimates to
achieve objectives and goals.

As described in SGMA, sustainable conditions within a basin are achieved when GSAs
meet their sustainability goal and demonstrate the basin is being operated within its
sustainable yield. Sustainable yield can only be reached if the basin is not experiencing
undesirable results. The GSP Regulations focus the development of GSPs on locally
defined, quantitative criteria, including undesirable results, minimum thresholds, and
measurable objectives. Undesirable results must be eliminated through the
implementation of projects and management actions, and progress toward their
elimination will be demonstrated with empirical data (e.g., measurements of
groundwater levels or subsidence). Quantitative sustainable management criteria allow
GSAs to clearly demonstrate sustainability and allow the public and the Department to
readily assess progress.
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Properly documenting the requirements identified in Sub-article 3, Introduction to
Sustainable Management Criteria, in Article 5 of the GSP Regulations, is imperative to
maintaining an outcome-based approach to SGMA implementation and must be
completed for the Department to consider the approval of a GSP (SMC BMP, Page 2)

Regarding the use of modeled sustainable yields, SGMA BMPs state

SGMA does not incorporate sustainable yield estimates directly into sustainable
management criteria. Basin wide pumping within the sustainable yield estimate is
neither a measure of, nor proof of, sustainability. Sustainability under SGMA is only
demonstrated by avoiding undesirable results for the six sustainability indicators (SMC
BMP, Page 32) (Emphasis added).

Thus, SGMA provides a basic framework and baseline requirements for our parameters,
but the requirements must be augmented to provide “conclusive evidence” of a sustainable
water supply. For the Basin to be sustainable, several existing undesirable conditions must
be improved. Therefore, our parameters would require objectives that improve conditions
and restore uses and resilience, as needed, to ensure a healthy and sustainable Basin.

How the parameters build on Special Condition 5 of the LOWWP CDP

Special Condition 5 requires the County to develop a “Basin Plan” - not to be confused with
the Basin Plan developed by the parties to the Los Osos Basin adjudication process. The
parties consist of the County and three local water purveyors who now make up the Basin
Management Committee (BMC). The Special Condition 5 Basin Plan has the following
objective:

... to ensure that implementation of the project LOWWP), including the sites designated
for disposal of treated effluent, is accomplished in a manner designed to maximize long-
term ground and surface water and related resource (including wetlands, streams,
creeks, lakes, riparian corridors, marshes, etc.) health and sustainability, including with
respect to offsetting seawater intrusion as much as possible, within the Los Osos
Groundwater Basin (2010 LOWWP CDP) (Emphasis added.).

Special Condition 5 provides for a Recycled Water Reuse Program that “...will maximize
(the reuse program’s) ability to meet Basin Plan objectives, where the highest priority for

reuse shall be replacing existing potable water use with recycled water use where feasible
and appropriate.” The program also requires 33 AFY of recycled water to be sent to
Bayridge leach field, or as much as needed to “for maintaining Willow Creek and
downstream resources in their pre-project state or better...” (see Paragraph 5a).

Special Condition 5 also requires the County to incorporate the LOWWP “Water
Conservation Program” into the Condition 5 Basin Plan and design it to “to help Basin
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residents_to reduce their potable water use as much as possible” including with
“enforceable mechanisms...” The Condition also requires the County to include provisions
for use of ...$5 million” to initiate the program and to “coordinate with purveyors..” to
“‘integrate the program with purveyor implemented outdoor water use reduction
measures” (see Paragraph 5b) (Emphasis added).

The County has submitted Annual Reports to comply with Special Condition 5, which rely
heavily on the adjudicated Basin management process. These cite the results for the
“Seawater intrusion front” (Zone D mapping), “Basin Yield Metric,” “Water Level Metric,”
and “Chloride Level Metric” (see Annual Report for the RWMP for 2019, dated December
2020, Page 17). However, the BMC has failed to set interim and long-term success criteria
for seawater intrusion and other undesirable conditions that, in fact, “demonstrate that the
health and sustainability of the Plan area” are improving.

The BMC has recognized problems with the Chloride Metric and Zone D intrusion mapping
since 2015 indicating that both likely represent localized variations in intrusion rather than
“broad intrusion front movement” (i.e., significant changes) in the front (see 2020 AMR,
Pages 56 & 70). Moreover, the BMC has known that the monitoring program does not have
enough dedicated Zone E wells to track the most severe intrusion in the Basin, which BMC
staff agree poses “a significant threat to the Basin” (see 2020 AMR, Page 57 and BMC

response to LOSG’s March 2021 letter in BMC 5-19-21 mtg. agenda packet, pdf Page 39 -

link provided in “Resources/Documents Cited” below).

The BMC also failed to fix known problems with its water level monitoring program and
the Water Level Metric. For six years, Spencer Harris of Cleath-Harris Geologists, Inc.
(CHG), who prepares its Annual Monitoring Reports, has been informing the BMC that
elevation reference points should be surveyed by a licensed surveyor (see e.g., 2017 AMR,
Page 73). In 2021 the BMC finally had the surveys completed. The results showed the
water levels in most lower aquifer monitoring wells had been inaccurate by an average of
almost 2 feet per well since 2015. Despite the inaccuracies—and related inaccuracies in
the Water Level Metric (i.e., the values and trends reported to agencies)--the BMC
Executive Director stated in a recent BMC meeting the data and metric would not be
backdated.

Similarly, the BMC found in 2021 that it had not been setting and confirming the Basin
sustainable yield since 2015, in accordance with the Stipulated Judgment (the agreement
between BMC members that implements the Basin Plan and BMC). The BMC also found
that the Basin Plan definition of sustainable yield was not consistent with SGMA and
redefined it to be more consistent (see BMC 7-21-21 agenda packet, Pages 20-24 and BMC
10-27-21 mtg. agenda packet, Pages 25-26). These changes resulted in the sustainable yield
estimate dropping from 2760 AFY to 2380 AFY and the Basin Yield Metric production
target of 80% of sustainable yield (BYM 80) dropping to 1904 AFY. The sustainable yield
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doesn’t include a margin of safety to address modeling uncertainty per accepted practice,
so the Basin Plan sets a goal of pumping at under the BYM 80.

The change in the sustainable yield and BYM 80 target had the effect of raising BYM results
since 2016 to values above the 80% target (the BMC had reported the targets achieved for
those years). These changes should be backdated in the reports to reflect that this BYM
target was, in fact, never met.

In addition to the above problems with the Annual Reports sent to the Coastal Commission,
the County did not “Identify ...voids in the collected data,” “Modify the RWMP (Plan
required by Special Condition 5) based on current conditions,”, and failed to implement
adaptive measures including upgrades to its conservation program to address the
“deterioration” of conditions in 2019 (see Annual Report for the RWMP for 2019, dated
December 2020, Pages 16-18). The County and BMC instead put the conservation program
on hold in 2020 and purveyor members endorsed the County’s use of conservation for the
Title 19 retrofit-to-build program, also deferring, rather than expediting, infrastructure
upgrades to address worsening seawater intrusion (see 2020 AMR, Page 86 and Table 26).
The County has also sent less recycled water than required to Bayridge Estates leach fields,
intended to provide flows to ESHA as stated in Condition 5 (see 2020 AMR, Table 25, Page
85).

Thus, the BMC has failed to meet key requirements of every Special Condition 5 program—
and BMC operations fall far short of being able to meet or provide a “conclusive evidence”
standard for Basin sustainability. Thus, it is appropriate for the Commission to require
amendments under Special Condition 5 that will “result in better resource protection and
better means to achieve Basin Plan objectives” including the parameters we suggest for
“conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply.

The County may contend that Condition 5 applies to only the implementation of the
LOWWP and that it does not apply to the entire Basin. However, the language of Special
Condition 5 clearly states that the annual reports will be required “each year that the
project operates...” and the condition requires a monitoring program and success criteria
that assess and demonstrate the effectiveness of the Basin Plan and the health and
sustainability of “Los Osos Groundwater Basin” and dependent resources “over time.“

The County may also claim that it is only one member of the BMC and has a minority share
of the vote. However, Dan Carl in a letter to the BMC in 2015 made it clear to the BMC,
including the County, that the Basin Plan and Basin operations would have to comply with
Special Conditions 5 & 6, the LCP, and related coastal policies and requirements. In
October of 2021, we reminded the BMC of these requirements in a letter. However, as
recently as last month, the BMC failed to take basic steps to improve the Chloride Metric
and Zone D seawater intrusion front contour mapping, which the BMC uses to report the
effectiveness of programs and seawater intrusion conditions to the Coastal Commission,
State Water Board, and other agencies and stakeholders.
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Some upgrades to BMC operations needed to meet the parameters

1. Undesirable conditions
The Basin Plan and BMC operations currently address three undesirable conditions in
the Basin: high nitrates in the upper aquifer, potential seawater intrusion in the upper
aquifer, and seawater intrusion in the lower aquifers, primarily Zone D. The BMC would
have to review Basin conditions, consider the six categories of SGMA indicators, and set
minimum thresholds and objectives for all current and potential undesirable conditions.
Some of these include seawater intrusion into Zone E, which is currently not measured
and is not being addressed with its own set of monitoring wells and metric targets. To
reverse seawater intrusion in Zone E, for instance, requires a target of 12’ above mean
sea level; whereas the current metric target is 8'. Zone E intrusion may require its own
set of management actions, possibly injection. Other potential undesirable effects
include low water levels and harm to private wells and ESHA resulting from shifts in
pumping to the upper aquifer and inland with Infrastructure Programs B, C, and D. Also,
existing and potential degradation of the Basin must be assessed, including PFAS
contamination, salt build up, rising nitrates in the lower aquifers in some areas, and
upper aquifer nitrate hot spots that may limit use of the upper aquifer by making
denitrification less economically and environmentally feasible.

2. Measurable thresholds, objectives, and interim milestones
The BMC would have to develop physically measurable objectives and interim
objectives. Currently, the BMC has no interim objectives, and the metrics and other
measures it has do not meet minimum SGMA or Special Condition 5 requirements. For
instance, the Chloride Metric target currently provides the only seawater intrusion goal
or objective based on monitoring. However, it is not represented as an intrusion front
location (i.e., a contour line as required by SGMA). It further has too few wells and has
data gaps due to unreliable data, e.g., from Well LA10, to accurately represent conditions
and set thresholds, objectives, and milestones.

The Water Level Metric target similarly does not have enough wells to represent
conditions and has gaps due to poor quality data (see #3 below). Further, the metric is
not based on water levels above a minimum threshold at each of a representative group
of wells as required by SGMA.

The sustainable yield and BYM 80 set pumping targets modeled to move seawater
intrusion fronts to theoretical approximate locations under the estuary, but the targets
are based on modeled sustainable yield estimates and estimated water use data (50% of
the water in the Basin is not metered). For the yield and BYM targets to be measurable
objectives, they would have to be represented by targeted values at chloride monitoring
wells that verify the physical locations of the fronts.

The BMC also has no interim milestones. The Basin Plan provides long-term broad
estimates of the time it will take for the Chloride Metric target to be reached after the
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Water Level Metric target (8’ above MSL) is reached (about 20 years) and it provides an
estimate for how long after the BYM 80 is reached the Water Level Target will be
reached (about 10 years) (see Basin Plan, Page 108). However, these targets are much
too far in the future and approximate to be used to assess program effectiveness. The
2016-2020 Annual Monitoring Reports show the BYM has been below the target of 80
since 2016. However, after six years, with the Water Level Metric reported to be at
about 2.1’ above mean sea level (about 6’ below the target), and with available data
showing seawater intrusion still active in both lower aquifers, the BMC is claiming that
Basin operations are on track to stop seawater intrusion and meet expectations.

3. Monitoring Program and Networks
The BMC would also have to add substantially more new lower aquifer monitoring wells
to its program (It installed just one in six years.). The lower aquifer program in the
Western and Central Areas (which is the portion of the program we reviewed) currently
has substantial data gaps due to too few wells and wells producing poor-quality data.
Spatial gaps in the lower aquifers are most obvious in the northern part of the Basin and
in the eastern part of the Central Area. Spatial gaps also exist throughout most of the
deep aquifer, Zone E. The program has only three Zone E wells in the entire Western
Area to track seawater intrusion, all located near the estuary, although Zone E extends to
the Central Area and possibly into it. CHG estimates Zone E intrusion is “laterally
pervasive” throughout the Western Area (see 2020 AMR, Page 57). The Annual
Monitoring Reports in 2019 and 2020 provide only a “generalized plan view
interpretation” of Zone E intrusion based on historical data due to too few monitoring
wells (see 2020 AMR, Page 57).

The gaps resulting from poor quality data are mainly in the historic pathway of seawater
intrusion in the Western Area and under the commercial area, where most of the
monitoring wells and community supply wells are located (Most supply wells are also
monitoring wells). Many of these wells have one or more problems adversely impacting
data: mixed aquifer screening, well-bore leakage, pumping interference, and/or localized
mounding. Well LA10, a key well used for the Chloride Metric and the Zone D intrusion
front contour mapping, has all four factors, making both the metric and Zone D mapping
unreliable at best.

The substantial gaps in the program make assessment of the Basin setting and Basin
conditions impossible, as well as quantifying and verifying measurable physical
thresholds, objectives, and interim milestones. Objectives for seawater intrusion, for
instance, can’t be set because the program includes too few wells producing reliable and
accurate data to draw and confirm objectives as contour lines with any confidence.

Spencer Harris (of CHG) recommends in the 2020 Annual Monitoring Report that the
BMC evaluate the feasibility of more wells and the modification of wells to “improve
seawater intrusion definition in both Zone D and Zone E (2020 AMR, Page 57). The BMC
approved the evaluation of wells, in addition to an evaluation and recommendations for
improvements for the Chloride Metric. CHG apparently completed the evaluations in
early 2022, and recommended the modification of at least three wells, in addition to
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installation of at least one new well. However, the BMC Executive Director recently
reported that the evaluations will not be released until further notice. Further, the BMC
budget in 2022 for monitoring program upgrades is just $27,000 (although the BMC is
spending $330,000 on a modeling upgrade). $27,000 is about enough money to modify
one well.

Conclusion

Again, we appreciate your reaching out and sharing insights, and your interest, knowledge
of, and commitment to Los Osos Groundwater Basin sustainability. Your dedication to the
protection of Los Osos Area resources represents the best, and possibly the only, chance for
the Los Osos community, ESHA, and agriculture in the area to have a sustainable water
source. Seawater intrusion has been allowed to destroy the Basin for over 40 years, and
once again effective action is being delayed for the same reasons and by the same entities
that have delayed effective action for all that time.

If the Basin is to be a sustainable water source, the County, purveyors, overseeing agencies,
and all users of the Basin must commit to setting and achieving time-specific measurable
objectives that address all threats to the Basin and conclusively show, based on sufficient
high-quality data, that the Basin is sustainable for at least the current population. We
thank the Commission for having the insight to require data-driven, outcome-based,
comprehensive management of the Basin in 2010 with Special Conditions 5 and 6 of the
LOWWP CDP. Your foresight and continued involvement are essential for the Basin, at long
last, to become a sustainable water source.

Sincerely,

Patrick McGibney, Chair
Los Osos Sustainability Group (LOSG)

Resources/Documents Cited

1. The above SGMA discussion is based on three documents developed by the
Department of Water Resources (DWR): Sustainable Management Criteria BMP (Draft),
November 2018; SGMA and Sustainable Management Criteria, May 4, 2018; Monitoring
Networks and Identification of Data Gaps, December 2016. The documents are
abbreviated herein as SMC BMP, SGMA SM(C, and MNG BMP respectively and are
available on the DWR website at:
https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/SGMA-Groundwater-
Management/Best-Management-Practices-and-Guidance-Documents.

2. The BMC Basin Plan, Stipulated Judgment, Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) and
meeting agenda packets cited above can be found on the SLO County BMC webpage at:
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Public-Works/Committees-
Programs/Los-0sos-Basin-Management-Committee-(BMC).aspx
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From: Patrick&lindi

To: Wahl, Esme@Coastal; Carl. Dan@Coastal; Oliver, Ellie@Coastal

Cc: Keith Wimer; Larry Raio; Elaine Watson; Sue; Robin McPeak; Becky McFarland; Lisa Denker

Subject: Last chance

Date: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 9:56:05 AM

Dear Esme, Dan, and Ellie, July 5, 2022

We so appreciate your tireless work to protect our coastal resources. Because what happens
now between the Coastal Commission and the County will seal the fate of Los Osos, we are
worried, and seek understanding and clarification.

We realize you are understaffed, under-budgeted, and seemingly limited in your ability to
enforce regulations. As a community that depends on you (the Coastal Commission) to ensure
our only drinking water supply doesn’t go dry, we’re ready to advocate, raise funds and/or file
lawsuits to lend the support you may need. But we need you to fight for us using the tools you
have to protect our vital coastal resource, the Los Osos Water Basin, as mandated in the
Coastal Act of 1976.

The Los Osos Water Basin is NOT in a state of recovery. The court-ordered adjudicated Basin
Plan is NOT being implemented in a timely manner, there have been no “bold, decisive,
immediate actions” taken as required in the ISJ, and there is no “conclusive evidence” that the
Basin can sustainably support the current population of Los Osos, let alone more development.
Mismanagement has allowed unabated seawater intrusion and the continued overdraft of our
basin for over 40 years.

The BMC relies upon “modeling” to determine the sustainability of the basin, but modeling is
only as good as the metrics that go into it. Those metrics are optimistically skewed toward
producing a Sustainable Yield Estimate on paper that justifies development. These faulty
metrics include the unrealistic projections of 17.3” of annual rainfall and 800 AFY flow in the
dry Los Osos Creek (25% more than the unmetered, estimated agricultural use of 620 AFY).

Importantly, the 2015 ISJ set the initial estimated Sustainable Yield at 2,400 AFY, to be
reviewed annually and revised by unanimous BMC vote. Subsequent Annual Reports
increased that estimate over the next couple of years first to 2,450 AFY, then to 2,760 AFY.
These increases in the estimated Sustainable Yield were not made by the required unanimous
vote. Instead, they were simply inserted into the Annual Reports and approved via passage of
each Annual Report. In addition, the rationale for these increases was the erroneous inclusion
of Projects that had not yet been implemented. The inflated Sustainable Yield estimate of
2,760 AFY has now been used and acted upon all these years to create the Basin Yield Metric.

This faulty estimate has finally been reviewed and corrected to 2,380 AFY, but won’t be
included in the Annual Report until the 2022 report is issued. Thus, the 2021 Annual Report
uses the erroneous Sustainable Yield estimate of 2,760 AFY in its calculation to arrive at the
BYM of 72, giving the false impression of improvement.

Every Water Basin in San Luis Obispo County is in overdraft because the County lacks
oversight and planning, but continues to push development. Some of these Basins are now
under SGMA control, and some are inland and out of Coastal Commission jurisdiction, but the
Los Osos Water Basin is coastal and adjudicated, so SGMA cannot help us and the BMC is
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driven by the County’s agenda. Even so, looking to SGMA’s guidelines of measurable goals
rather than metric-driven projections can be helpful.

We need a forward-thinking, comprehensive, realistic Community Plan. ADUs are prohibited
throughout Los Osos because we ostensibly lack a sustainable water supply, yet an entire,
large, unappealable SFR can be allowed next door - this makes no sense. How the County can
block the State from protecting a Coastal Resource? If Title 23 and the LCP neglected to
include provisions that guard against the destruction of Coastal Resources, what actions can
the Coastal Commission take to protect, enhance and restore? And how can we, as a
concerned community, help?

Thank you for your dedication and consideration.

Patrick McGibney
Chair, Los Osos Sustainability Group

Sit, be still and listen. You are drunk and we are on the edge of the roof.
-Rumi-



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



From: Larry Raio

To: Wahl, Esme@Coastal

Cc: Patrick McGibney; Eve Gruntfest; Keith Wimer; Becky McFarland; Lisa Denker; Elaine Watson; Susan
Morgenthaler; Robin McPeak

Subject: Sustainable Yeild

Date: Saturday, July 2, 2022 9:57:25 AM

Hi Esme,

I want to thank you again for the meeting our group had last Thursday with you.

In an email you said that any communication for Dr. Street from our group should go through
you. I had some thoughts that I was hoping you could share with him. Near the end of our
meeting I quoted a few lines from SGMA that succinctly states our view on how we hope the
CCC focuses on talks with the County regarding what metrics are used when determining
“conclusive evidence” of a sustainable water supply.

SGMA does not incorporate sustainable yield estimates directly into sustainable management
criteria. Basin wide pumping within the sustainable yield estimate is neither a measure of, nor
proof of, sustainability. Sustainability under SGMA is only demonstrated by avoiding
undesirable results for the six sustainability indicators (SMC BMP, Page 32) (Emphasis
added).

The most disturbing undesirable effect currently, in my opinion, is the continued advancing of
seawater intrusion in Zone E of the basin. From my understanding, Zone E has the largest
volume of water of all the zones and we continue to loose this valuable water source as
seawater advances and current management measures to stop it are not working. It has largely
been ignored and there are minimal monitoring wells to accurately monitor the extent of
advancement basin wide. The BMC kind of hides this fact in the Annual Report and
minimizes its importance.

The BMC likes to use the Basin Yield Metric as way to show their management practices are
working, but in my opinion, it has been misleading for the last 5 years. When the BMC was
initiated in 2015, the sustainable yield value was set at 2400 acre feet. In 2016 it was increased
to 2760, but as we later discovered, the change was never voted on by the BMC, which
requires a unanimous vote by all parties, This came to light last year (2021) and the
sustainable yield value was the lowered to 2380 by unanimous vote. They also agreed that it
should never have been raised to the 2780 value without a discussion. So all the previous
Annual Reports misrepresented the Basin Yield Metric. The 2021 Annual Report also
misrepresents the Basin Yield Metric. In this report they state it as 72 and they state:

The Basin Yield Metric decreased between 2020 and 2021 (an improvement) and has met the
LOBP goal since 2016, although an updated Sustainable Yield methodology to be
implemented in 2022 is expected to result in the Basin Yield Metric not meeting the LOBP
goal (discussed in Section 7.5.1).

They tell us that technically the Basin Yield Metric used in the annual reports reflect the
value agreed upon in the previous year. I believe the “Basin Yield Metric” status statement is
incorrect and misleading and should report the new definition and value and state that the
metric has not met LOBP goals since 2016. It would more accurately represent and the status
of the Basin and actual sustainable yield and BYM to agencies and other stakeholders
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receiving the report. Using a sustainable yield value of 2380, the Basin Yield Metric would
be 84 and would not meet their desired goal.

I also have a major issue with the way they calculate the agricultural production, specifically,
they use an idealized and unrealistic water usage calculation given typical agricultural
practices in San Luis Obispo County and used an unrealistic irrigation efficiency factor of
92%. The agricultural production continues to be lowered annually, the result of which lowers
the reported total production, which in turn, lowers the Basin Yield Metric making things
look better than they are, in my opinion.

Thank you for listening,
Larry Raio
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